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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)
BEREBERZMERQB([BRXA]) GEMBW&EE

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Main
Board. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the

decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given
that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any
liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in

reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company’,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given
in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The
Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that to
the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in
this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and
not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report

misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ETEHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited
(the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), |
hereby present the Group’s annual report for the year ended 31
March 2021.

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong Fai
Jewellery (BI#E%KE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the New

Territories.

The Group’s principal products are mass jewellery products
including gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products, which
are produced in-house at its production facility in Shenzhen and
Guangdong Provinces, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
The Group also engages in the wholesale of its jewellery products to
other jewellery retailers, and the trading of recycled gold products

from the general public to certain customers.

On 19 March 2021, the Group has adopted the share award scheme
with a validity period of eight years for the purposes of, among
others, providing incentives and rewards to eligible persons who

contributes to the success of the Group’s operations.

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a
wider range of market opportunities when the situation of the novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19”) and the economic environment in Hong
Kong further improve. We are exploring the possibility of extending
our marketing campaign to social media in the hope that it will
bring a desirable return to the shareholders and sustain a long-term

growth of the Group.

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 22 June 2021

BAIER

REABGHEEBERERAR(ALQT] &
AHEKHBAR  SfEAIREH])  EiER
SEHZE2021F3 A31BIEFENFERS °

AEERZERBENEERARER 21
BB AR LR KT RS B [ BIE
KE MR EEMAKRNBE  TEEARE

o
on ©

AEENIBEERRIAUEER  BREELE
BABLESUBER  ZRZERETEARHK
ME(THEDRINTRERENEEREBITE
Eo AEENMMEEANEMKETERMBEHLRE
Em UREFEEARIETEFPNOKRESEM

R2021F3 A 198 » REEE KM EENET
2 BWEANTE  STEIEHNA(HPEIE)E
BN B AR EBESKINEREEINEERA
i °

RERK  EFETMHES([COVID-19]) & 1T
RRBEBERRE-THE  AEBEKBNEX
AEBNRERA R RWLEEFPFER - B
kmigBs  ARTEEAETERY LES
BHS#E - R ERA S TS EREDHRRE
MR AIEN  URBRRFEREEDSR - I
HRASENRERR -

BER

FTERITEAR,

A 2021F6 A22H

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT %3k



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEN®E DM

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong
and is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through
its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (EI¥2I£E )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group possesses
the means to control the diversity, quality and pricing of its own
jewellery designs produced in-house at its production facility in

Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the PRC.

The Group’s principal products are jewellery products, including
gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products. The Group also
engages in the wholesale of its jewellery products to other jewellery
retailers, and the trading of recycled gold products from the general

public to certain customers.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group’s revenue decreased by HK$18.2 million, or 15.2%, from
HK$119.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 to HK$101.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2021. The decrease in revenue
was mainly driven by the revenue decrease from (i) diamond,
karat gold, jade, pearl, platinum jewellery products (the “Gem-
set jewellery products”) by HK$9.3 million; and (ii) gold jewellery
products by HK$11.1 million, which was offset by the revenue

increase from trading of recycled gold products by HK$2.2 million.
Revenue by Products
(a) Gem-set jewellery products

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
generated from the sales of Gem-set jewellery products
decreased by HK$9.3 million, or 14.7%, as compared to that
for the year ended 31 March 2020. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the stay-at-home initiatives recommended by
the government and the decrease in spending on jewellery

and luxury products as a result of COVID-19.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWmE DM

(b)

(c)

Gold jewellery products

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
generated from the sales of gold jewellery products
decreased by HK$11.1 million, or 29.9%, as compared to that
for the year ended 31 March 2020. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the stay-at-home initiatives recommended by
the government and the decrease in spending on jewellery
and luxury products as a result of COVID-19 which offset
impact of rise of global pure gold prices during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

Trading of recycled gold products

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
generated from trading of recycled gold products increased
by HK$2.2 million, or 11.6%, as compared to that for the year
ended 31 March 2020. The increase was mainly attributable to
the rise of global pure gold prices during the year ended 31
March 2021.

Revenue by Business (sales channels)

(a)

(b)

(c)

Retail operation

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
generated from retail operation decreased by HK$9.4 million,
or 12.0%, as compared to that for the year ended 31 March
2020. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the stay-at-
home initiatives recommended by the government and the
decrease in spending on jewellery and luxury products as a
result of COVID-19.

Wholesales

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
generated from wholesale channel decreased by HK$11.0
million, or 49.6%, as compared to that for the year ended 31
March 2020. Such decrease was mainly attributable to the
stay-at-home initiatives recommended by the government and
the decrease in spending on jewellery and luxury products as
a result of COVID-19.

Trading of recycled gold products

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s revenue
generated from trading of recycled gold products increased
by HK$2.2 million, or 11.6%, as compared to that for the year
ended 31 March 2020.
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(c)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEN®E DM

Cost of goods sold

The Group’s cost of goods sold decreased by approximately HK$5.1
million, or 6.4%, from HK$79.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2020 to HK$73.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2021. The
decrease in cost of goods sold was mainly caused by the decrease
in units of goods sold due to COVID-19.

Overall Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit decreased by HK$13.1 million, or 32.0%,
from HK$40.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2020 to HK$27.8
million for the year ended 31 March 2021. The Group’s gross profit
margin decreased from 34.1% for the year ended 31 March 2020
to approximately 27.3% for the year ended 31 March 2021 as
the gross profit margins of Gem-set jewellery products and gold
jewellery products decreased during the current year. The Group’s

decrease in gross profit margin was mainly caused by:

(a) Gem-set jewellery products: The gross profit margin of Gem-
set jewellery products decreased from 46.4% for the year
ended 31 March 2020 to 36.6% for the year ended 31 March
2021 because more discounts were offered to the Group’s
customers during the year ended 31 March 2021 as compared

to the same period last year.

(b) Gold jewellery products: The Group’s gross profit margin of
gold jewellery products decreased from 28.6% for the year
ended 31 March 2020 to 21.1% for the year ended 31 March
2021. The decrease in the Group’s gross profit margin was
mainly due to the increase in average cost of gold during the
year ended 31 March 2021 as a result of the global gold price

movements.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEN®WE DM

Other income

Other income for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to
HK$5.6 million (2020: HK$1.3 million), representing an increase
of approximately HK$4.3 million as compared with last year. The
increase in other income was mainly due to other income from
government grants for the Anti-epidemic Fund under Retail Sector
Subsidy Scheme and Employment Support Scheme in the amount of
approximately HK$4.17 million provided during the year ended 31
March 2021.

Other net gain

Other net gain for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to gains
of HK$1.3 million (2020: HK$0.3 million), representing an increase of
HK$1.0 million as compared with last year. The increase was mainly
due to gain on disposal of financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (“FVTPL") by approximately HK$1.4 million.
Finance costs

Finance costs for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted to
HK$1.3 million (2020: HK$1.5 million).

Selling and distribution costs

Selling and distribution costs for the year ended 31 March 2021
amounted to HK$22.0 million (2020: HK$30.7 million), representing
a decrease of HK$8.7 million or 28.4% as compared with last year.
The decrease was mainly due to the decrease in marketing and

promotion expense during the year.
General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses for the year ended 31
March 2021 amounted to HK$12.7 million (2020: HK$17.1 million),
representing a decrease of HK$4.4 million or 25.8% as compared
with last year. The decrease was mainly due to decrease in salaries

and other benefits and legal and professional fee during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEN®E DM

Taxation

Income tax credit for the year ended 31 March 2021 amounted
to approximately HK$1.0 million (2020: income tax credit
HK$1.4 million), representing a decrease of income tax credit of
approximately HK$0.4 million as compared with last year. The
decrease was primarily due to the decrease in loss before taxation
in Hong Kong. The particulars of the Group’s taxation are set out in

note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.
Dividend

The board (the “Board”) of Directors of the Company does not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31
March 2021.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
TREASURY POLICY

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 March 2021, total assets of the Group amounted to
HK$136.2 million (2020: HK$137.3 million), which is financed by
total liabilities and shareholders’ equity (comprising share capital
and reserves) of HK$55.3 million (2020: HK$55.7 million) and
HK$80.9 million (2020: HK$81.6 million), respectively.

The total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 March
2021 amounted to HK$31.3 million (2020: HK$25.6 million), and
current ratio as at 31 March 2021 was 1.96 times (2020: 2.3 times)

mainly due to the increase in new bank borrowings during year.
Gearing Ratio

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing total
debts (total debts are defined to include payables incurred not in
the ordinary course of business) by total equity as at the end of
each of the financial year, increased from 31.4% as at 31 March
2020 to 38.7% as at 31 March 2021, primarily due to the increase in

the level of total debts.

The Group has no available unutilised bank loan facilities as at 31
March 2021 (2020: nil).

The Directors are of the view that as at the date hereof, the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient to support its business and

operations.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

TEEEN®WE DM

Treasury Policy

The Group adopts a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policy and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the reporting period. The management of the
Group regularly reviews the recoverable amount of trade receivables
by performing ongoing credit assessments and monitoring prompt
recovery and if necessary to make adequate impairment losses
for irrecoverable amounts. In order to achieve better cost control
and minimise the cost of funds, the Group’s treasury activities are
centralised and cash is generally deposited with leading licensed

banks in Hong Kong and denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Capital Structure

The Company’s shares (“Shares”) were successfully listed on GEM
on 27 March 2019. There has been no change in the Company’s
capital structure since 27 March 2019 to the date of this annual
report. The capital structure of the Group comprises of issued share
capital and reserves. The Directors review the Group’s capital

structure regularly.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$7,500,000 and the number of its issued ordinary shares was
750,000,000.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, the Group did not have

any pledge of assets.
Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and this annual report, the
Group did not have any other plans for material investment and

capital assets as at 31 March 2021.
Foreign Currency Exposure

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of US$
and RMB. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the financial
impact on exchange difference between HK$ and US$ will be
immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary assets and liabilities

are held by group entities having HK$ as their functional currency.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did not have
any hedging arrangements. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group manages its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates and considering hedging
significant foreign currency exposure should the need arises. The
management of the Group considers the exposure to the foreign

exchange risk fluctuation for the Group is not material.
Capital Commitments

As at 31 March 2021, the Group had capital commitments of HK$2.8
million (2020: nil).

Contingent Liabilities

The Group and the Company had no material contingent liabilities
as at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed 90 (2020: 101)
staff (including Executive Directors). We determine employees’
remuneration based on factors such as qualification, duty,
contributions and years of experience. As at 31 March 2021,
the Group had no significant obligation apart from the defined
contributions schemes and there is no forfeited contribution arose
upon employees leaving the retirement benefit scheme and which
were avaliable to reduce contributions payable. In addition, the
Group provides comprehensive training programs to its employees
or sponsors the employees to attend various job-related training

courses.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme and a share
award scheme for the purposes of, among others, providing
incentives and rewards to eligible persons who contributes to the
success of the Group’s operations. Further details in relation to
the share option scheme and share award scheme are set out in
paragraphs headed “Share Option Scheme” and “Share Award

Scheme” under the “Report of Directors” in this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Other than disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have
any significant investments, material acquisitions and disposals of
subsidiaries and capital assets during the year ended 31 March
2021.

Use of Proceeds

The net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds”) received by the Group from
the listing of the Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange
after deducting the relevant one-off and non-recurring listing expenses
amounted to approximately HK$24.5 million (based on the public
offering price of HK$0.3 per share). The following sets forth a
summary of the allocation of the Net Proceeds and its utilisation
as at 31 March 2021 as envisaged in the prospectus dated 15
March 2019 (the “Prospectus”) and subsequently amended in
the Company’s announcements dated 25 March 2020 and 3 July
2020 (collectively, the “Announcements”). As at 31 March 2021,
all the Net Proceeds have been utilised according to the intended

purposes as set out in the table below
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Revised Further revised Utilisation
Net Proceeds allocation of allocation of up to
from share intended use of intended use of 31 March

Intended use offer Net Proceeds Net Proceeds 2021

RETZ RE-HBTZ HBZ2021 %

R ®E FBNEEE S RIEFHE 3A31H

RERE PG FIAFE REREDE RERZSE 28
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
(Bizt1) (K 2) (Hz£3)

(approx.) (approx.) (approx.) (approx.)

(#149) (B14) (#147) (BE49)

HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million HK$'million

B&8T B&ET B & ET B&8T

Expand the Group’s retail presence 221 1.0 9.9 9.9

BAAEENTERE

Enhance the Group’s brand recognition 1.2 1.2 1.2 1.2

RARSENRENEE

For the Group’s working capital and other general 1.2 6.2 6.2 6.2

corporate purposes

REASENEBEEe REM—REERS

Invest in blue-chip stocks, investment-grade bonds N/A 16.1 7.2 7.2

and debentures (Note 2) NEA

REAEER REANESFREREHT2)

24.5 24.5 24.5 24.5

Notes: Bt -

1. The application of the Net Proceeds is based on the proposed 1. FR1S B FREM R DR IE B R E R KR8 R
percentage of utilisation as specified in the section headed “Future FIiSRERS | —HMEMNERERT I LEE -
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus.

2. The change in use of Net Proceeds has been disclosed in the 2. FriSsIEFERg 2B R AR R HEA2020
announcement of the Company dated 25 March 2020. FIABAZRNERE -

3. The Company had further reallocated approximately HK$8.9 million 3. RARNDE—FERIERERESR - RERE
from its investment in blue-chip stocks, investment-grade bonds and FRERENNSIOBBATEF IREREALSE
debentures to expand the Group’s retail presence as disclosed in the ENTEMAE A FHEENARFNR2020F7 A
announcement published by the Company on 3 July 2020 in relation to, SRTHBEANREME—FEHRMSRERBIAE -

inter alia, further change in the use of proceeds.

As at 31 March 2021, all the Net Proceeds have been utilised HE2021F3A31H FTEMSHREFHER
according to the manners as set out in the Prospectus and the BHERERERZELAEHHENFAEA -

Announcements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH

ACTUAL PROGRESS

The following is a comparison of the Group’s business objectives as
set out in the Prospectus and the change in use of the net proceeds
as stated in Company’s announcements dated 25 March 2020 and
3 July 2020 with actual progress up to 31 March 2021.

Implementation plan as disclosed in
Prospectus and subsequently change

in use of the net proceeds as stated in
Company’s announcements dated

25 March 2020 and 3 July 2020
RRERFKENERTEUREAZREQATR
H1%2020F3 A25HK%2020F 7R3 BN AE
AR ER SRR REAR

EREREEREENLER

UTRERERAEARNEENHELBIZUARAK
A& B A2020F3 A25H K% 202057 A3H
MALSHRANERMMERIBFEAGREES
20213 A31 Bz B EFMLLE °

Actual activities achieved up to 31 March 2021
EZE2021 53831 HERHMNERED

Expand the Group’s retail presence

BAREENHTEBE

Enhance the Group’s brand recognition

RITA LB @R A E

Invest in blue-chip stocks, investment-grade
bonds and debentures
REESKR  REREFRERESE

Acquired 13% of the issued share capital of a private company
incorporated under the law of Hong Kong whose major asset is a
commercial premises currently used as the flagship store of the
Company

BB -—RREEBSEEIMRLOMART Z 13% EEITRA - HX2
BERBRBEALFEREOEBYE

Purchased of inventories
BEEE

Launched various marketing and promotional activities and
refurnished existing retail stores

BHEHZEMSEENESEIPRBHRETEE

Invested some blue-chip stocks in Hong Kong
ERE-LEBESS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks and uncertainties involved in the Group’s
current operations, some of which are beyond the Group’s control.
The most significant risks relating to the business such as (i)
price fluctuation of jewellery raw materials of the Group’s jewellery
products could materially and adversely affect its business; (ii) the
Group may not be able to renew the leases of its retail stores which
may affect its business and operation when the relevant leases
expire or terminate; (iii) the Group may not be able to sustain its
profitability; (iv) the Group has high gearing ratio that may expose
it to liquidity risk; and (v) challenges or continued downturn in
economic conditions due to COVID-19 may affect the demand for
the products which could adversely affect the Group’s sales or
growth.

OUTLOOK

During the year ended 31 March 2021, COVID-19 pandemic
continued to affect the retail industry in Hong Kong. In order to
control the spread of COVID-19 in the society, various prevention
and disease control measures, including but not limited to the
social distancing measures and the government's measures of
encouragement of “staying home” have been taken to prevent the
spread of the novel coronavirus. The business hours of our shops
are shortened. The consumers were forced to keep out of the
streets and shopping malls, resulting in loss of consuming desire.

As a result, the revenue of the Group decreased significantly.

Looking forward, the Group will seek to expand the Group’s
jewellery design collection in line with customer needs, preferences
and market trends and expand its retail presence to capture a wider
range of market opportunities until the situation of COVID-19 and
the economic environment in Hong Kong becomes better. We are
exploring the possibility of extending our marketing campaign to
social media in the hope that it will bring a desirable return to the

shareholders and sustain a long-term growth of the Group.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Fu Chun Keung (“Mr. Fu”)

Mr. Fu, aged 53, was appointed as the chairman, the chief executive
officer and an executive Director of the Company in January 2018.
Mr. Fu is the major founder of the Group which was established in
1997, and now responsible for supervising overall management and
strategy planning of the Group as well as its daily operation and

management.

Mr. Fu is the spouse of Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk, an executive Director,

and the younger brother of Ms. Fu Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk (“Ms. Cheung”)

Ms. Cheung, aged 48, was appointed as an executive Director in
March 2018. Ms. Cheung is the head of the Group’s procurement
department, and is responsible for formulating corporate and

business strategies.

Ms. Cheung has over 20 years’ experience in the jewellery industry
and joined the Group since 1999. Ms. Cheung was awarded by the
GIA a certificate for completing the requirements of the program
in Diamond Essentials in November 2014, and a certificate for
completing the requirements of the program in Diamonds and
Diamond Grading as well as a diploma certificate for completing
the diploma program in Graduate Diamonds respectively in January
2015.

Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and a sister-in-law of Ms. Fu

Wan Ling, an executive Director.
Ms. Fu Wan Ling (“Ms. Fu”)

Ms. Fu, aged 60, was appointed as an executive Director in March
2018.

Ms. Fu is responsible for formulating the overall strategy,
supervising the administration and overseeing the inventory of the
Group.

Ms. Fu has over 20 years of experience in the jewellery industry and

joined the Group since August 1997.

Ms. Fu is the elder sister of Mr. Fu and the sister-in-law of Ms.

Cheung.
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ESREREERERNBERFE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat (“Mr. Chan”)

Mr. Chan, aged 71, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Chan is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Chan has over 32 years of working experience in the Inland
Revenue Department. He was an assistant commissioner

responsible for tax compliance before he retired in 2005.

Mr. Chan is the sole director of a tax consultancy company,
C T Tax Consultants Limited since 2006. Further, Mr. Chan is
an independent non-executive director of Medicskin Holdings
Limited (stock code: 8307) since 2014; and an independent non-
executive director of Hyfusin Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
8512) since 2018, an independent non-executive director of Accel
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1283), since February 2020,
an independent non-executive director of Ye Xing Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 1941) since February 2020, an independent
non-executive director of Wasion Group Holdings Limited (stock
code: 3393) since June 2020, and a non-executive director of
Alpha Financial Group Limited since September 2019. He was also
an independent non-executive director of Man Sang International
Limited (stock code: 938) from 2015 to 2016 and Guangdong
Tannery Limited (stock code: 1058) from 2006 to 2020.

Mr. Chan graduated from Central Queensland University of Australia
with a master degree in financial management in 1995. He has been
an associate of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known
as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) (U.K.)
since 1974 and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
since 1994. Mr. Chan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (formerly known as the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants) since 1986; a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants since 1983; and
a fellow member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising

Accountants since 1990.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

BAFHTES
REEXRE(REERED

FREZENLLE 7150 B2018F 9 AR BB IE
WITESZ -REELLEAEEEETERNES
SRUBIHEER -

BREZELTEMABNFERG DI IELE -
R2005FRRFIADERRK  BEMBEHET
(=K

B2006 F AR  IREEXRE—BEARXMIKE
FAR(BEMBEMARRARHM —E%F -
HhAN - BREER LB 2014 F AR —HIEETH
HrAER AR A R (R DR SE - 8307) B L IE
WITEE HE2018FR—EAIEEEER
BB R AR (B RS - 8512) M B IENITE
FoH2020F2AR—EATRERITRER
AE(RHAI - 1283) MBI IERITES - B
20202 A RIEE S EERAER QA (RN K
S5 1941) MBI IEITE S - H20205F6 A
BAERBEEZERKRARARBRG R 3393)
B IFMITEERE2019F 9 ARETE R
BEREEERRAIZIENITES - [RE 20155
F2016FNEARERBBRA A (BRMH RS -
938) B ENITE F 2 B 2006 F £ 2020 F B
FEEHEFRARRGNRIE - 1058) B E L
FHEHITES -

PREELAN 105 FEEMNBMPRELHKR
2. SHEERSELEBM - BB 19745F
RARBEFHARREAS (FIRBERSHTWE
FAIBRABRAE)EL  WH 1994 FHE AT BR

FHEAEEL - MREBEXLENE1986F A
EAGHMACEREE - B 1983 F i AKFF
BiEe 8 KB 1990 F # AR M

AREEAE

SEMARERER -



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EEREREERBRNBERFE

Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Tony (“Mr. Tony Chan”)

Mr. Tony Chan, aged 53, is an independent non-executive Director
since September 2018. Mr. Tony Chan is responsible for supervising

and providing independent judgment to the Board.

Mr. Tony Chan possesses over 20 years of experience in the field of

business advisory, accounting and auditing.

Mr. Tony Chan obtained a bachelor’'s degree in Commerce (major in
Accounting) from the Australian National University in 1990. He is a
a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
since 2012 and a member of the CPA Australia (formerly known as

Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants) since 1993.

Currently, Mr. Tony Chan is an independent non-executive director
of Theme International Holdings Limited (stock code: 990) since
2015. Mr. Tony Chan was as a non-executive director of Good
Fellow Healthcare Holdings Limited (stock code: 8143) from 2016
to 2018 and re-designated as an executive director in 2018 and
resigned from the position in 2019. Mr. Tony Chan also served as an
executive director of Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code:
1718) from 2016 to 2018.

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick (“Mr. Wong”)

Mr. Wong, aged 63, is an independent non-executive Director since
September 2018. Mr. Wong is responsible for supervising and

providing independent judgment to the Board.
Mr. Wong is currently practising as a barrister-at-law in Hong Kong.

Mr. Wong obtained his Bachelor of Laws from The University of
London in 1987. Mr. Wong was called to the degree of utter barrister
of the Honourable Society of Gray’s Inn in 1989 and obtained Master
of Laws in international economic law in The Chinese University
of Hong Kong in 2009 and Postgraduate Diploma in Corporate
Governance and Directorship jointly issued by Hong Kong Baptist
University and The Hong Kong Institute of Directors in 2011.
Mr. Wong obtained a degree in Master of Science in Corporate
Governance and Directorship (Distinction) issued by Hong Kong
Baptist University in 2011. Mr. Wong is also a Chartered Engineer,
a member of Institute of Energy, Institution of Mechanical Engineers

and Institution of Engineering and Technology.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT BREEE

Mr. Yung Kam Keung (“Mr. Yung”) SEEE(HEE])

Head of Wholesales and Retail Department HEREFEHSFE

Mr. Yung, aged 53, is the head of the Group’s wholesales and retail BEE B3 AAEEMBERTELEE -

department. Mr. Yung is responsible for overseeing the wholesaling SELEAFERAEEHRERTZE T R
and retailing functions of the Group. Mr. Yung joined the Group in 2012 F MNARER -

2012.
Mr. Yung possesses over 20 years of experience in the jewellery SEEBEB20FIREITELE -
industry.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
CEREABE

The Board is pleased to present the Corporate Governance Report
of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining the
highest standards of corporate governance consistent with the
needs and requirements of the business and its shareholders, and
consistent with the code provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 15 to
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”). The
Group has considered the CG Code and has put in place corporate
governance practices to meet the code provisions. Since the listing
of the shares of the Company on GEM, the Company has adopted
and complied with, where applicable, the CG Code during the year
ended 31 March 2021 up to the date of this Annual Report, except
for code provision A.2.1. Please refer to the paragraph headed

“Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 stipulates that the role of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the

same individual.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung, the major founder of the Group, is chairman of
the Board and the chief executive officer. With extensive experience
in the jewelry industry, Mr. Fu is responsible for the overall
management, decision-making and strategy planning of the Group
and is instrumental to the Group’s growth and business expansion.
Since Mr. Fu is the key person for the Group’s development and
he will not undermine the Group’s interests in any way under
any circumstances, the Board considers that vesting the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer in Mr. Fu, is in the best interest
of the Group and beneficial to the management of the Group. In
addition, the senior management and the Board, which comprise
of experienced individuals, could effectively check and balance
the power and authority of Mr. Fu. Therefore, the Board considers
that deviation from CG provision A.2.1 is appropriate in such

circumstances.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SEERRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and internal control
of the Company. It oversees the Group’s businesses, lays down
strategies and monitors the Group’s operational and financial
performance and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs.
The Board has general powers to manage and conduct the
Company’s business. The day-to-day operations and management
are delegated by the Board to the senior management of the
Company, who will implement the strategy and direction as laid
down by the Board.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses
for discharging their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices
held by them.

Composition of the Board of Directors
The Board currently comprises six members as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 17 to 19 of
this annual report.

Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company and each of independent non-executive Directors
has signed a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of
three years since 27 March 2019 (the “Listing Date”) and is subject
to retirement by rotation at an annual general meeting at least once
every three years.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
term of the service contracts and the letters of appointment may
be renewed in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws.
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At all times during the year ended, the independent non-executive
Directors represent more than one-third of the Board. Each of the
executive Directors has entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of three years which shall continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by not less than three months’

notice in writing served by either party on the other.

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times complied with Rule 5.05A of
the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board, of whom Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony is the Director
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or

related financial management expertise.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant
to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules, and considers them to be

independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary
of the Company (the “Company Secretary”) to ensure that the
Board procedures are followed. The company secretary of the
Company is Mr. Wai Kin Hon (“Mr. Wai”).

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

All Directors attended various trainings during the year ended 31
March 2021, including trainings regarding the updating of the GEM
Listing Rules, the responsibilities and continuous obligations of
Directors and the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting
Guide. The Company had arranged suitable trainings for all
Directors in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills

as part of their continuous professional development.
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Training record of each Director received for the year ended 31

March 2021 is summarised below:

Name of Directors

EEpE

Mr. Fu Chun Keung BEER ST A
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REEZLT
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BEBRZL
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat PREERE
Mr. Chan Chi Ming, Tony BRFAASE A
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick Tk & HE

The Company is committed to continuously reviewing and improving
its internal systems, including those in relation to internal supervision

and control, and risk management.
Indemnity of the Directors

The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’ and Officers’
Liability Insurance for its Directors and officers covering the legal

action against the Directors and officers.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

During the year ended 31 March 2021 to the date of this annual
report, the Company complied with Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2) and 5.05A
of the GEM Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing one-third of
the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate qualifications

or accounting or related financial expertise.

The independent non-executive Directors also serve the important
function of ensuring and monitoring the basis for an effective
corporate governance framework. The Board considers that each
independent non-executive Director is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific independence
criteria as required by the GEM Listing Rules. The independent
non-executive Directors are explicitly identified in all corporate

communications of the Company.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND PROCEDURES

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and
timely information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In
compliance with code provision A.1.2 of the CG Code, at least 14
days’ notice has been given for a regular Board meeting to give
all Directors an opportunity to attend. Notice, agenda and board
papers of regular Board meetings are sent to all Directors within
reasonable time and at least 3 days prior to the meetings. Directors
are free to contribute and share their views at meetings and major
decisions will only be taken after deliberation at Board meetings.
Directors who are considered having conflict of interests or material
interests in the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed
will not be counted in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from
voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes are prepared after
the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments before the final version of which are endorsed in the

subsequent Board meeting.

Details of the attendance of the Board meetings, Audit Committee
meetings, Remuneration Committee meetings, Nomination
Committee meetings and general meetings of the Company held

during the year ended 31 March 2021 are summarized as follows:
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Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Fu Chun Keung EEBEE 6/6 44 N 17 17
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk REERT 6/6 404 1 n n
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLL 6/6 404 1 7 i

Independent Non-executive BUHTES

Directors

Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REELA 6/6 44 N 17 17
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick R G- 6/6 404 1 n n
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BT E 6/6 414 111 1 1
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three Board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All Board committees are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority
and duties. The terms of reference for each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee have been
published on the websites of GEM (www.hkgem.com) and the
Company (www.chongfaiholdings.com). Each committee deals
with matters in accordance with its terms of reference so that they
could perform their functions properly, including but not limited to
reporting back to the Board on their decisions or recommendations.
All committees are provided with sufficient resources to perform
their duties and have access to independent professional advice
at the Company’s expense if so reasonably required. The list of the
chairman, members and duties of each of the committees are as

follows:
Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises three Independent non-executive
Directors. The Board is satisfied that the current mix of experience
of the committee members facilitates an effective functioning of their

roles. The members of the Audit Committee are:

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less

exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review, and
provide an independent view of the effectiveness of the financial
reporting process, the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, oversee the audit process, scope of audit
and appointment of external auditors and perform other duties and

responsibilities as assigned by the Board.

Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee shall hold at least two meetings a year. The Audit
Committee held four meetings during the year ended 31 March 2021
to review and approve the Group’s quarterly, interim and annual

reports before submission to the Board for approval.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three Directors, two of
whom are Independent non-executive Directors.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman)
Mr. Fu Chun Keung
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish
and review the policy and structure of the remuneration for the
Directors and senior management and make recommendations to
the Board on remuneration packages of executive Directors and
senior management.

The Remuneration Committee shall meet not less than once every
year. The Remuneration Committee has held one meeting during the
year ended 31 March 2021. Meeting of the Remuneration Committee
was held on 19 June 2020 to review the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
executive Directors and the senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises three Directors, two of whom
are independent non-executive Directors and one is executive
Director.

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (chairman)
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing and
assessing the composition of the Board and the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment and removal of
Directors. In recommending candidates for appointment to the
Board, the Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit
against objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of
diversity on the Board in accordance with the board diversity policy
adopted by the Company. Diversity of the Board will be considered
from a number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, industry experience,
technical and professional skills and/or qualifications, knowledge,
length of services and time to be devoted as a Director.
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The Company will also take into account factors relating to its own
business model and specific needs from time to time. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Nomination Committee has held one meeting during the year
ended 31 March 2021. A meeting of the Nomination Committee
was held on 19 June 2020 to review composition of the Board and
assess the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and to adopt a nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy.

Nomination Policy

According to the Nomination Policy, in evaluating and selecting
any candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee would
consider the criteria, including, among other things, character
and integrity, qualifications (cultural and educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and
diversity aspects under the Board Diversity Policy), any potential
contributions the candidate can bring to the Board in terms of
qualifications, skills, experience, independence and diversity, and
willingness and ability to devote adequate time to discharge duties
as a member of the Board and/or Board committee(s).

The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt of
the proposal on appointment of new director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. The Nomination
Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint
the appropriate candidate for directorship with a ranking of the
candidates (if applicable) by order of preference based on the
needs of the Company and reference check of each candidate.

Board Diversity Policy

In designing the Board’s composition, the Nomination Committee
has considered Board diversity from a number of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, race, language, cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience. All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy,
and candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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We believe the Board has a well-balance of cultural background,
educational background, industry experience and professional
experience where members of the Board have diversified branch of

learning and working experience in different countries and regions.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

According to code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code, the Board
is responsible for performing the duties relating to corporate
governance functions. The Board has the following responsibilities
in performing the corporate governance duties of the Company
as follows: (i) developing and reviewing the Group’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making recommendations;
(ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management
of the Group; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Group’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
(iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and Directors;
and (v) reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and

disclose in the corporate governance report.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings (the
“Required Standard of Dealing”) as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67
of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in
securities of the Company by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiries of all the Directors, each of them have confirmed that they
have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings during the
year ended 31 March 2021. No incident of non-compliance was

noted by the Company during such period.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the fees paid/payable to the
external auditor in respect of audit was approximately HK$500,000.
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DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the reporting period. A statement from the auditor about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements
is set out on pages 99 to 102 of this annual report. In preparing
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021, the Directors of the Company have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimated that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared

the financial statements on a going concern basis.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the

Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the effectiveness of
the Group’s internal control and risk management systems. Such
internal control and risk management systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives and can only provide reasonable but not absolute

assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board with the supported of the Audit Committee as well as the
management, had conducted a review on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control and risk management systems during the
year ended 31 March 2021 which covered financial, operational,
compliance procedural and risk management functions and had
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s

accounting and financial reporting function.

In light of the size and scale of the Group’s business, the Group
does not have an internal audit function as the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
internal audit function within the Group. The Board will continue to
review and consider to establish such department as and when it

thinks necessary.
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The Group believes that good corporate governance practices are
very important for maintaining and promoting investor confidence
and for the sustainable growth of the Group. The Group has
therefore made continued efforts to uplift its quality of corporate
governance. It has established an effective system of internal
controls and adopted a series of measures to ensure its safety and
effectiveness. As a result, the Group is able to safeguard its assets
and protect the interests of the shareholders. The Board is of the
view that the systems of internal control and risk management are
effective and there are no irregularities, improprieties, fraud or other
deficiencies that suggest material deficiency in the effectiveness of

the Group’s internal control system.
Internal Control System

The Company has maintained an internal control system and its
implementation has been considered by the Audit Committee and
the Board as effective. Meanwhile, the Group strives for continual
improvement through efforts to enhance controls by providing
ongoing employee training and development, talent retention, and
other measures. The Group follows a disciplined and balanced
compensation framework with strong internal governance and
independent Board oversight. The impact of risk and control issues
are carefully considered in the Group’s performance evaluation and

incentive compensation processes.

The Group’s internal control system and procedures are designed to
meet its specific business needs and to minimise its risk exposure.
The Group has adopted different internal guidelines, along with
written policies and procedures to monitor and lessen the impact
of risks which are relevant to the Group’s business and control
the Group’s daily business operations. In order to ensure sound
implementation of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems, the Group has also adopted various on-going measures as

set out below:

—  the Group has performed an internal control review and has

adopted a revised operations and procedures manual;

—  the Group has improved its existing internal control framework
by adopting a set of internal control manual and policies,
which cover corporate governance, risk management,

operations and legal matters;
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—  the Group will assess and monitor the implementation of
its internal control manual and policies by the relevant
departments and companies in the Group through regular
audits and inspections; and

—  the Group will provide internal training to staff as appropriate
in order to enable them to follow the internal control

procedures.

With reference to the internal control manual and policies of the
Group, the risk management and internal control systems are
reviewed and assessed on an on-going basis by the Board with
the support of the Audit Committee and the management and will
be further reviewed and assessed at least once each year by the

Board. These systems were considered effective and adequate.

The Group will continuously monitor and improve the Group’s
management procedures to ensure that effective operation of those
internal controls are in line with the growth of the Group’s business

and good corporate governance practice.

Finance Director is responsible for overseeing the Company’s
internal control measures in relation to anti-money laundering and

cash management.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY

The Group has one main IT platform that supports its business
operations, namely POS system. The IT platform was developed
by an independent third party contractors to suit the Group’s
requirements and it is continually refined and upgraded to meet the

Group’s business needs.

The Group’s POS system records sales and inventory movements as
it is linked to every retail store. The Group’s management is able to
manage effectively the retail stores through the POS system which
provides them with the performance of each retail store and its
inventory status. With the ability of the Group’s POS system to track
the inventory movements in each retail store, the Directors are in a
better position to assess what type of products are more popular in
each retail store, which in turn enables the Group to respond more

swiftly to market demands.
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DIVIDEND POLICY
The dividend policy of the Company is set out as follows:

Payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any
restrictions under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company. The
Board will review the dividend policy as appropriate from time to
time. The declaration and payment of dividends shall be determined
at the sole discretion of the Board. The Board shall also take into
account the following factors when considering whether to propose

dividends and determining the dividend amount:
1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company

and each of the members of the Group;

3. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure

requirements and future expansion plans;
4. the Group’s liquidity position;

5. contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by
the Company to the shareholders or by the Company’s

subsidiaries to the Company;
6. taxation considerations;

7. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s
business and other internal or external factors that may have
an impact on the business or financial performance and

position of the Group; and

8. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS’ RELATIONS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Pursuant to
the Articles, general meetings shall also be convened on the written
requisition of any one or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event
the Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered
office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisitionists held as at the date
of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting should be held within two

months after the deposit of such requisition.

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue at
general meetings, including the election of individual Directors. All
resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll
pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange after each

general meeting.

Under Article 12.3 of the Articles, any one or more shareholders
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at general meetings of the Company may at all
times have the right, by a written requisition to the Board or the
company secretary of the Company, to require the convening of
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the
transaction of any business specified in such requisition. If, within
21 days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do
so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be

reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of the
Company under the Articles and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals at general
meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph to make a written
requisition to require the convening of an extraordinary general

meeting of the Company.
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Detailed procedures for shareholders to propose a person for
election as a director of the Company are published on the

Company’s website.

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders may

send written enquiries to the Company as follows:

Address:  No. 6-13, Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road, Hung Hom,

Kowloon, Hong Kong
Attention: Company Secretary

The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous

enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, there have been no
significant changes to the constitutional documents of the Company.

CHANGE OF COMPANY SECRETARY AND
AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty (“Ms. So0”) tendered her resignation as the
Company Secretary and one of the authorised representatives of
the Company (the “Authorised Representative”) for the purpose
of Rule 3.05 of the GEM Listing Rules with effect from 1 July 2020.
Mr.Wai has been appointed as the replacement of Company
Secretary and the Authorized Representative with effect from 1 July
2020. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 1 July 2020.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Wai is the Company Secretary. He is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and he has complied
with Rule 5.15 of the GEM Listing Rules by taking no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training during the financial year

ended 31 March 2021 to update his skills and knowledge.
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The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 March 2021.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 11 January 2018.
Pursuant to a reorganisation in preparation for the Listing, the
Company became the holding company of the Group. Details of the
reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus. The Company’s shares
were listed on the GEM on 27 March 2019 by way of share offer.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged engaged in the retail of its own products
through its network of seven retail stores under the brand name of
“Chong Fai Jewellery (BI#EZEE )" strategically located in Kowloon
and the New Territories. The Group also engages in the wholesale
of its jewellery products to other jewellery retailers, and the trading
of recycled gold products from the general public to customers who

purchase recycled gold products from the Group.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries are set

out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The financial results of the Group for 2020/21 are set out on pages
103 to 207 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, and assets and liabilities of the Group
announced in the past 4 years are set out on page 208 of this

annual report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

The fair review of the Group’s business is detailed in the
Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 16 of this
annual report. The discussion constitutes a part of this Directors’

Report.
Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The principal risks faced by the Group are set out in page 16
of this annual report. As it is a non-exhaustive list, there may be
other risks and uncertainties further to the disclosure. Besides, this
annual report does not constitute a recommendation or an advice
for anyone to invest in the securities of the Company. Investors
are advised to make their own judgement or consult professionals

before making any investment in the securities of the Company.
Important Events

The Board has not identified any important events affecting the

Group that have occurred since the end of this financial year.
Key Performance Indicators

The key performance indicators are detailed in the financial review
set out in the Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to
16 of this annual report. This discussion constitutes a part of this

Report of Directors.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income of this annual report.

No final dividend has been paid or proposed by the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2021, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2020: nil).
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 6% of the Group’s total revenue.
The five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 36% of
the Group’s total purchases. In addition, the largest customer
accounted for approximately 4% of the Group’s total revenue while
the largest supplier accounted for approximately 28% of the Group’s
total purchases. None of the Directors, their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, customers and suppliers to meet its
immediate and long-term business goals. During the year ended 31
March 2021, there were no material and significant dispute between
the Group and its employees, customers and suppliers.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 March 2021 and the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 March 2021 are set out in the consolidated financial
statements on pages 103 and 207 respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the share capital and share options of
the Company are set out in notes 26 and 27 to the consolidated
financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision regarding pre-emptive right under the Articles
of Association of the Company and the Cayman lIslands law, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares during the year
ended 31 March 2021.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 106 and in note 37 to the consolidated financial

statements, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had distributable reserve of
approximately HK$17,150,000, calculated under the Companies
Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman lIslands. Such amount includes share premium which
may be distributable provided that immediately following the date on
which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in a position
to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the ordinary course of

business.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company and its

subsidiaries made charitable donations of approximately HK$5,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial

statements.

DIRECTORS

The members of the Board during the year ended 31 March 2021

and up to the date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Fu Chun Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk

Ms. Fu Wan Ling
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat

Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick

Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management
are set out under the section headed “Biographical Details of

Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

In accordance with article 16.19 of the Articles, at every annual
general meeting of the Company one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three,
then the number nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire
from office by rotation, provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Accordingly, Mr. Wong
Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice in

writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which shall continue thereafter
unless and until terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other. Save as disclosed
above, none of the Directors, including those to be re-elected at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company which is
not determinable within one year without payment of compensation,

other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

There was no transactions, arrangement or contract of significance
connected to the business of the Group to which the Company, its
subsidiaries, or its holding company or any of its fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which any Director and the Director’'s connected
party had a direct or indirect material interest, subsisting at the end

of the year or at any time during that year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has in force
indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant statutes for
the benefits of the Directors. The permitted indemnity provisions are
provided for in the Company’s Articles of Association in respect of
potential losses and liability associated with legal proceedings that
may be brought against such Directors and the payment of any sum

primarily due from the Company that may be liable by the Directors.

The Company has maintained appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance and such permitted indemnity provision for the

benefit of the Directors is currently in force.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were

entered into or exited during the year.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15
of the GEM Listing Rules, the Company has established a
Remuneration Committee to make recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for all the Directors’
remuneration. The Directors’ remuneration is determined by the
Board with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities,
the recommendation of the Remuneration Committee and the
performance and results of the Group. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial

statements of this annual report.
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CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules from each of the
Independent non-executive Directors and considers that all the
Independent non-executive Directors namely Mr. Chan Cheong Tat,
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2021, interests and short positions of the Directors in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Cap. 571 of the Laws of
Hong Kong (the “SFO”)) which were notified to the Company and
the Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests and short positions which they were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing

Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Name Capacity

i 514

Mr. Fu® Interest in controlled corporation

ohaE? R EEER

Ms. Fu? Interest in controlled corporation
p

Bt RIEEE S

Ms. Cheung®®
R £??

Interest in controlled corporation,
interest of spouse
FyAE R  REER
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Notes:
1. All interests stated are long positions.
2. Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung collectively are interested in the entire

issued share capital of Mythe Group Holdings Company Limited (“MGH
Limited”) and they are therefore deemed to be interested in the Shares
held by MGH Limited by virtue of the SFO.

3. Ms. Cheung is the spouse of Mr. Fu and she is therefore deemed to be
interested in the Shares held by Mr. Fu by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed herein, neither the Directors nor any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations as at 31 March 2021 as defined in Section 352 of
the SFO. In addition, at no time during the year had the Directors
and chief executive of the Company (including their spouses and
children under 18 years of age) any interest in, or been granted,
or exercised any rights to subscribe for shares (or warrants or
debentures, if applicable) of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of the SFO). Save as disclosed
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or

debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

At 31 March 2021, the interests or short positions of person in the
shares and underlying shares and debentures of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who
is, directly or indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal
value of any class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all
circumstances at general meetings of any other members of the
Group, or any other substantial shareholders whose interests or
short positions were recorded in the register required to be kept by

the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the Company

Name Capacity
18 514
MGH Limited® Beneficial Interest
EmiEm
Notes:
1. All interests stated are long positions.
2. The entire issued share capital of MGH Limited is legally and

beneficially owned by Mr. Fu, Ms. Fu and Ms. Cheung who are deemed
to be interested in the Shares held by MGH Limited by virtue of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors and
chief executives of the Company) who had an interest or short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or, who is, directly or
indirectly, interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any
class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at
general meetings of any other members of the Group, or any other
substantial shareholders whose interests or short positions were
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option scheme and share award scheme as
set out below, no equity-linked agreement was entered into by the

Group, or existed during the year ended 31 March 2021.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The share award scheme was adopted by the Board on 19 March
2020 (the “Share Award Scheme”). Under the Share Award
Scheme, the Board may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion,
select any eligible persons and grant awarded Shares to them
at no consideration. The awarded Shares were acquired by an
independent trustee, at the costs of the Company, and held under
a trust on and subject to, among others, the terms and conditions
of the Share Award Scheme. Awarded Shares will be vested in
the selected eligible persons according to the terms of grant
determined by the Board.

As at 31 March 2021, no awarded Shares had been granted, vested
and lapsed pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. A summary of the
Share Award Scheme is set out below, more details have been set

out in the announcement dated 19 March 2021:
Purposes and objectives

The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are to (i) recognize and
reward the contributions or potential contributions made or to be
made by the eligible persons to the Group; (ii) align the interests of
the eligible persons with those of the Company, and strive for the
future development and expansion of the Group; and (iii) attract
high-calibre personnel to join the Group and provide them with
incentives to participate in the continual operation and development
of the Group.

Duration

Subject to any early termination as may be determined by the
Board, the Share Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a term of eight (8) years commencing on 19 March 2021 (the
“Adoption Date”).

Administration

The Share Award Scheme shall be subject to the administration of
the Board in accordance with the terms of the Share Award Scheme.
In addition, as provided for under the Share Award Scheme, the
Board entered into a trust deed (the “Trust Deed”) with Bank of
Communications Trustee Limited and appointed it as the trustee
(the “Trustee”) to assist with the administration and vesting of the
awards granted under the Share Award Scheme and in accordance
with the Trust Deed.
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Scheme limit

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded under
the Share Award Scheme shall be 75 million Shares, representing
approximately 10% of the total number of issued Shares of the
Company as at the Adoption Date. The Board shall not instruct
the Trustee to subscribe for and/or purchase any Shares for the
purpose of the Scheme when such subscription and/or purchase

will result in such threshold being exceeded.

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to a
selected participant shall not exceed 1 per cent (1%) of the total

number of issued Shares of the Company as at the Adoption Date.
Operation of the Scheme

The Board may from time to time, in its sole discretion, select any
eligible persons (other than any excluded persons) to participate in
the Share Award Scheme as selected participants and determine
the number of Shares to be awarded to such selected participants
out of the pool of Shares from which award shall be made (the
“Shares Pool”). The Board shall have the power to impose any
conditions on the rights of selected participants when deemed

appropriate.

In order to satisfy any Award to be granted under the Scheme
from time to time, the Trustee shall maintain a Shares Pool which

comprise the following:

(i) such Shares as may be purchased by the Trustee on the
Stock Exchange by utilising the funds allocated by the Board

out of the Company’s resources;

(i) such Shares as may be subscribed by the Trustee by utilising
the funds allocated by the Board out of the Company’s
resources, subject to the Company having obtained the
requisite shareholders’ approval in general meeting under
general mandate or specific mandate for the allotment and
issue of new Shares, the grant of listing of and permission to
deal in such Shares by the Stock Exchange, and compliance

with the applicable requirements under the GEM Listing Rules;

(iii)  such Shares as may be allotted or issued to the Trustee
as a holder of Shares, whether by way of scrip dividend or

otherwise; and

(iv)  such Shares which remain unvested and revert to the Trustee

due to the lapse of the Award.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

FH&IER

RB R ) SRR AT 8 AT X T W0 BB R D O A B E
RISBER  ERRABMARREETRNG
REH10% - MEBRERLBEEKEBH
BZRE - EFTETSETREEARTERE
X,/ BB EMBKLS

AR TFERT2EEZ ZaRMDEE - TE5HA
RIERMBHARRFTEBETRMDAEZ 1% °

FTEIEE

Ex=an Tﬁ%%%%ELEHAéﬁAiM’
BREETMARIIALUERLEELEE 2 RN
ﬁ@%%‘ﬂ#i@ﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁ@%k@ﬂ@ﬁ
i) PR TERLEETSEENRNHKE -
EFERRER  BEIKET2EEZAN
RERNIFE DNE A R fF o

AR ERER B H A TR - AR
MR OIS EAK AR D

() ZEAAERBIMEREEFEELAAR
BEREBESBEMRD -

(ii) %%Aﬂ*ﬁ%%$@§$“ﬂﬁﬁ%%
BoREORND - EAFTARRRBKRER
@ia@ﬁm%&%ﬁ%hﬁmfﬁﬁ%
RIS AT AR HLE - B &R
REMEZERD ETREE - WAEEBS
GEM LR A EMRE - FaEH

(i) EFERAMERBROEFEA)AJRRABRKE
S EA T R B HEITHORND + K

(iv) HAZEVRBMIDARGBREEZTEAD

f&1n



REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

The Trustee may purchase the Shares on the Stock Exchange at the
prevailing market price (subject to such maximum price as may be

from time to time prescribed by the Board).

Where any award is proposed to be made to a connected person
(as defined under the GEM Listing Rules) and the relevant award
of the Shares is to be satisfied by an allotment and issue of
new Shares, such award shall be separately approved by the
shareholders in general meeting with such connected person and
his associates abstaining from voting and shall comply with all other
requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules applicable to

such award.
Termination

This Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of: (i) the eighth
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of
early termination as determined by the Board provided that such
termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any selected

participant.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme was adopted by the written resolutions of
the sole shareholder passed on 6 March 2019 (the “Share Option
Scheme”). The terms of the Share Option Scheme are in compliance
with the provisions of Chapter 23 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Since the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme to the 31
March 2021, no share option was granted, exercised, outstanding,

cancelled or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.
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Summary of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are as AT BERET20 BRI E -

follow:

(a) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme (a) BRESENERN
The Share Option Scheme is a share incentive scheme and is BRESE A —ERHERSE . DA
established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions EFLETAEBER2EE(EE R TX(b)
the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b) below) BR) ¥ AREB e sk AT e B H BV B BA i 5%
have had or may have made to the Group. The Share Option oo R EE A BIRLRBEERHERN
Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an opportunity ARRFAEBAAEZNHE  BEEET
to have a personal stake in the Company with the view to ZE /Y :

achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimise their (i)
performance and efficiency for the benefit of the Group;
and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining (i)

on-going business relationships with the Eligible
Participants whose contributions are or will be beneficial

to the long term growth of the Group.

/

HEEER2EEQAEENN G
MR THERBRYE : &

Wl W B RAEM T AEREE
ERZEENTEXEBBE 658
BE2EENAERENRIBENR
rEBRRAER -

(b) Participant of the Share Option Scheme (b) BREEIZEE
The Board may, at its discretion, offer to grant an option to EF2r BRI (c) RETENITEER
subscribe for such number of new Shares as the Board may LNTAZ(EERSEHE DRERTER
determine at an exercise price determined in accordance with BARBEFSAeETWIRMNEE -

paragraph (c) below to the following persons (the “Eligible
Participants”):

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or (i)

officers of the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any Directors (including non-executive Directors and (i)
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company

or any of its subsidiaries;

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and (iii)
agents to the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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(c)

(d)

(e)

(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, will contribute or have contributed to the Group,
the assessment criteria of which are:

(a) contribution to the development and performance
of the Group;

(b)  quality of work performed for the Group;

(c) initiative and commitment in performing his/her
duties; and

(d) length of service or contribution to the Group.

Price of Shares

The subscription price of a Share in respect of any particular
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be such
price as the Board in its absolute discretion shall determine,
save that such price will not be less than the highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of grant,
which must be a day on which the Stock Exchange is
open for the business of dealing in securities;

(i) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant; and

(iii)  the nominal value of a Share.
Grant of options and acceptance of offers

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within
twenty-one days inclusive of the day on which such offer was
made. The amount payable by the grantee of an option to the
Company on acceptance of the offer for the grant of an option
is HK$1.

Maximum number of Shares of the Company available for
issue

The total number of Shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 75,000,000 Shares, represent 10% of the
Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report.
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(f) Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of options granted to any participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes of the Company in
any 12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed

1% of the Shares in issue.
(g) Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period as the
Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years from
the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination

thereof.
(h) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing on 6 March 2019, subject to early

termination provisions contained in the Share Option Scheme.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s issued share as required
under the GEM Listing Rules.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 6A.19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed Ample Capital Limited (“Ample Capital”)
to be the compliance adviser. As informed by Ample Capital, neither
Ample Capital nor any of its directors or employees or associates,
has or may have, any interest in the share capital of the Company or
any member of the Group (including options or rights to subscribe
for such securities), which is required to be notified to the Company
pursuant to Rule 6A.32 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions which were undertaken in the normal
course of business are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements. For those related party transactions that
constitutes connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (as the case may be) under the GEM Listing Rules,
these transactions are exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirement
under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, there were no other connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions with related
parties which are required to be disclosed in this annual report in
accordance with the requirements of Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing

Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, none of the Directors or
their respective close associates (as defined under the GEM Listing
Rules) had any business or interests in a business which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to protect the Group’s interest in its business activities,
on 6 March 2019, each of Mr. Fu, Ms. Cheung, Ms. Fu and
MGH Limited, the controlling shareholders of the Company (the
“Controlling Shareholders”) as covenantors executed the deed
of non-competition in favour of the Company (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”).
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In accordance with the Deed of Non-Competition, the Controlling
Shareholders jointly and severally agreed, whether as principal
or agent and whether undertaken directly or indirectly (including
through any close associate, subsidiary, partnership, joint venture
or other contractual arrangement of theirs), not to do the following
from the Listing Date and ending on the occurrence of the earlier of
(i) the date on which the shares of the Company cease to be listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange; or (ii) the date of which (a) the
Controlling Shareholders, individually or collectively cease to own,
directly or indirectly, 30% or more of the then issued share capital
of the Company and (b) the Controlling Shareholders, cease to

control the composition of a majority of the Board:

(a) directly or indirectly, either on their own account, in
conjunction with, on behalf of, or through any person, firm
or company, among other things, in any form carry on,
participate or be interested, engage or otherwise be involved
in or acquire or hold shares or interests in (in each case
whether as a shareholder, partner, agent or otherwise and
whether for profit, reward or otherwise) or assist or support
a third party to engage in or participate in the current and
potential business engaged or to be engaged by the Group
referred to in the Prospectus including but not limited to
design, production, retail and wholesale of jewellery products
(the “Restricted Business”) and where they become aware of
such engagement of the Restricted Business they shall notify

the Company forthwith;

(b)  solicit or procure any of the suppliers and/or the customers
of the Group from time to time to terminate their business
relationships or otherwise reduce the amount of business with

the Group;

(c) solicit or procure any of the Directors, senior management or
other employees of the Group from time to time to resign or

otherwise cease providing services to the Group; and/or

(d)  unless with the prior written consent of the Company, disclose
any confidential information of the Group to any other third

parties.
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The Company has received a confirmation from the Controlling
Shareholders on their compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition
during for the year ended 31 March 2021.

Details of the undertaking has been set out in the section headed
“Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

BANK BORROWING

Particulars of bank borrowing of the Group as at 31 March 2021 are

set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

CONTRIBUTIONS TO THE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
SCHEME

Details of contributions to the retirement benefits schemes of the
Group are set out in notes 9 and 32 to the consolidated financial

statements.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on
27 March 2019 and the net proceeds raised from the issue of new
shares of the Company, after deduction of the professional fees,
underwriting commissions and other fees payable by the Company

in connection with the listing, were estimated to be HK$24.5 million.

For details, please refer to the paragraph headed “Use of Proceeds”
in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual

report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee with terms of
reference in compliance with Rules 5.28 to 5.33 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The primary duties of the audit committee include
the review and supervision of the financial reporting process, the
internal monitoring system and risk management system of the
Group. As at the date of this annual report, the audit committee has
three members comprising Mr. Chan Cheong Tat, Mr. Wong Wing
Keung Meyrick and Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony (chairman), the three

independent non-executive Directors.
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

In the opinion of the Directors, except for the deviation from
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Group has no material deviation
from the CG Code as set forth in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing
Rules throughout the accounting period covered by this annual
report. Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Fu is both the Chairman
and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. In view that Mr.
Fu has been assuming day-to-day responsibilities in operating and
managing the Group, the Board believes that with the support of
Mr. Fu’'s extensive experience and knowledge in the business of
the Group, vesting the roles of both Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer of the Company in Mr. Fu strengthens the solid and
consistent leadership and thereby allows for efficient business

planning and decision which is in the best interest to the Group.

The Directors consider that the deviation from provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code is appropriate in such circumstances. Notwithstanding
the above, the Board is of the view that this management structure
is effective for the Group’s operations, and sufficient checks and

balances are in place.

The Directors are committed to achieving high standards of
corporate governance with a view to safeguarding the interests of
the shareholders as a whole. The principal corporate governance
practices adopted by the Company is set out in the section headed

“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to enhancing environmental protection to
minimize the impact of its activities on the environment. It is the
policy of the Group to promote clean operation and strives to making
the most efficient use of resources in its operations, and minimizing
wastes and emission. Details are set out in Environmental, Social

and Governance Report on pages 56 to 94 of this annual report.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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REPORT OF DIRECTORS
EEERE

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s operations are
mainly carried out by the subsidiaries of the Company in Hong Kong
and the PRC. The Group has complied in material respects with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
business and operation of the Group. There was no material breach
of or non-compliance with the applicable laws and regulations

committed by the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

There is no material subsequent event undertaken by the Company

or the Group after 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2021 have been audited by Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited,
who will retire at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting (the
“AGM”) and offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution will
be proposed at the forthcoming AGM of the Company to re-appoint

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the auditor of the Company.

By order of the Board

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited

Fu Chun Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 June 2021
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERB®RSE

INTRODUCTION, ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE POLICIES

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group” or “we”)
is a vertically integrated jeweller based in Hong Kong. The Group
is primarily engaged in the retail of its own products through its
network of seven retail stores under the brand name of “Chong
Fai Jewellery (BI#E¥KE )" strategically located in Kowloon and the
New Territories. Being vertically integrated, the Group possesses
the means to control the diversity, quality and pricing of its own
jewellery designs produced in-house at its production facility in
Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”). The Group’s principal products are jewellery products,

including gem-set jewellery and gold jewellery products.

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the “ESG
Report”) summarises the environmental, social and governance
(“ESG”) initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and

demonstrates its commitment to sustainable development.

The Group adheres to the management policies of sustainable ESG
development. We are also committed to handling the Group’s ESG
affairs effectively and responsibly, which is integrated as one of the
core components of our business strategy as we believe this is the

key to our continuous success in the future.
The ESG Governance Structure

The Group has established the ESG Taskforce (the “Taskforce”).
The Taskforce comprises core members from different departments
and is responsible for collecting relevant information on our ESG
aspects for preparing the ESG Report. The Taskforce reports
to the Board of Directors (the “Board”), assists in identifying
and evaluating the Group’s ESG risks and the effectiveness of
the internal control mechanisms. The Taskforce also examines
and evaluates our performances in different aspects such as
environment, health and safety, labour standards and product
responsibilities in the ESG aspects. The Board sets up a general
direction for the Group’s ESG strategies, ensuring the effectiveness

in the control of its risks and internal control mechanisms.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERB®WSE

SCOPE OF REPORTING

Unless specified otherwise, the ESG Report covers the Group’s
operating segments, including seven retail stores under the brand
name of “Chong Fai Jewellery” which are strategically located
in Kowloon and the New Territories in Hong Kong, office located
in Hung Hum and the production facility in Shenzhen. The ESG
Report covers the Group’s policies, compliance issues as well as
key performance indicators (“KPI”) in two subject areas, namely,
environmental and social of the above segments under the Group’s
operation from 1 April 2020 to 31 March 2021. We will continue
to expand the scope of disclosure in the future as the Group’s
data collection system and sustainable development work further

develop.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

The ESG Report has been prepared in compliance with all
applicable provisions set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Reporting Guide”)
contained in Appendix 20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

For the Group’s corporate governance practices, please refer
to pages 21 to pages 35 for the section “Corporate Governance

Report” contained in the Group’s 2020/21 Annual Report.

REPORTING PERIOD

The ESG Report describes the ESG activities, challenges and
measures taken by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2021.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE HERERB®RSE

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group values its stakeholders and their views related to its
business and ESG issues. In order to understand and address
stakeholders’ concerns, we communicate with our key stakeholders,
including but not limited to shareholders and investors, customers
and business partners, employees, suppliers, regulatory bodies
and government authorities, and media and the public through
different channels such as conferences and electronic platforms.
In formulating operational strategies and ESG measures, the Group
takes into account stakeholders’ expectations and strives to improve
our performance through mutual cooperation to create greater value

for society.

FhESHR

AEBEERFOHEREHAREEERIRE £
ERERFENER - REMREERMDERT
FHAKERIZHNE(BREATRRER
REEE BPREERM BT HER B
ERBT#E  REBEARE)ATFRREE
B PImEE BT FAE o EHIFTLERRE R
R @ REREER AEESEZRIHNE
MEE  ERRHAFEAKETHNERR
B RHEmEEAEE-

Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns

Communication Channels

environment
. BEZ2NIIERE

F0E HMEREE BEBERE
Shareholders and o Return on investment o General meeting and other shareholder
investors . HE B H meetings
PR KIS EE . Corporate governance o BFERghEMBERAS
. BEESR . Financial reports
. Business compliance . Mg RE
. EBERMT . Announcements and circulars
J NERBE
o Website
. #uh
Customers and business o High quality products and o Customer satisfaction survey
partners services . ERPMEERAE
BEPREEEH . = m 8 K E m AR e Customer service team
. Protect the rights of . B P RS E XK
customers . Customer support hotline and email
s REZP#EZR o EFERGME T
Employees o Employees’ compensation o Trainings, seminars and briefing
8T and benefits sessions
. 8 TH# i FE R o I HEEMERE
° Career development o Regular performance reviews
o BIXERE o EHEMGHL
. Health and safety working
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Stakeholders

Expectations and Concerns

Communication Channels

0E MEREE BERE
Suppliers o Fair and open procurement o Supplier management meetings and
AR . N RA A events

. Sustainable sourcing . HEREESHRNEH

o ARENKRE

o Supplier audit
U HEEEZR

° Procurement manager
o IREBKIE
Regulatory bodies and . Compliance with laws and . Compliance manager
government authorities regulations . AR
EEE M BT S . BPEEER . On-site inspections
. Support economic . RSwE
development o Project manager of regulatory bodies
. X E R . BEEMEIAE R
Media and the public ° Involvement in communities o Community activities and partner
HESHEAR . G ! programs
. Business compliance . HEREBME ER T E
s EBARM e Media
. Environmental protection . e
awareness o ESG reports
. RIRE . BB @ RERWRE
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HBREARS

MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT ERHRT

The management and staff of the Group’s respective major AEESETERENTIEEES THERHERE
operations have participated in the preparation of the ESG Report to R - BB AEE R EBEERRXERA
assist the Group in reviewing our operations and identifying relevant FARE e REREE X W HEREEHEA
ESG issues and assess the importance of related matters to our EENEBUARSHEOENEZ M  BREBELTH
businesses and stakeholders. Based on the assessed significant FIRE e MEREESIE  REMS @A

ESG issues, a data collection questionnaire was prepared to collect SEBEEBFIREB B EER -
information from relevant departments and business units of the
Group.

The following is a matrix showing the Group’s material ESG topics in UWTAAREMSBBASBEZRE tELE
the ESG Report: A ARk

B

AEREREERARARNER M

Fian Materiality Matrix of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited

Tk FoRE M R B2
0006
00
o0
©006

LEVEL OF INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS’ ASSESSMENTS AND DECISIONS

HIFHER

w
E3

o

L
Q
=

Lféiw HHEH  REME SNEETHE
LEVEL OF SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

B HBREARE

MATERIAL ESG TOPICS B - HEREAREEERE

1. Emission management 2. Waste management
e E 2 BEEYE R

8. Water management 4. Energy management
KRERE R BERE R

5. Use of packaging materials 6. Working environment
BEMEER THERE

7. Remuneration and benefits 8. Recruitment, promotion and dismissal
¥R A B2 - B RRE

9. Equal opportunities 10. Internal health and safety management
FERE NEBREE R 22 B8

11. Safety production 12.  Training management
TEREE ElE R

13.  Supply chain management 14. Quality assurance
HEEER BERE

15.  Protection of intellectual property (“IP”) Rights 16. Customer services
FARERE ([ HIMERE | RE BF RS

17. Advertising and labelling 18. Protection of privacy
[& R FLBS (R &

19.  Anti-corruption 20. Corporate social responsibility
RE&S rEHSRME

The Group confirmed that it has established appropriate and AREFEREHIRE HEREAEERIASE

effective management policies and internal control systems for ESG EEBKEIERE MNP IR Zar » WHERPTH

issues and confirmed that the disclosed contents are in compliance BANRFEIRE e kEaREiEsIfNESk -

with the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.

CONTACT US BRI P9 B A%

The Group welcomes stakeholders to provide their opinions and AREEEDZENERESERNESZR - BETAR
suggestions. You can provide valuable advice in respect of the ESG ApESEArHERR T ANKRAEREEES
Report or our performances in sustainable development by email: R WEH = info@chongfaijewellery.com ©

info@chongfaijewellery.com.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RE -HE8RERRS

A.

ENVIRONMENTAL

Al.

Emissions

The Group adheres to the strategy of sustainable
development in its operations. With the aim to
reduce energy consumption and greenhouse gas
("GHG”) emissions, the Group has always been
exploring protection operating models of less impact
to the environment, recognising the importance of
environmental management, and striving to protect the
environment in order to fulfil the Group’s commitment to
social responsibility.

The Group’s mission is to minimise the pollution to
the environment, make continuous improvement,
and comply with relevant environmental laws and
regulations. To achieve so, we have identified the
opportunities to reduce exhaust gas emissions,
wastewater discharge, water use, waste generation and
disposal, as well as energy consumption by analysing
the environmental risks within our operations, and
conducted regular monitoring to ensure the issues were
well managed.

The Group closely follows the latest national and
regional environmental protection laws and regulations,
thereby focusing on strengthening environmental
protection measures to comply with related local laws
and regulations and fully implement environmental
policies. The Group complies with applicable laws
and regulations, including “Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on Environmental
Impact Assessment”, “Administrative Regulations
on the Environmental Protection of Construction
Projects”, “Category-based Administration Catalogue
for Environmental Impact Assessment of Construction
Projects”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention and
Control of Atmospheric Pollution”, “Water Pollution
Prevention and Control Law of the PRC”, “Law of
PRC on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Noise Pollution”, “Law of the PRC on the Prevention
and Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid
Waste”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC”, “Regulations
on Administration of Precursor Chemicals” and Hong
Kong’s “Waste Disposal Ordinance” etc.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did
not have any violation of relevant local environmental
laws and regulations in relation to exhaust gas and
GHG emissions, water and land discharge, and the
generation of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes that

have a significant impact on the Group.
Emission Management
Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group has generated limited amount of exhaust
gas emissions in its production facility. To mitigate
the exhaust gas emissions, the Group has engaged
independent qualified inspector to monitor and test the
water, air, soil, and other environmental conditions of its
production facility. It has also implemented its emission
control guidelines for cleaner production, for example,
dust filtering system, filtering system with activated
carbon absorbent and exhaust scrubber system were
installed to treat air pollutants which were mainly the
fugitive dust emissions and volatile organic compounds,
and met the legal emission standard before releasing
to the atmosphere. The installed systems, not only,
effectively reduce the exhaust gas emissions, but also

protect its workers’ health.
GHG Emissions

The major sources of the Group’s GHG emissions are
direct GHG emissions (Scope 1) from combustion
of petrol for transportation and energy indirect GHG

emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity.

The Group actively adopts electricity conservation and
energy saving measures to reduce GHG emissions,

including:

o Adopts environmental conservation and energy
saving measures. Relevant measures are
described under “Energy Management” in Aspect
A2;

o Conducts monthly vehicle maintenance to reduce
fuel consumption effectively, thereby reducing

carbon and exhaust gas emissions;
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o Conducts annual inspections to ensure the

compliance with national emission standards; and

o Reduces the number of business trips through
utilising electronic communication such as video

conferences and WeChat meetings.

The employee’s awareness of reducing GHG emissions
has been increased through these GHG mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s total
GHG emissions' was approximately 169.09 tCO,e,
and its intensity’® was approximately 1.88 tCO,e
per employee.® The Group’s direct GHG emissions
(Scope 1) from petrol consumption of vehicles was
approximately 6.29 tCO,e, and the energy indirect GHG
emissions (Scope 2) from purchased electricity was

approximately 162.80 tCO.e.

Notes:

1. GHG emission data is presented in terms of carbon
dioxide equivalent and are based on, but not limited to,
“The Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting
and Reporting Standards” issued by the World Resources
Institute and the World Business Council for Sustainable
Development, “How to prepare an ESG Report —
Appendix II: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”
issued by the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
latest released emission factors of China’s regional power
grid basis and CLP Power Limited, “Global Warming
Potential Values” from IPCC Fifth Assessment Report
(AR5).

2. As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 90 full-time
employees in total which includes the office, retail
shops and production facility. The data is also used for
calculating other intensity data.

3. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s total
GHG emissions was approximately 181.96 tCO,e, and its

intensity was approximately 1.80 tCO,e per employee.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Waste Management
Hazardous Waste Handling Method
Production facility

The Group produces a wide range of wastes across the
operations; therefore, it has established comprehensive
procedures to manage wastes — no matter whether they
are recyclable, non-recyclable or hazardous. Hazardous
wastes such as flammable materials (such as waste
cloth, waste gloves, waste cotton swabs and waste
cotton yarn) and corrosive wastes (such as container,
hydrochloric acid, electroplating rinse-wastewater) are
generally required more efforts and clear guidance
provided for the workers to follow including wastes
segregation, labelling, storage and transportation. The
Group has established guidelines in governing the
management and disposal of hazardous wastes, all the
hazardous wastes are collected by licensed contractors
for treatment, and complied with “The Measures for the
Administration of Permit for Operation of Dangerous
Wastes”. The Group purchases any precursor chemical
should report the type and quantity in demand, prior to
the purchase, to the public security authority of the local
people’s government at the county level in compliance
with the “Administrative Regulations on Precursor
Chemicals”. To promote waste reduction and recycling
practices, the Group encourages its employees to
recycle the recyclable materials and reuse useful parts
of the waste such as jewellery pieces and packaging to

divert the waste from landfills.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s
production of related products has decreased, leading
to the amount of hazardous wastes generated was

regarded as immaterial.
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Non-hazardous Waste Handling Method

The Group adheres to the waste management principles
and strives to properly manage and dispose all
wastes produced in its business activities. The waste
management practice has been complied with related
environmental protection laws and regulations. The non-
hazardous wastes generated by the Group’s business
activities mainly consist of paper, ink cartridges and
waste battery. After collection and sorting by the Group,
such wastes will eventually be collected and processed
by general waste service providers. Recyclables (such

as paper and ink cartridges) will be recycled.

The Group regularly monitors the consumption of paper,
ink cartridge and battery, and implements various
reduction measures. The Group emphasises the waste
management principle of “Reduce, Reuse and Recycle”
to encourage employees to sort waste at source and
recycle to achieve the objectives in waste reduction in
its operations. The Group maintains a high standard
in waste reduction, educates employees about the
importance of sustainable development and provides
relevant supports in order to enhance their skills and

knowledge in sustainability.

The Group has implemented measures to handle such
non-hazardous wastes and launched different reduction

initiatives, including but not limited to:

o Educated all employees on reducing the use of

disposable items such as plastic tableware;

o Purchased microwaves in offices to encourage
employees to take lunch boxes by themselves
instead of ordering takeaway food, which could

largely reduce the waste of food packages;
o Advocated the reusing of office stationeries; and

o Provided glass cups to clients and guests instead

of disposable ones.
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Paper Management

Office

One of the main natural resources consumed by the

Group is paper from its office printing machines. To

minimise the use of paper, the Group has put great

efforts into the implementation of following initiatives:

Chosen suppliers with more environmentally
friendly paper source, so as to indirectly reduce
the amount of tree losses while consuming the

same amount of paper;

Promoted paperless office, and disseminate
information by electronic means (i.e. via email or

e-bulletin boards) as much as possible;

Set duplex printing as the default mode for most

network printers when printouts are needed;

Disseminated the idea of “Think before print” by
using posters and stickers in offices to remind the

staff of avoiding unnecessary printings;

Reconsidered boxes and trays as containers
beside photocopier to collect single-sided paper

for reuse and recycling;

Used the back of old single-sided documents for

printing or as draft paper;
Recycled used stationery whenever possible; and

Used as less as paper whenever possible.

Retail shops

The Group’s retail shops has also consumed paper,

which are mainly the sales receipt notes. To minimise

the use of paper, the Group has put great efforts into

the implementation of following measures:

Tried to minimise printing excessive sales receipts

notes whenever possible;

Effectively distributed the sales receipts notes
to each retail shops according to their sales

performance; and
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° Used as less as sales receipts notes whenever

possible.

Through the above non-hazardous waste reduction
measures, the employee’s awareness in waste reduction
has been enhanced. For the year ended 31 March
2021, the Group’s total non-hazardous waste amount
was approximately 3.66 tonnes, its intensity was
approximately 0.04 tonnes per employee; in which
approximately 0.41 tonnes were paper, approximately
3.16 tonnes were ink cartridge and approximately 0.09

tonnes were waste batteries.*
Note:

4. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s total
non-hazardous waste were approximately 0.44 tonnes
of paper, approximately 2.67 tonnes ink cartridge and
approximately 0.28 tonnes of waste battery.

Wastewater

The Group’s major use of water occurs at its production
facility in the course of jewellery processing. The
wastewater may contain acids, alkali, various chemicals
and heavy metals. At the production facility in Shenzhen,
there is an onsite facility for neutralization, deionization
and sedimentation of the wastewater. The treated water
is certified safe to discharge into the municipal network,
and the slag is properly handled by licensed operators.
The Group’s operation complies with the laws and
regulations, including but not limited to “Water Pollution
Control Ordinance” of Hong Kong, “the Law of PRC on
Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”.

Since the office and retail shops’ wastewater discharged
by the Group will be disposed through the municipal
sewage pipe network to the regional water purification
plant, its water consumption amount is considered as
the amount of sewage discharged. The data on the
discharge of sewage will be described in the section

“Water Management” in Aspect A2.
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A2.

Use of Resources

The Group upholds and promotes the principle of
effective use of resources so as to monitor the potential
environmental impacts in our business operations.
Through the 3Rs principles, namely, “reduce, reuse
and recycle”, we promote green office and operation
environment, and minimise the environmental impacts of

the Group.

As mentioned in Aspect A1, the Group has set out
related environmental management policies and
procedures on resource usages such as water,
electricity and petrol. Monthly usage statistics are
used for focused management of the main energy
consumption equipment and regulation of equipment

operation for effective resource usage.
Energy Management

The major energy consumption of the Group in daily
operation are electricity consumption in the operation

and petrol consumption via transportation.

The Group has formulated rules and regulations to
achieve the goal of electricity saving and efficient
consumption. The relevant specific measures are as

follows:

o Selects energy-efficient equipment and electrical
appliances for production facility, office and shops

electricity use;

o Forbids the use of large-power electrical
appliances such as heaters, kettles, refrigerators,
etc., to avoid electricity overload. Employees
should turn off all electrical appliances that come

with them when they leave office;

o Turns off all unnecessary lights, air conditioners,
computers and other office equipment in office
areas, conference rooms and corridors when they

are not in use to avoid waste of electricity;

o Standardises office, production facility and even
retail shop lighting (when feasible) with energy

saving lights and LED lights;
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o Maintains indoor temperature at an optimal,

comfortable level to conserve energy;

o Switches off shop lightings by 11 p.m. as a
commitment to the “Charter on External Lighting”

organised by the Hong Kong Government;

o Regulates the use of air conditioners strictly to

prevent waste of electricity;

o Turns off computers (host and monitor) when
employees go out for a long time, and switch
computers to standby or sleep mode when

employees go out for lunch; and

o Enhances the maintenance and overhaul of
equipment, maintain the best condition of
all electronic equipment for effective use of

electricity.

As a result, the employee’s awareness was increased
by implementing these electricity and energy mitigation

measures.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the total energy
consumption of the Group was approximately
340,002.24 kWh and its intensity was approximately
3,777.80 kWh per employee.” Petrol consumption from
vehicles was equivalent to approximately 22,914.24
kKWh®, and electricity consumption was approximately
317,088 kWh.

Notes:

5. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s total
energy consumption was approximately 371,918.43 kWh,
and its intensity was approximately 3,682.36 kWh per

employee.

6. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group’s petrol
consumption was approximately 2,364.40 litres.
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Water Management

The Group’s major water consumption is from the
production facility, office and retail shops’ fresh-water
consumption. The Group encourages all employees
and customers to develop the habit of conscious water
conservation. The Group has been enhancing its water
conservation promotion. Environmental messages are
posted on pantry and washrooms to remind employees
to save water. The employees’ water conservation
awareness has been increased with the above water-

saving measures.

Due to the Group’s business nature and its operations
are mainly in the cities, while the mining and
alchemy processes are performed by subcontracted
organisations, the procurement of suitable water sources

is not relevant to the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the total water
consumption of the Group was approximately 1,175.84
cubic meters, and its intensity was approximately 13.06

cubic meters per employee.’
Note:

7. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group’s total
water consumption was approximately 1,554.84 cubic
meters, and its intensity was approximately 15.39 cubic
meters per employee.

Use of Packaging Materials

Since the Group has retail business, it uses packaging
materials including paper box, paper bag and jewellery
pouch. The Group is actively promoting the packaging

reduction measures, including:

. Tried to minimise excessive packaging when

customers make a purchase;

. Encouraged the use of reusable shopping bags
and offered customers an incentive for using
a reusable shopping bag instead of plastic or

paper; and

. Promoted buy-back programs or upcycling
programs to encourage new sales with a trade-in

of old gold that can be recycled and reused.
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A3.

HE

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
consumed approximately 0.64 tonnes of packaging
materials, which is approximate 0.007 tonnes per
employee. There were no paper boxes being consumed,
the consumption packaging materials consisted
of approximately 0.42 tonnes of paper bags and
approximately 0.22 tonnes of pouch bags. ®

Notes:

8. For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's
packaging material consumption were approximately 0.40
tonnes, approximately 0.22 tonnes of paper bags and

approximately 0.18 tonnes of pouch bags.
The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group’s operations generate limited impact on its
environment due to its business nature. The Group still
pursues the best practice for environmental protection.
In addition to complying with related environmental laws
and regulations and international standards for proper
natural environment preservation, it has integrated
the concept of environmental protection and natural
resource conservation into its internal management
and daily operations in order to achieve the aim of

environmental sustainability.
Working Environment

The Group strives to provide employees with a
comfortable working environment to enhance working
efficiency. The Group maintains production facility,
office and retail shops discipline and environmental
hygiene, and ensures personal area and common areas
are neat and tidy. Employees monitor the conditions of
the community and workplace from time to time, set up
emergency plans in advance for risk mitigation, adopt
preventive and control measures for problem and risk
identification, and deal with the identified problems
and potential risks in time to maintain a sound working

environment.
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On the other hand, the Group regularly monitors
and measures indoor air quality of the workplace. It
maintains indoor air quality and filters pollutants and
dust via air purification equipment and regular cleansing

of the air conditioning system.

B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employment

Employees are the greatest and most valuable asset
of the Group and its core competitive advantage.
Therefore, its success highly depends on the ability
to attract, cultivate and retain employees. The Group
adheres to a people-oriented approach, standardises
labour employment management to respect and protect
the legitimate interests of every employee. At the
same time, the Group strives to ensure its employees’
occupational health and safety for protecting labour
rights, stimulating employee’s enthusiasm, initiatives

and creativity to build a harmonious staff relationship.

The Group actively complies with labour laws and
regulations, including but not limited to, the “Labour
Law of the PRC”, “Labour Contract Law of the PRC”,
“Regulations on the Implementation of the Labour
Contract Law of the PRC”, “Social Insurance Law of the
PRC”, “Interim Regulations on Levying Social Insurance
Premiums”, “Provisional Measures on Maternity
Insurance of Enterprise Employees”, “Regulation on
Unemployment Insurance”, “Regulation on Work-Related
Injury Insurances” and Hong Kong’'s “Employment
Ordinance”. The Group has accordingly formulated a
series of related personnel management policy to guide
employees to actively integrate personal pursuits into

the long-term of the Group.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance of laws and
regulations in respect of employment related issues
including but not limited to recruitment and dismissal,
remuneration and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination and

benefits and welfares.
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As at 31 March 2021, the Group had 90 full-time
employees in total, the following shows the details of the

Group’s human resources information:

RIRIE S B T AR

32%  41% —
68%
W 3% Male M 30757 AT Below 30 years old
W %M Female W 30-50 7% 30-50 years old

51k 51 years old or above

Remuneration and Benefits

The Group has established a fair, reasonable and
competitive remuneration system, and paid employees
based on the principles of fairness, competitiveness,
motivation, reasonableness and legitimacy. The
remuneration package of employees includes salary,
bonuses, allowances and commission. Salespersons are
entitled to guaranteed commission based on retail sales
amount, and will also be entitled to further commissions
subject to whether they can meet the sales target laid
out by the Group. Generally, employee salaries are
determined based on the employees’ qualification,
experience, position and seniority. The Group believes
that its remuneration package is competitive in the

market.

The Group has signed and executed the labour
contracts with employees in accordance with the
“Labour Contract Law of the PRC”, and Hong
Kong’s “Employment Ordinance”. The signing rate
of labour contracts is 100%. In accordance with
the law and ordinance, the Group pays “five social
insurance and one housing fund” for its employees,
namely, endowment insurance, medical insurance,
unemployment insurance, employment injury insurance,
maternity insurance and housing provident fund, to

ensure employees are covered by social insurance.
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The Group earnestly safeguards the legitimate interests
of labour in accordance with the requirement of the
national and local laws and regulations of the “Labour
Law of the PRC”. The Group respects the rights of
employees to rest and leave and the Group believes that
sufficient rest is good for employees to work efficiently
and so as increase productivity. The Staff Regulations
has issued to the employees to regulate the procedure
applying annual leave. The Group has also followed
the “Regulation on Paid Annual Leave for Employees”
and other relevant regulations, regarding the policies
about working hours, working overtimes and wages,
and paid annual leave. The Group puts emphasis on the

employees’ rights of rest periods and holidays.
Recruitment, Promotion and Dismissal

The Group has continuously established and improved
its recruitment system. In the recruitment process, the
Group has standardised the hiring procedures and
recruitment principles, adhering to the hiring principles
of morality, knowledge, ability, experience and physique
applicable to the job positions. In such ways to
continuously attract talents by upholding principles of

justice, fairness and openness.

The Group has implemented a fair and open assessment
system to evaluate employees’ working performance and
internal assessment results. The results would be the
basis for employee promotion. The Group also creates
opportunities for their promotion and development as

well as explore their potential at work.

The Group specifies the basis and procedures for
staff promotion, transfer and demotion management,
and regulations for departure process to protect the
interests of both employees and the Group and reduce

the conflicts in between.
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B2.

Equal Opportunities

The Group strictly complies with national and local
standards by adopting a fair, equitable and open
requirement process and develop relevant system files
to eliminate discrimination in the recruitment processes.
Employees face no discrimination regardless of race,
sex, colour, age, family background, ethnic tradition,
religion, physical fitness and nationality and thus
allowing them to enjoy fair treatment in every aspect
including recruitment, remuneration, training and

promotion.
Health and Safety

The Group highly recognises the importance of health
and safety of the employees. The Group commits to
provide employees with a healthy, safe and comfortable
working environment and strives to eliminate potential
health and safety hazards at the workplace. The Group
strictly enforces relevant laws and regulations such as
the “Labour Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on the
Prevention and Treatment of Occupational Diseases”,
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”, “Work Safety Law of the PRC” and
“Fire Protection Law of the PRC”, “Occupational Safety

and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong, etc.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did
not aware of any accidents that resulted in death
or significant physical injury and no claims or
compensation were paid to its employees due to
such events. No material non-compliance of laws and
regulations relevant to health and safety of employees

were found.
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Internal Health and Safety Management

The Group maintains an internal audit and inspection
system to ensure the health and safety of customers
and employees during its operation in compliance with
“Measures for Declaration of Project with Occupational
Hazards of the PRC”. The review processes are
designed to ensure the workplace is under constant
monitoring, so as to identify and correct the deficiencies
that do not meet the standards. The Group regularly
inspects and reviews the safety issues of production
facility, offices and retail shops and actively encourages
employees to report health and safety incidents and

risks.

On the other hand, the Group provides staff with health
and safety notifications to provide related information
and increase their awareness. The Group also arranges
body checks for employees, particularly pay attention
to those who have abnormal examination result and

provide treatment advice.
Safety Production

The safety issue is highly concerned by the Group. The
Group has also cooperated with independent consulting
firm to ensure the production safety by establishing
GB/T 33000-2016 “Guideline of China Occupational
Safety and Health Management System”, and AQ/T9006-
2010 “Basic Norms for Work Safety Standardization
of enterprises” which in compliance with “Work Safety
Law of the PRC”. The mishandling of machinery in the
jewellery production may cause injuries. To safeguard
the workers, inspection on production facilities would
take place on regular basis to prevent the safety hazard.
The inspection includes the proper usage of safety
equipment aligning with safety production procedures,
and the cleanliness of the production facility. Any
hidden safety danger would be immediately treated by
the technical staff to protect the personal safety of the

workers.
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Fire Safety

The Group has also formulated fire safety system in
accordance with the “Fire Protection Law of the PRC”
and “Provisions on the Supervision and Administration
of Fire Protection of Construction Projects”. To raise
employees’ fire prevention awareness, fire drills are
conducted regularly and staff are instructed to the
correct use of fire extinguishers and the Group’s
fire evacuation plans are improved. In response to
emergencies, different places of the Group’s workplaces
are also equipped and clearly located with first aid kits

and fire extinguishers.
Other Health and Safety Measures

With the outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus
(*COVID-19"), the Group is highly aware of its potential
health and safety impacts on employees. The Group
has strengthened its operating environmental hygiene
to ensure a healthy and safe working environment.
We have also taken precautionary measures, such as
performing temperature checks before entering retail
stores, offices and production facilities, and ensuring
that adequate disinfection supplies such as masks
and hand sanitiser are provided in our operations.
In addition, the production facility in Shenzhen has
followed the instructions of the government to resume
work gradually and implemented flexible working

arrangements.
Development and Training

The Group aims to build a strong sense of community
and a positive environment for its employees to enhance
employee loyalty and work dedication. The Group
believes that its ability to recruit and retain experienced
and skilled labour is key to growth and development.
The Group provides employee orientation to its new
employees to explain the Group’s internal rules and to
enhance employees’ safety awareness. The Group also

provides various types of employee training regularly.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Training Management

The management formulates the Group’s annual
training proposal and conducts regular reviews on
the effectiveness of the training courses to improve
the quality of the training system. The Group provides
relevant on-the-job training for each employee to
facilitate their business abilities. For examples, the
salespersons in the retail shops would be trained
with the sales skills and etiquette with facing the
customers; the workers in the production facility would
be trained with the advanced skills. Through various
trainings, employees are able to strengthen related
professional knowledge, professions and management
skills. It benefits the Group by enhancing employees’
professional skills and attracting more talents. The
Group also provides subsidies, remuneration and
promotion incentives to encourage employees to

participate in external training courses.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, all employees of the
Group have attended trainings. The average training
hours for male and female were approximately 12 hours
and 13 hours respectively, in which employees with
managerial grade or above attained approximately 12
hours of trainings on average, while employees with
managerial grade or below attained approximately

13hours of trainings on average.

The Group also recognises the importance of
occupational safety training to ensure employees’
personal safety. The relevant policies have been

described in details in Aspect B2 “Health and Safety”.
Labour Standards
Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group complies with the “Labour Law of the PRC”,
“Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour” of

PRC, and Hong Kong’s “Employment Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was not
aware of any material non-compliance with any laws
and regulations in relation to the prevention of child or

forced labour.
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wE

The Group strictly prohibits the use of any child and
forced labour in the PRC and Hong Kong operations.
The Group demands all new employees to provide true
and accurate personal information when they join the
Group. The recruitment staff will stringently verify their
information, including body check results, academic
certificates, identity card and hometown information.
Regular reviews and checking are conducted to guard
against child or forced labour in the operations. The
Group also avoids using the supplies and services of
those suppliers and contractors with records of using
child or forced labour. Furthermore, employees work
overtime on a voluntary basis, and the Group promises
not to force employees to work overtime to prevent any
breach of labour standards. The Group also prohibits
any punishments, management methods and behaviours
involving verbal abuse, physical punishment, physical
abuse, oppression, sexual harassment, etc. against its

employees for any reason.
Supply Chain Management

The Group highly values the importance of potential
environmental and social risks management in its supply
chain. For the effective monitoring of procurement
procedures and cost control, increasing management
transparency in procurement, the Group has established
a stringent and standardised procurement system and a
systematic selection process for suppliers. For the year
ended 31 March 2021, the Group had approximately 20

suppliers, all of them were from the PRC.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Supply Chain Management

The Group expects suppliers to fulfil the standards
in terms of environment, society and corporate
governance, commercial ethics and quality. The Group
selects suppliers that create positive influences on
environmental and social matters, the scopes of which
mainly includes operational compliance, employees’
safety and health, social responsibility, business ethics
and environmental protection. Since the Group does
not enter into long-term contracts with suppliers, it can
switch the suppliers flexibly. The Group will terminate
cooperation at instant with those suppliers who may
cause severe contamination or seriously social harms or
have caused material environmental or social incidents.
With the above assessment processes, the Group can
minimise potential environmental and social risks of

supply chain.
Fair and Open Procurement

The Group’s procurement procedures strictly abide by
the “Bidding Law of the PRC” and related regulations.
The Group makes procurement on an open, fair and
impartial basis without any discrimination against
any particular supplier nor corruption and bribery.
The Group sources the raw materials of diamonds,
gemstones and precious metals from suppliers at stable
and competitive market prices. The Group believes it
does not rely on any single supplier for sourcing any
raw material to material extent. In addition, the Group
forbids employees and any parties who are related
to the relevant supplier to take part in the subject
procurement. The Group stresses the integrity of its
suppliers, it only selects those with good business track
records and no material non-compliances or unethical

behaviours.
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Product Responsibility

The Group actively safeguards the quality of the
products with its internal control process. The Group
also maintains on-going communication with the
customers to ensure understanding and satisfaction
of their demands and expectations, and to improve its
service quality by learning their satisfactory rates. The
Group earnestly complies with laws and regulations
in relation to consumers’ rights such as the “General
Principles of the Civil Law of the PRC”, “Product Quality
Law of the PRC”, “Law of the PRC on Protection of
Consumer Rights and Interests”, “Tort Law of the PRC”,
“Law of PRC on Imported and Exported Commodity
Inspection”, “Advertising Law of the PRC”, “Patent Law
of the PRC”, and Hong Kong’s “Personal Data (Privacy)

Ordinance” and “Trade Descriptions Ordinance”.

For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with any
laws and regulations in relation to privacy issues
and compensation regarding health and safety,
advertisement and labelling on products and service
provided. For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group
was not aware of any products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons, nor receiving

material complaints related to products and service.
Quality Assurance

The quality of the jewellery is one of the key factors
that customers highly concern. The Group has a quality
monitoring requirement and quality control inspection
before the delivery of the products. The Group has
set up a centralized Quality Control Team, which is
responsible for monitoring the entire production process.
The Group performs quality control in each stage,
ensuring the products are with satisfactory quality. We
would have overall inspection in the last stage to ensure
the product is made according to the specification
stated. The Group would also conduct random sample
checking by the experienced professionals on the
finished jewellery products to ensure that it is up to

standard.
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The quality of products is reliable and has been ensured
by different organisations. Hong Kong Jewellers’ and
Goldsmiths’ Association and The Kowloon Pearls,
Precious stones, Jade, Gold and Silver Ornament
Merchants Association have recognised the quality of
our gold products with the “Quality Gold Mark”. Besides,
the Group is also recognized by the Quality Tourism
Services (“QTS”) Scheme of Hong Kong Tourism Board,
as the reliable retail store in Hong Kong. The products
are highly qualified to ensure customers would not
receive products that are substandard to safeguard the

consumers’ right.
Protection of IP Rights

The Group focuses on pioneer innovation in its own
jewellery design. The Group has sufficient and all-
rounded management system for IP. The Group
continuously strengthens the management of
trademark, domain right, designs and trade secrets
in the product development processes. The external
graphic designers, who outsourced for certain product
development stages, would be required to sign an
agreement to acknowledge that the designs produced
during the engagement are the IP of the Group. For
new employees, the Group focuses on training their
awareness of conserving trade secrets. The IP, which
mainly related to the trademark and designs, are well
protected by the Group and it values the intellectual

properties as the important assets of the Group.
Customer Services

The Group would provide after-sales service like
resizing of rings and complimentary cleaning services
to maintain a good relationship with customers. The
Group reviews all complaints from customers, suppliers
and partners in accordance with internal procedures
and guidelines, and appropriate follow-up measures
will be taken. If applicable, the Group will conduct
relevant investigations and generate case reports and
correcting action plans to resolve complaints and make
improvements accordingly. The Group believes that
complaints are good opportunities to get feedback
from the community and customers, so as to assure the

necessity of improving the services and policies.
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Advertising and Labelling

The Group has adopted a multi-channel advertising
strategy to promote the brand and improve the brand
image. The Group takes care of the advertisement and
labelling issues to ensure that only accurate products’
information would be published. Any misleading
message is prohibited for publishing after the strict

monitoring of the teams of professionals.
Protection of Privacy

The Group recognises the protection of customers’
and partners’ privacy is the key for success. Therefore,
protecting and maintaining customers’ privacy always
remain in the first priority of the Group. Security
measures have established to provide adequate
protection and encryption for all data and information
upon operation. At the same time, the Group has
implemented policies and procedures to the collection

and use of personal data.
Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is
the key to its continuous success. Therefore, the Group
stressed on anti-corruption work and system building,
devoted in creating a clean and transparent corporate
culture. It has already developed adequate codes to
ensure all employees (including directors) adhered to
the highest standards of business, professional and
ethical practices. The Group strictly complies with
the requirements under laws and regulations such as
the “Company Law of the PRC”, “The Tendering and
Bidding Law of the PRC”, “Interim Provisions on Banning
Commercial Bribery”, and Hong Kong’s “Prevention of

Bribery Ordinance”.

The Group’s major operation formulated such policies
on the control and prevention of bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering between shareholders and
related parties in each business operation and trade

activity.
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For the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group did not
aware of any material non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.
Anti-corruption

The Group has an anti-bribery function, which is
responsible for developing the overall framework of anti-
bribery, fraud and corruption policies and procedures.
It also guides and monitors the implementation of such
policies and procedures in different aspects of the
Group’s operation. Each of the Group’s subsidiaries
will immediately report any suspected bribery, fraud
and corruption to the person in charge of the Group’s
internal control. The internal control advisor was
engaged to perform internal control review on the Group
and determine the appropriate course of actions if

necessary.

The Group fully complies with relevant anti-money
laundering laws. The Group minimises the risk
of establishing relationships with individuals or
organisations involved in money laundering or terrorist
activities through “understanding customers” and

assessment procedures.
Community Investment

The Group believes in shouldering the responsibility
of contributing society. As a responsible corporate
citizen, the Group has fulfilled our social responsibilities
by being committed to supporting various charitable
and community activities. The Group hopes to
foster employees’ sense of social responsibility,
thus encouraging them to participate in charitable
activities during their work and spare time to make
greater contributions to the community. The Group
has also encouraged its employees to participate in
environmental and charitable activities, make donations
to assist underprivileged students and engage in social
services. The Group believes that the participation in
activities that repay society can increase its employees’

civic awareness and establish their correct values.
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Corporate Social Responsibility TEHEE

The Group has also joined different chambers of REBEMATTRNEE  UX
commerce to support the charity activities. The Group BEEZIFH AEBCOKANER
has become the members of Kowloon Chamber of Hehkfemenes  THX
Commerce and New Territory Chamber of Commerce EZEE AR RAE o BN ANEE
and has supported many of the charity activities to NAtpEANtHhSTEZTIRE
repay the community. Besides, the Group has also NY#EFESFEINBREENRE - KK
donated to the Youth Outreach’'s “YO! Let's Walk the EZEENFTLE  REFBE =k
Road” to support the service provided by the Youth e SHKEZAEMIER  AtRE
Outreach on rescuing the teenagers who are in needs. MIBIBELE BB - BBREEL S
The Group will seek opportunities to identify more =30

suitable projects and contribute to the community and

environment to bring positive progress to society.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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THE ESG REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX OF
THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED

ERBERZMERQIAN(RE 1
AMEES)DABRLIK

REY

Subject Areas, Aspects,

W5 BERESEEVNELSH

(a) BE: &

(b) ETHBEITABEAVENBREER
KRB E R

General Disclosures and KPls Description Section/Declaration
BE - —RIEERBEREVER it i1
Aspect A1: Emissions
EBEA1: HEBY
General Disclosure Information on: Emissions
(a) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to Exhaust Gas and GHG
emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste.
— MR ER BRFEROREREYN - MK LE | HEY

KPI A1.1 (“comply or explain”)

RS ERHEIE AL ([T D)

The types of emissions and respective
emissions data.

PER BB R ARR T AR -

Emissions — Emission Management,
Waste Management

P — BERE R  ERDEE

KPI'A1.2 (“comply or explain”)

R E SRR A 2 ([ NESTRLAREE )

GHG emissions in total (in tonnes) and
intensity.
BERBABNE UABAE) REE -

Emissions — Emission Management

e — PR E

KPI'A1.3 (“comply or explain”)

RSB MEIE A1.3 ([ NESFRLAREE D)

Total hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.
FEXAEREEDHEE UBHE)REE -

Emission — Waste Management
(not applicable — explained)
P — BEEWER(CNEAR — BERE)

KPI A1.4 (“comply or explain”)

RSB RHEIE A4 ([ NESTRLARIE D)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in
tonnes) and intensity.

PREEBERENES UNAE)RBE -

Emissions — Waste Management

BERY) — BERYEE

KPI A1.5 (“comply or explain”)

RSB MR IRE A1.5 ([ NESTRLARE D)

Description of reduction initiatives and
results achieved.

fidBUE BE BUE BV b R TS AR -

Emissions — Emission Management,
Waste Management

PERRY) — BERRETE - EEYEIR

KPI A1.6 (“comply or explain”)

BSEMIEIEAL.6 ([ NETRLARE D)

Description of how hazardous and non-
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction
initiatives and results achieved.

MR EERBEERYNTE  MIEE
EENEERTEHER -

Emissions — Waste Management

PERY) — BERYEE
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Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REERBREERER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect A2: Use of Resources
EBEA2: ERER

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw
materials.

BREAER(BIEEIR « KREAREME)
HIR e

Use of Resources

BIRE M

KPI A2.1 (“comply or explain”)

BSEMIERE A2 ([ TNETRLARE D)

Direct and/or indirect energy
consumption by type in total and
intensity.
RERESMERE R SHEEREFEER

Use of Resources — Energy
Management

BRER — geRER

KPI' A2.2 (“comply or explain”)
BRERBIEIZA2.2 ([ TEFRLARE])

Water consumption in total and intensity.
BFEKEREE -

Use of Resources — Water Management

BRER — KERERE

KPI A2.3 (“comply or explain”)

BSRE MR IR A2.3 ([ NETRLARE])

Description of energy use efficiency
initiatives and results achieved.

Tl BE R 2 ARz At B M ATIS AR -

Use of Resources — Energy
Management
BRER — gRER

KPI A2.4 (“comply or explain”)

BSERIEIREA2.4 ([ NETRLRRE D)

Description of whether there is any issue
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose,
water efficiency initiatives and results
achieved.
HSREGE /KR E R BEMERE - bARE
FHRAKM A E RPISRR

Use of Resources — Water Management

BRER — KERERE

KPI A2.5 (“comply or explain”)

BSE NIRRT A2.5 ([ NETRLARE])

Total packaging material used for
finished products (in tonnes) and with
reference to per unit produced.

R mAAEEM RS (UEE) R E
AEBEMSE -

Use of Resources — Use of Packaging

Materials

ERER — BEMEER

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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RE -HEKER

wE

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REERBEREERIER

Description

E:pud

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EHEA3 : BRERRARER

General Disclosure

—RRAE

Policies on minimizing the issuer’s
significant impact on the environment
and natural resources.
WRBETAHRRERRAEREREATE
HIER e

The Environment and Natural Resources

RIFENMANER

KPI A3.1 (“comply or explain”)

BRESIEIE AT ([TEFRLAREE])

Description of the significant impacts of
activities on the environment and natural
resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

B EHHRERRARERNERATE
NEFRMERGETENTE -

The Environment and Natural Resources

— Working Environment

RBRKRAER — TIERIR

Aspect B1: Employment
EEB1: EfE

General Disclosure

—RRIRE

Information on:
(a)
(b)

the policies; and

compliance with relevant laws

and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, antidiscrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

ML RE  BEREAN - TERE
BE - 2ok - FERE - REEARHEA
R RAgFIA) -

(@) BE &

(b) EFHBETABEATENERER
KR OIEERL

Employment

B

KPI B1.1

(“recommended disclosure”)

MsEMIEE B1.1 ([ZFRE]D

Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical
region.

RITR - RIBERE - FiRER Kbz E 5 H
EEEE -

Employment

B
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RE -HERERHRS
Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE - —RIEERBERENER it 5589

Aspect B2: Health and Safety
EEB2: #EHEZE

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  Anti-corruption compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the
issuer

relating to providing a safe working

environment and protecting employees

from occupational hazards.

Health and Safety

(“recommended disclosure”)

R AEEE B2.1 ([ KT )

fatalities.
ETAERIR ML A BRI -

— MR ERRMZE2TIHERERREEEBEEE |BREETS
HrEE
(a) HE: Rk
(b) EFHBTABEATEMNERER
KR OIEVERL -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related Health and Safety

[EE e

KPI B2.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

BERIEE B22 ([BERKE])

Lost days due to work injury.

ATHBERTIERS -

Health and Safety

[EE e

KPI B2.3

(“recommended disclosure”)

B EMIEIT B23 ([EZFRE]D)

Description of occupational health and
safety measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored.

R T IR B R R R R e 2 46 - AR
BRI RERAE -

Health and Safety

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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RE -#HE2KE

B E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REERBEREERIER

Description

E:pud

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B3: Development and Training

fEH B3 : /R &E

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’
knowledge and skills for discharging duties

at work. Description of training activities.

Development and Training

— AR ER ERRMEERIT ILIERBE N MBR KRN | BRESE
R o fiEFIEE -
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained Development and Training

(“recommended disclosure”)

R AEIER B3 ([ZEKE )

by gender and employee category
(e.g. senior management, middle
management).
RUEREEEEI(NESRERE - PRE
BEZ)EINZIEEE DL ©

Bty

KPI B3.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

BB MIEE B2 ([ZFRE]D

The average training hours completed

per employee by gender and employee

category.
IR RIEBRRE S - BRESTKEI
RS SlisE 2 g

Development and Training

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
EMEB4 : &I %A

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced

Labour Standards

labour.
— AR ER BRI IEE T HIs T LT R
(a) BE: R
(b) EFHBETABEATENERER
NI DI ERL
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review Labour Standards

(“recommended disclosure”)

M ERIEE B4 ([ZFRE]D

employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour.

fie st A T R S 1B DI eV e LA R B T R R )
BT o

& T %8|

KPI B4.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

BRENIEE B4.2 ([ EERE D)

Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered.

A B BUE AR IB N ERR B B B FTERER
B o

Labour Standards

&5 TR
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Subject Areas, Aspects,

General Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
BE - —REERBRENER it -0 1]

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EmEBS5 : HEEEE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and | Supply Chain Management
social risks of the supply chain.

— R ER EIRHERNBIE R G RMRBR - HrEEER

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical Supply Chain Management

(“recommended disclosure”) region.

BARENIEE B5.1 ([ EERE D) i RE D HEREA - HrEEER

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating Supply Chain Management

(“recommended disclosure”) to engaging suppliers, number of

suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored.

RARIE IR B5.2 ([ 3K E ) ft BRI A EEAIED - MERTARM | HEEER
BRI HEREE - URBBENONITR
BERFIE ©

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE -#HE2KE

B E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REERBEREERIER

Description

E:pud

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility

EHB6 : EmEE

General Disclosure

—RRIE

Information on:
(a) the policies; and
(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising,
labelling and privacy matters relating
to products and services provided and
methods of redress.
BRMREEMNMBREHEERZS - B
& BERLEBEEA LB AR
(a) BE: &
(b) BEBFHBTABEATENERMER
KR PIEERL -

Product Responsibility

KPI B6.1

(“recommended disclosure”)

BB MIEE B6.1 ([ZFRE]D

Percentage of total products sold or
shipped subject to recalls for safety and
health reasons.

EEAEEXEREHTAEAR 2 EEZRIEH
mARKNE S -

Product Responsibility

EmEE

KPI B6.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

RS ME1E Be.2 ([EZEKE]D

Number of products and service related
complaints received and how they are
dealt with.

RN Em MR B LA MBS T
A e

Product Responsibility

EmEE

KPI B6.3

(“recommended disclosure”)

B IE IR IE B6.3 ([ EEHKE )

Description of practices relating to
observing and protecting intellectual
property rights.

fii it B 4 T N (RIS AR E R B BARIIE D -

Product Responsibility

Emaf

KPI B6.4
(“recommended disclosure”)
RARE IR B6.4 ([EHEE])

Description of quality assurance process
and recall procedures.
RS SRTEREREMBYIRF o

Product Responsibility

EmEE

KPI B6.5

(“recommended disclosure”)

B ESIEIT B6.5 ([ EERKE D)

Description of consumer data protection
and privacy policies, how they are
implemented and monitored.

i tUE B & S RHRIE AL R BUR - DA R ABRE
AT REEIE

Product Responsibility
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RE -#HE2KE

B E

Subject Areas, Aspects,
General Disclosures and KPls

BE - —REERBREERER

Description

E:pus

Section/Declaration

i1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EBEB7 : RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(a) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a
significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and

money laundering.

Anti-corruption

(“recommended disclosure”)

RSRE IR B7.1 ([ BERKE )

regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases.
RERANEETASEEERBIEES
BESHARMTOEA LFRER

— AR R BEAM IR - 91K - MEFROERER RES
(a) HE: Rk
(b) EFHBETABEATENERER
KR OIEVERL
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases Anti-corruption

KPI B7.2

(“recommended disclosure”)

BB RIEIE B7.2 ([ KE D)

Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored.

e [ B e R R IE - AR IIT
BERFIE ©

Anti-corruption

RES

EHEBS : HERE

Aspect B8: Community Investment

General Disclosure

— MR ER

Policies on community engagement to
understand the needs of the communities
where the issuer operates and to ensure
its activities take into consideration the
communities’ interests.

BRN T R2ERBEREEMEEREFEMN
HREEBIDHGEBLRADHOBE -

Community Investment

HEEE

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BURBERS

Grant Thornton

2 [E]

To the members of Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings
Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chong
Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out
on pages 103 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 March 2021, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of

significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure

requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

FAERESEZRARDF
(REASHBEEMRINARLDE)
2ERR

=z
=

EEEETHNFE 1032207 BANETRE £ @
BREBRARI(TERAR ) REMBAR(HBIES
) eiRe Mm% - BER 2021463 A31 1
WiRE BRI BRERBEZALFERNGRER
mREMEERER  RERSEHRREET
SMER  URGEMBRENT - BEERE
FTECRE -

TERE  REVBHRREBREBEEASTAA
(BB AE )BEMNESHIEREE
([BERMBREENDEEMA FHRERT
EER2021F3 A31 BN EHBHRARER
ZAILFENGRENBERARGARERE © I
EERE BN NG AR -
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTER

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on this matter.

Valuation of inventories
Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial B

Sstatements.

The key audit matter

FE1EE
Bl AN+ 3.8 - 4/ 18 ©

=]

ERER

EECRBEEESHMASRABNTERALER
(IHFABRFEAETET - BEFEXFER
THRENEFCEARSZBEAETZER
BRRAENERE IO FEE TR - RIE
ARG ASBRMNEXSFRERTA( T
1)) EFBURN BEE XCETTARH
HERXEREE - EFHE  EEMESHE
AHREREAD LMEBMAEENETEREHRE

it o

REESEE

BRETFEERBEESFNEEHE - RAHN
MG AR BREANEITRA/ERNER - FLR
ARAEBSEITBERGFAMBHRREAZRR
ETRIEN - B HELFERERERENE
=18

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BERETSBE

At 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of inventories
was HK$61,568,000 (net of allowance for inventories of
HK$3,474,000), representing approximately 45% of the
total assets of the Group.

included:

EEEMTEMENRZFEEE

EENETNARERASE

Our procedures in relation to the valuation of inventories

e understanding the Group’s internal controls over

M202143A31H ' FEMKREEAG61,568,0005% Jt($0
BrIFERHE3,474,00087L) - 1f BEEBBREEL45% °

valuation of inventories;

TH ESEHFEMHENAREES

e understanding how management identifies slow-

moving inventories and the amount of allowances

required, and management’s process in monitoring

the quality of the work of the independent professional

gemmologist appointed;

THREEBMAMFHFERBERRESE  URE
EEERRREBYEXEAETEMITIFERNER

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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FE A
R A BEHRENE3.8 4K 18 -

Valuation of inventories

Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EENEFNARERESE

Key audit matter

BRESEE

As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements, in estimating the amount of allowances
on inventories, it is the Group’s policy to review the
net realisable values of inventories periodically with
reference to current market condition and the historical
experience in selling goods of similar nature. The Group’s
management reviewed, on a regular basis, the suitability
of its inventory allowance policy and has applied the
policy consistently. The Group’s management also
reviewed, on a regular basis, the inventory ageing list
to identify any slow-moving inventories and estimated
the amount of allowances primarily based on the pricing
policy and strategies and the historical experience in
selling goods of similar nature. The Group also engaged
an independent professional gemologist to perform
valuation and assess the conditions of certain items
based on gemstone testing for gem-set jewellery with
reference to international diamond prices, its expertise

and the current market situation.

HINARE M BRRME4TEE A FEREENS
EEENBRRASEBREMALRHECERUNERMNBTE
REAEHRNEFENERFE . BSEETEETHRA
HEERERRNAEN  YELBERBMEE - =
SEEEENENRMNERZE - HEEMBHEEFS L
ERFEBRRRRBASBEHE EERUERNERMEFT
BESE - 1 BERETEBRBIEEINEE T E
ThE - Y2REREAER  HEXRMBLBEFHR - &
KESREMHNEORETHEANTZE TEENRR -

o

Accordingly, the valuation of inventories is considered
to be a key audit matter due to the significance of the
balance to the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, combined with the judgments associated with
determining the amount of allowances on inventories.

Hit - ERERE GV BERRNEREZMUREEFTE
BRETENERAE  FENGERGESBRESEEHE -

assessing the appropriateness of allowances on
inventories made by management and the accuracy of
the net realisable values by comparing the subsequent
selling prices of similar products less estimated
completion and disposal cost to be incurred, to their

carrying amounts on a sample basis;

AHEEREMEFERENSENL - WEBKEREL
B mn A SHE BB 5 S RS E £ R h E A A BR
EEFL LR - fRHG A ZHFE R RN

evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent professional gemmologist and
obtaining an understanding of the scope of work and

their terms of engagement;

HEBLEXEAEEMNER e RFBRLE LT
AT SRR R RENRIBENR

evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
prepared by the independent professional
gemmologist with reference to international diamond
price references for selected gem-set jewellery
products and market research reports on jewellery

industry, on a sample basis;

MR EEBIEXEAEEM2EEEEABRKE
EmBERERERMEATENTSMEREMREE
M EMN S B
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Valuation of inventories

Refer to notes 3.8, 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Key audit matter

RRETEHR

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

FEEE
AR A EHRENE3.8 4K 18 °

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENEFNARERFESE

attending the annual physical inventory count at
year end date with assistance of an independent
professional gemmologist engaged by us to compare
the net realisable values of certain jewellery items held
by the Group with their costs;

EREMEZBNBYLEXEASERNMET - RFEHER
SEFEEYFERY  KMAAREFENE TKE
B A A A IS E A AL B

checking the accuracy of the inventory aging list, on a
sample basis, by tracing to the invoices and delivery

documents;

BRBERERRINXM - MERETERER N ER
1|$ =

assessing the reasonableness of the allowances on
identified slow-moving non-diamond gem-set jewellery
products by checking the aging profile, historical sales
pattern and the subsequent sales of these inventories;
and

FERREARAE  BEHERARERZEFENIH
& HECHBI AR ENFECERRRIREER &

evaluating the historical accuracy of allowances on
inventories assessed by management by comparing

the actual loss to historical allowances recognised.

AEREEEEALBERERECHIDEBERRF - N
AHEFERENE LN -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the 2020/2021
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial

statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in

the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to

report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,

or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are responsible for

overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

ERNRBEEEHHMEREER - Hth BRI
N 2020/2021 FEFRRNEHER - BETBIE
AT REREENZEARE -

LY AR RENE AL TRE L AR -
SRTRHRE R ERBEREAT NSRS

/

3 oy

Tujﬂa‘& o)

EEBSFHEAVBRRNET - E’Uf&%
BIEEMER - FiBES %J‘%Eﬁﬁéﬂ
BEAMBRRAEFERNBRET FﬁTﬁ#qu%
AEEEREBLEUT ZIMFEERERR A
HER

REZERITH I  IRESAREMER
FHEBREREL  BEEFEREZEE - HE
HE - BFLEEMRE
EERGREMBRRARENER

BERARERAAERBEEGHMASRMANE
B BREENREEAMEPINRERTEE
N ERERAMBERE  YHER/RERS
MEHRROBRETFERRRFFRERMEHA

ERERRAAFHNABES AR

ERBEEMBEREAN  EFRENE E5H
FEKEMEE ) THEERBR T RERFEL
LERNEE UNERBELERSTER
BRIFEREFER BEEEBBRIELEE X5
BHMERNBERTSR -

BEZZEEHINESEEEE E5EHNY
TEIREBIR ©
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the

contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of

these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,

or the override of internal control.

o obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related

disclosures made by the directors.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

R ET FEMBRREABNEE

BEENER  RYERAMBERRBBESAHFHE
HREFFERMERNEREREULBS A IR
tReE - WIRIRE FATIH E MR IS R E R 2 8 AX

REABREEFEENZBENRSE © FRILAS -
EENHmE T REEMAR - EELTHRAR

TZABTHEMEMALTE ESRAERE -

/

EEABERKFOHRE - BETRERELRBEE

BT ERETOET  EX - BEAERRATHE
4R AR 35 IR o $5 R BRI AT A B BRFF Sk # 5R 5 #E
IMRAERATCHEBRERLRALTERE
BATS R 6 B KRR AR A B 75 $RaR PR O AR O
RTE - A B R BRI AR EE K ©

EREEBEEAR TR BT  BZE
FITERHE - RETELEREE - TET

o FHBIFFHL BN EREFS AR M E RS B
BRERGFEEAERBMAER - H5t R
MATEEH R ARSI S R PR - DA RIEH
REMBAEHNETRE  EFRTEERN
i o AREGFRIREP R HRR - RiE - B
TER - BRI - SOEBR ARSI Z
F BAREERREARGFMERNEANSE
AR PR L A R\ B v A A B B3R L 8 AR 1 2 B
BB RS ER PR A R

o THERFIHBEAAMES - ARFEE
MERTER - BB WL IEH E;"%WE‘B
ZHINAREERER

s HEEEMRASHERENREERELY
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o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’'s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely

responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal

control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate

threats or safeguards applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYRBERS

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Level 12

28 Hennessy Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

22 June 2021

Ng Ka Kong
Practising Certificate No.: P06919

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meBnkEMEERE R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z= 202143 A 31 HILtFE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 &
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FAET
Revenue Iy &5 5] 101,702 119,869
Cost of goods sold B & mA A (73,933) (79,005)
Gross profit ER 27,769 40,864
Other income H bl A 6 5,627 1,326
Other net gain HAth 7 2 7 1,283 255
Selling and distribution costs SHE R A A (21,989) (30,693)
General and administrative —MRATER X
expenses (12,703) (17,115)
Finance costs B 75 B AR 8 (1,316) (1,491)
Share of profit of an associate JE i — R Bt & A B 2 v Al 15 85 —
Loss before tax MBS 18 9 (1,244) (6,854)
Income tax credit FrigHis e 12 964 1,370
Loss for the year FREER (280) (5,484)
Other comprehensive expense for FRHEMZEEX
the year
Item that may be reclassified HIZ B E D IEZ B i
subsequently to profit or loss: HE :
Exchange differences arising on HE N S E ERE S
translation of a foreign operation =7 (384) (690)
Other comprehensive expense for FAHEMEEMS
the year, net of income tax (BrAT1SF1%) (384) (690)
Total comprehensive expense for FRZHEAXELE
the year (664) (6,174)
Loss per share SREE 10
Basic (HK cents) AR (0.04) (0.73)
The notes on pages 109 to 207 are an integral part of these F109FE 207 B A S G A B HRENAE

consolidated financial statements.

RS -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a B BRI AR

As at 31 March 2021 720213 A 31 H

2021 2020
2021 fF 2020 F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Kt FET FEITL
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment L E T & 14 10,791 15,443
Interest in an associate R—EEE R R 2 s 15 8,985 —
Financial asset at fair value BAFE ABZR
through profit or loss MR EE 16 5,675 5,195
Deferred tax assets FEER B & = 17 3,665 2,701
Other receivables H {th fE W k18 19 890 2,886
30,006 26,225
Current assets REEE
Inventories e 18 61,568 61,526
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H b e IR 19 6,498 5,918
Financial asset at fair value BAFER AR
through profit or loss B $ B E E 16 5,839 —
Tax recoverable Al [E A IE 302 237
Bank balances and cash WITHEHBEIRS 20 32,021 43,429
106,228 111,110
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAFER A 21 7,869 8,394
Contract liabilities EHEE 22 4,740 6,074
Refund liabilities BRREE 23 555 477
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 9,704 8,189
Bank borrowings RITIE 25 31,324 25,621
54,192 48,755
Net current assets REBEEFE 52,036 62,355
Total assets less current liabilities EEZABRADEE 82,042 88,580
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HEAE 24 1,101 6,975
Net assets EEFE 80,941 81,605

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e B IR &

As at 31 March 2021 720213 A 31 H

2021 2020
2021 F 20204
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
HtaE FET FAET

Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital f& s 26 7,500 7,500
Reserves G 73,441 74,105
Total equity A 80,941 81,605

The notes on pages 109 to 207 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

Fu Chun Keung
EER
DIRECTOR
BF

B 109 £ 207 BN B2 SR E I FRE

H RISk 2 —#B D

Cheung Lai Yuk
REE
DIRECTOR
BF

D
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

LEED S

B &

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

Share Share Other Exchange Retained
capital premium* reserve* reserve* profits* Total
KA ROEE HtREE EA#E KEER FEEC)
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
FET FET FET FAET FAET FET
(Note)
(Hizz)
At 1 April 2019 2019411 7,500 35,242 20,489 (479) 25,027 87,779
Loss for the year FREE — — — — (5,484) (5,484)
Exchange differences BB IINREBELER
arising from EHERE
translation of a
foreign operation — — — (690) — (690)
Total comprehensive  FRAZMEHZ A%
expense for the
year — — — (690) (5,484) (6,174)
At 31 March 2020 and #2020 3 A 31 H &k
1 April 2020 20204 A1 H 7,500 35,242 20,489 (1,169) 19,543 81,605
Loss for the year FREE — — — — (280) (280)
Exchange differences BB INREBELER
arising from EHERE
translation of a
foreign operation — — — (384) — (384)
Total comprehensive  FRZ M4
expense for the
year — — — (384) (280) (664)
At 31 March 2021 20213 H31H 7,500 35,242 20,489 (1,553) 19,263 80,941

The reserves accounts comprise the Group’s reserves of

HK$73,441,000 (2020: HK$74,105,000) in the consolidated statement

of financial position.

Note:

Other reserve represents the difference between paid-in capital and issued

share capital of the Company arising from group reorganisation.

The notes on pages 109 to 207 are an integral part of these

consolidated financial statements.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

* ZERBREERAEERGEMBRREROREE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 &
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat FAET FE&T
Cash flows from operating RETHMEENR SR
activities
Loss before tax R 7% Al 18 (1,244) (6,854)
Adjustments for: KR
Depreciation on property, plant Mm% BERRERETE 14
and equipment 11,418 7,876
Loss on written-off of property, W - BRE REER
plant and equipment &8 — 1
Write down of inventories to net 181 B HUR 2 Al 2 37 )FHE 18
realisable value, net 1,384 641
(Reversal of provision for)/ B SRR IERAEEE 19
provision for ECL allowance for
trade receivables, net (49) 885
Fair value loss/(gain) on financial BAFEFABZNE R 7
assets at FVTPL BENATEEE/
(Wras) 244 (195)
Gain on disposal of financial SR A ERT ABRA 7
assets at FVTPL © B EN KR (1,423) —
COVID-19-related rent B 2019 # A WA AE S H
concessions received HERSRE (2,322) —
Interest expenses MEFRZ 1,316 1,491
Interest and dividend income ME RSB A (956) (897)
Share of profit of an associate FE 1 — BB & A R 2 & F 15 (85) =
Unrealised foreign exchange REAIRIE R
realignment (503) (990)
Operating cash flows before working “:B&&EHAELEER
capital changes 7,780 1,108
(Increase)/Decrease in inventories BFEOEM) L (1,426) 1,824
Decrease in trade and other B 5 I F At FE WK IE R
receivables 1,775 4,196
Decrease in trade and other B 5 I F th FE A~ 5RIE R
payables (401) (10,062)
(Decrease)/Increase in contract EHIBECRD), LN
liabilities (1,334) 299
Increase/(Decrease) in refund R aELN,/CRd)
liabilities 78 (174)
Cash generated from/(used in) 2EEL(FTA)NERE
operations 6,472 (2,809)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEREBFEH (65) (916)
Net cash generated from/(used in) EEBEL(FTA)M
operating activities ReFeE 6,407 (3,725)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEREMNER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

2021 2020
2021 2020 &
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
M et FET FET
Cash flows from investing RETHRERE
activities
Purchase of property, plant and BEWE  BERH&
equipment (120) (1,023)
Prepayments of property, plant and  #1% - &= & &RE 2 BN HRIE
equipment (310) —
Purchase of financial assets at BEERATEF AEmNSH
FVTPL EE (28,141) (5,000)
Proceeds from sales of financial HERAFEFABRN SR
assets at FVTPL BEFSRIE 23,001 —
Withdrawal of pledged bank R ERRITER
deposits — 2,200
Investment in an associate & — QA (8,900) —
Interest and dividend received EAE R AR S 956 897
Net cash used in investing activities & ZEFTARIE S FEE (13,514) (2,926)
Cash flows from financing METBHRERE
activities
Issue costs paid BT A — (2,045)
Proceeds from bank borrowings SRITIEFRFT1S 50 11,140 —
Repayments of bank borrowings BEBITER (5,437) (15,756)
Payment of lease liabilities HEABNNRK (8,683) (6,594)
Interests paid BEARFE (1,316) (1,491)
Net cash used in financing activities Bt EEATAKIR S F58 (4,296) (25,886)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERASEEWRDFH
equivalents (11,403) (32,537)
Cash and cash equivalents at FURERREEEY
beginning of the year 43,429 75,973
Effect of foreign exchange rate SMNETE KRB Eh B
changes (5) (7)
Cash and cash equivalents atend FXRRERELZEEY 20
of the year 32,021 43,429
The notes on pages 109 to 207 are an integral part of these F109 BEE 207 BEFf SN Az EiRE 5 H

consolidated financial statements.

REVAERKER D ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

GENERAL

Chong Fai Jewellery Group Holdings Company Limited (the
“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated in the
Cayman lIslands on 11 January 2018 and its shares are listed
on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”). The address of the registered office of the
Company is PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1104, Cayman lIslands and the principal place of business of
the Company is at No. 6-13 Faerie Court, 80 Ko Shan Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The immediate holding company and ultimate holding
company of the Company is Mythe Group Holdings Company
Limited (“Mythe”) which was incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands (the “BVI”). Its ultimate controlling party is Mr. Fu
Chun Keung (“Mr. Fu”).

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set

out in note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021 were approved for issue by the Board of Directors
on 22 June 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERFIRKEITEBMBREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING R(TEBHBHREER )
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(i) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual (i) R2020F4A1BRZEZBBNEF
periods beginning or after 1 April 2020 EHBERNKEBITEBHKERE
28|
In the current year, the Group has applied for the first REAFEE  AEBARERESS
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the FT Bl A 2 BT A8 6 B AR B K & B 3 7
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations BiES BB R 202054 A1
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial BB 8 FEBE NGRS B 5 ER K
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 April ERE) RPN EIE ] BB 1S8R E %
2020: 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business BEBR RS2 EBHES
EREACHEN)
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark BT HREER FREERE
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform Fo5% - BAGH
B 395 &
BB HREER
F7HRUERTAR)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material BRGENFE 1R EANTE
and HKAS 8 RERBGTEASE
8% ({B5TA)
In addition, on 1 April 2020, the Group has early applied AN+ R2020F 4 A1 H - AEBBERE
the Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent FERE BT BREENEI6TRUSTA)
Concessions” which will be effective for the Group for [2019BMESHRABHELSRE] - HBER
financial year beginning on or after 1 June 2020. AEEMNR 202056 A 1 B2 & FHBEE
B EER
Other than as noted below, the adoption of the amended Br N SCFTiiEIN - AT E] RS E] BB
HKFRSs had no material impact on how the results and B iR 2 RIS A B OB T R A ¥ A
financial position for the current and prior periods have R MRE K 255 X E K
been prepared and presented. 2 o

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

()

Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1 April 2020 — continued

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions” (“2020 Amendment to HKFRS 16”)

Amendment to HKFRS 16 only apply to lessee
accounting and have no effect on lessor accounting.
The amendments provide a practical expedient that
allows a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether
certain qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 (“COVID-19-Related
Rent Concessions”) are lease modification and, instead,
account for those rent concessions as if they were not

lease modifications.

The practical expedient is only applicable to COVID-19-
Related Rent Concessions and only if all of the following

conditions are met:

a) the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the

lease immediately preceding the change;

b) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021
(for example, a rent concession would meet this
condition if it results in reduced lease payments
on or before 30 June 2021 and increased lease
payments that extend beyond 30 June 2021); and

c) there is no substantive change to other terms and

conditions of the lease.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 B SRR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(i) Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual
periods beginning or after 1 April 2020 — continued

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions” (“2020 Amendment to HKFRS 16”) —

continued

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments
and applies the practical expedient to all qualifying
COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions granted to the
Group during the year.

Consequently, rent concessions amounting to
HK$2,322,000 have been credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income within “Selling and distribution costs” in the
period in which the event or condition that triggers those
payments occurred. There is no impact on the opening
balance of equity at 1 April 2020.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

2.

ERAHIREEIETERMBREE
A(TEBHBHRELEN]) — &

()

MR2020F4 1B 2 BB EF
EHBMERNEETEBUBRSE
R — &

BB EERFE 16 % (1557 F)
[2019 73 7 5 & #5 46 B 7 = B % |
([ BB B #HEERE 165 (2020
FIETE) ) — #

AEEEEEREEMZSEE]
WHFEFARTAEBONE S EE
201978 AR % = 7w AE A 7H € L &2 FE R
AI{TREE A

Eitt - ©%452,322,000 8 LS
BE BRI ZENRE =M
HEERREGFAGEERREMS
HWREEOHE RS HAAR] -
2020F4 R1 B W iEm BV & eR 0

=/ 41
myE o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(ii) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended HKFRSs
have been published but are not yet effective, and have
not been adopted early by the Group.

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and
Related Amendments®
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual

Framework®
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 HKFRS 7, Reform - Phase 2!

HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets
and HKAS 28 between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture®

Amendment to HKFRS 16~ Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions beyond 30 June
20217
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)°
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
and HKFRS Practice Policies®
Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates®

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
- Proceeds before Intended
Use®

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfilling a Contract®

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020°

Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for Common
(Revised) Control Combinations®
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 B SRR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

(ii) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs — continued

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

Effective date not yet determined

Effective for business combinations for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for common control combinations that occur on
or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning
on or after 1 January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April
2021

The directors anticipate that all of the pronouncements
will be adopted in the Group’s accounting policy for the
first period beginning on or after the effective date of
the pronouncement. Information on new and amended
HKFRSs that are expected to have impact on the
Group’s accounting policies is provided below. Other
new and amended HKFRSs are not expected to have a
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial

statements.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERAFIIRRIETEBYBREE
TO HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING A([EBMBREER ) — &
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) — continued

Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs — continued

Amendment to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021” (“2021
Amendment to HKFRS 167)

The amendment extends the availability of the practical
expedient in paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 so that it
applies to rent concessions for which any reduction in
lease payments affects only payments originally due on
or before 30 June 2022, provided the other conditions
as stated in paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16 for applying
the practical expedient are met (please also refer to
the conditions stated in 2020 Amendment to HKFRS 16

above).

A lessee that chooses to apply this practical expedient
would be required to apply it consistently to all lease
contracts with similar characteristics and in similar
circumstances, irrespective of whether the contract
became eligible for the practical expedient as a
result of the lessee applying this amendment or 2020
Amendment to HKFRS 16. Additional disclosures are

required if this practical expedient is used.

2021 Amendment to HKFRS 16 is effective for annual
reporting period beginning on or after 1 April 2021.
A lessee shall apply the amendment retrospectively,
recognising the cumulative effect of initial applying the
amendment as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained profits (or other component of equity, as
appropriate) at the beginning of the annual period in
which the lessee first applies the amendment. Earlier
application is permitted. The directors expect that the
amendment have no material impact on the consolidated

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

Basis of preparation and presentation

These annual consolidated financial statements on
pages 103 to 207 have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable HKFRSs which collective terms
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKAS”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the accounting principles generally accepted in
Hong Kong. The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and include
the applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are summarised below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new or
amended HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed

in note 2.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis, except for
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) (see note 3.6) that are measured at fair values
at the end of the reporting period. The measurement
bases are fully described in the accounting policies

below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and
assumptions are used in preparation of the consolidated
financial statements. Although these estimates
are based on management’'s best knowledge and
judgment of current events and actions, actual results
may ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or
areas where assumptions and estimates are significant
to the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

in note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.2

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries

made up to 31 March each year:

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When assessing
whether the Group has power over the entity, only
substantive rights relating to the entity (held by the

Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements from
the date it gains control until the date when the Group

ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
and losses on transactions between group companies
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Where unrealised losses on sales of
intra-group asset are reversed on consolidation, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from the
Group’s perspective. Amounts reported in the financial
statements of subsidiaries have been adjusted where
necessary to ensure consistency with the accounting

policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity on a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value
or at their proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net

identifiable assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.2

Basis of consolidation — continued

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position within
equity, separately from the equity attributable to the
owners of the Company. Non-controlling interests in
the results of the Group are presented on the face of
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year
between non-controlling interests and the owners of the

Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made to
the amounts of controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is

recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the profit
or loss on disposal is calculated as the difference
between (i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
Where certain assets of the subsidiary are measured
at revalued amounts or fair values and the related
cumulative gain or loss has been recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity, the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity are accounted for
as if the Company had directly disposed of the related
assets (i.e., reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
directly to retained profits). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the
date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value
on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under
HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or a joint venture.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation — continued

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
subsidiaries are carried at cost less any impairment loss
unless the subsidiary is held for sale or included in a
disposal group. Cost also includes direct attributable

costs of investment.

The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividends received and
receivable at the reporting date. All dividends whether
received out of the investee’s pre or post-acquisition

profits are recognised in the Company’s profit or loss.
Associate

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence, which is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of the
investee but is not control or joint control of those

policies.

In consolidated financial statements, an investment
in an associate is initially recognised at cost and
subsequently accounted for using the equity method.
Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the Group’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities of the associate
recognised at the date of acquisition is recognised
as goodwill. The goodwill is included within the
carrying amount of the investment and is assessed
for impairment as part of the investment. The cost
of acquisition is measured at the aggregate of the
fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given,
liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments
issued by the Group, plus any costs directly attributable
to the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of
the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities over the cost of acquisition,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit
or loss in the determination of the Group’s share of
the associate’s profit or loss in the period in which the

investment is acquired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. TESHEE —
continued
3.3 Associate — continued 3.3 EEAQT — &

Under the equity method, the Group’s interest in
the associate is carried at cost and adjusted for the
post-acquisition changes in the Group’s share of the
associate’s net assets less any identified impairment
loss, unless it is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group that is classified as held for sale).
The profit or loss for the year includes the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the
associate for the year, including any impairment loss
on the investment in associate recognised for the
year. The Group’s other comprehensive income for
the year includes its share of the associate’s other

comprehensive income for the year.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Where unrealised
losses on assets sales between the Group and its
associate are reversed on equity accounting, the
underlying asset is also tested for impairment from
the Group’s perspective. Where the associate uses
accounting policies other than those of the Group for
like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
adjustments are made, where necessary, to conform the
associate’s accounting policies to those of the Group
when the associate’s financial statements are used by
the Group in applying the equity method.

When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest
in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s

net investment in the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.3 Associate — continued

After the application of equity method, the Group
determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
additional impairment loss on the Group’s investment
in its associate. At each reporting date, the Group
determines whether there is any objective evidence
that the investment in associate is impaired. If such
indications are identified, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as being the difference between
the recoverable amount (i.e. higher of value in use and
fair value less costs of disposal) of the associate and its
carrying amount. In determining the value in use of the
investment, the Group estimates its share of the present
value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associate, including cash flows arising
from the operations of the associate and the proceeds

on ultimate disposal of the investment.

The Group discontinues the use of equity method from
the date when it ceases to have significant influence
over an associate. If the retained interest in that former
associate is a financial asset, the retained interest
is measured at fair value, which is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition as a financial asset in
accordance with HKFRS 9. The difference between (i)
the fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds
from disposing of a part interest in the associate; and
(ii) the carrying amount of the investment at the date
the equity method was discontinued, is recognised in
the profit or loss. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same basis
as would have been required if the associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by the investee would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the entity reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is

discontinued.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3.

continued

FTESTHEK — &

3.4 H]E

3.4 Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong Dollars (HK$), which is also the functional

currency of the Company.

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that
date. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets and

liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange

rates at the transaction date).

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into
Hong Kong dollars. Assets and liabilities have been
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing rates
at the reporting date. Income and expenses have
been converted into the Hong Kong dollars at the
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or at
the average rates over the reporting period provided
that the exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure have
been recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in the exchange reserve in

equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.5

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses (see note 3.16), if any. The cost of an
item of property, plant and equipment (other than right-
of-use assets) comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the assets to its
working condition for its intended use. The cost of right-
of-use assets are determined in accordance with note
3.11.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment less their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, using

straight-line method at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Over the lease term or 25%

improvements per annum, whichever is
the shorter

Furniture, fixtures and 20%

equipment
Motor vehicles 30%
Machinery 20%

The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes
in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
Accounting policy for depreciation of right-of-use assets

is set out in note 3.11.

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the
continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant
and equipment is determined as the difference between
the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset

and is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.6

Financial instruments
Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
in the consolidated statement of financial position when
the Group becomes a party to the contractual provisions

of the financial instrument.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire,
or when the financial asset and substantially all of its
risks and rewards are transferred. A financial liability
is derecognised when it is extinguished, discharged,

cancelled or expires.
Financial assets
Classification and initial measurement of financial assets

Except for those receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component and are measured at
the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15
“Revenue from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”),
all financial assets are initially measured at fair value, in
case of a financial asset not at FVTPL, plus transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets
carried at FVTPL are expensed in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.

Financial assets are classified into amotised cost or
FVTPL.

The classification is determined by both:

—  the entity’s business model for managing the

financial asset; and

— the contractual cash flow characteristics of the

financial asset.

All income and expenses relating to financial assets
that are recognised in profit or loss are presented within

finance costs, other income or other net gain.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if
the assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect

its contractual cash flows; and

—  the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount

outstanding.

After initial recognition, these are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in “Other income”
in profit or loss. Discounting is omitted where the effect

of discounting is immaterial.

The Group’s bank balances and cash, rental deposits,
trade and other receivables fall into this category of

financial instruments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial assets — continued

Subsequent measurement of financial assets —

continued
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment,
the Group elects to designate the investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”)
(non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair
value are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in reserve in equity. Such elections
are made on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but only
be made if the investment meets the definition of equity

from the issuer’s perspective.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s right
to receive the dividends is established. Dividends from
investments in equity securities are recognised in profit

or loss as “Other income”.
Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include bank borrowings,
lease liabilities and trade and other payables. They
are separately shown on the face of the consolidate

statement of financial position.

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable,
adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group

designated a financial liability at FVTPL.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.6

Financial instruments — continued
Financial liabilities — continued

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities —

continued

Subsequently, financial liabilities (other than lease
liabilities) are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method except for derivatives which
are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships and financial liabilities designated at
FVTPL, which are carried subsequently at fair value with

gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.

All interest-related charges and, if applicable, changes
in an instrument’s fair value that are reported in profit or

loss are included within finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in note
3.11.

Bank borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost, any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of

the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
date.

Trade and other payables

They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the

effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9 “Financial instruments” (“HKFRS 9”)’s
impairment requirements use more forward-looking
information to recognise ECL — the “ECL model”.
Instruments within the scope included financial assets

measured at amortised cost.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including historical credit loss experience adjusted
for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the
current conditions at the reporting date as well as the

forecast of future conditions.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a distinction

is made between:

— financial instruments that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”)

and

— financial instruments that have deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition and whose credit risk is not low
(“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have

objective evidence of impairment at the reporting date.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1 category
while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the Stage 2

category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a probability-
weighted estimate of credit losses over the expected life

of the financial instrument.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued
Trade receivables

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at each reporting date.
These are the expected shortfalls in contractual cash
flows, considering the potential for default at any point
during the life of the financial assets. In calculating the
ECL, the Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience and
external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking factors

specific to the debtors and the economic environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been

grouped on the basis below:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s

trade receivables are assessed as a separate

group);
. Past-due status;
o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue to share

similar credit risk characteristics.
Other financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increase in
the likelihood of risk of default occurring since initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
assets at the reporting date with the risk of default
occurring on the financial assets at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has

increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or

internal credit rating;

— significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in

the operating results of the debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet

its debt obligations.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

3.

FTESTHEK — &

3.7

ETHMEERE — &
BBELA B R ML HBEE —

&

RFGEEERRES B NT RN
AN AEBELREHE
ERHRE BB HRZ QN R R EZ
FeRMEERVSHAAMEIRE
R - LRI AE > AEES
ERAERAEBENTEERTEMLE
£ BRELEREBATET L
ZRRARNE AN A ESHATIE L E
e

LEE FEEERREDAEE
MEEEETIER :

— TRITAIMNBIE)HIAR
FEEFRNERIBEHRERR
1t

— FEERBOINATSEENSE
ARE  FlIEEREEKRNIBE
m-EBEANEEZENEH
13

— RBHEBEHEBARTEER
BEMRE S AR TRRHETR -
B BB IR A L TR

FHIES :
—  EHAEREENERRED
EAE(L: R

—  SREBABTREBEEN
BN KB TRMERALE -
o TR S R o TR
EATFIRD -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.7

Impairment of financial assets — continued

Other financial assets measured at amortised cost —

continued

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that

demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
end of each reporting period. A debt instrument is
determined to have low credit risk if it has a low risk of
default, the borrower has strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term and
adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce
the ability of the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash
flow obligations. The Group considers a financial asset
to have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of “investment grade” as per globally

understood definition.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when there is
a breach of financial covenants by the counterparty;
or information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to
pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collateral held by the Group).

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at

amortised cost are set out in note 35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.8

3.9

3.10

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable values. Cost is determined using weighted
average method for gold jewellery products and specific
identification basis for other jewellery products. Net
realisable values represent the estimated selling price
for inventories less all estimated costs of completion

and costs necessary to make the sale.
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and
in hand, demand deposits with banks and short term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of
three months or less that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an

insignificant risk of changes in value.
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer
pays consideration before the Group recognises the
related revenue (see note 3.14). A contract liability
would also be recognised if the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration before the
Group recognises the related revenue. In such cases,
a corresponding receivable would also be recognised

(see note 3.6).

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a

net basis.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

3.

FTESTHER —

3.8

3.9

3.10

#H

FERKAEAERFEMRERH
REEIR BESKEEMM
TR AERMEEEEEE - Mt
HthRBEEMM S @ RAREE
RIEEETE A ZFBRFEEBEFEM

sHEERA T TR ETH 2 AR A A
R EPTRAA ©
RERRESEEY
ReRREEEMEERTRFRE

Be RITEDEFARREHB
REBAIAT  AIERERLSE
MEBE R BEEEEHARAKN
ZRHSERBRE -

BHNEE

EHABREAEEEAEEKE
Al % P X B B R R (R MY A

3.14) ° IAKEH E R EMER
5 B FE 52 A B M a AT MR (B 0 B

EHABINZERR EHEBR
T AEEKGE NS EER(R W
£¥3.6) °

RERFPHNE-—GAOME K27

BHEEFERANEBETFE  #
‘W\ HWmE - THESHNEL
BENMAHWAGBTMRFEEERT -

.



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. FESHBE £
continued
3.11 Leases 3.11 &8
Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee HEWEZRFEBESRHEA

At inception of a contract, the Group considers whether
a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as
‘a contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the right
to use an identified asset (the underlying asset) for a
period of time in exchange for consideration’. To apply
this definition, the Group assesses whether the contract

meets three key evaluations which are whether:

o the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time

the asset is made available to the Group;

o the Group has the right to obtain substantially all
of the economic benefits from use of the identified
asset throughout the period of use, considering
its rights within the defined scope of the contract;

and

o the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assess whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used

throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each lease and non-lease component on the basis of

their relative stand-alone prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. FESHBE &
continued
3.11 Leases — continued 3.11 #HE — &
Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee — HEHWEZRAEFESEHBAA —
continued 7=

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The right-
of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of
the initial measurement of the lease liability, any initial
direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate of any
costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset at
the end of the lease, and any lease payments made in
advance of the lease commencement date (net of any

lease incentives received).

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership at the end of
the lease term. The Group also assesses the right-of-

use asset for impairment when such indicator exists.

At the commencement date, the Group measures the
lease liability at the present value of the lease payments
unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily

determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable payments based on an index or
rate, and amounts expected to be payable under a

residual value guarantee.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. FESHBE £
continued
3.11 Leases — continued 3.11 #HE — &
Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee — HEHWEZRAEFESEHBAA —
continued &

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be
reduced for lease payments made and increased for
interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured to
reflect any lease modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are
recognised as expense in the period on which the event

or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of modification. The
only exception is any rent concessions which arose
as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic
and which satisfied the conditions set out in paragraph
46B of HKFRS 16 “Leases”. In such cases, the Group
took advantage of the practical expedient set out in
paragraph 46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change

in consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset, or profit
and loss if the right-of-use asset is already reduced to

Zero.

The Group has elected to account for short-term leases
using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising
a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the payments in
relation to these leases are recognised as an expense
in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of

12 month or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.11

Leases — continued

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee —

continued

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee —

continued

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in “property,

plant and equipment”.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments and included

in the cost of right-of-use assets.
Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the
obligation can be made. Where the time value of money
is material, provisions are stated at the present value of

the expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and

adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of the
Group, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless

the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.13

3.14

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity attributable
to the equity holders. The amount of the share capital
recognised is determinated using the nominal value and
any related transaction costs are deducted from the

share premium.
Revenue recognition

Revenue arises mainly from the sales of jewellery

products.

To determine whether to recognise revenue, the Group

follows a 5-step process:

1. Identifying the contract with a customer

2. Identifying the performance obligations

8. Determining the transaction price

4. Allocating the transaction price to the performance
obligations

8 Recognising revenue when/as performance

obligation(s) are satisfied

In all cases, the total transaction price for a contract is
allocated amongst the various performance obligations
based on their relative stand-alone selling prices. The
transaction price for a contract excludes any amounts

collected on behalf of third parties.

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over
time, when (or as) the Group satisfies performance
obligations by transferring the promised goods or

services to its customers.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. XTESHEEX —2Z

continued

3.14 WA — &

3.14 Revenue recognition — continued

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant

performance obligation if one of the following criteria is

met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs; or

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances

an asset that the customer controls as the Group

performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for

performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good

service.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income

recognition policies are as follows:
Sales of jewellery products

Revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
jewellery products are delivered to the customers and

the respective control has been passed.
Provision of jewelcrafting services

The revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

jewelcrafting services are rendered.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

WA E T EP —IRRE - 1 H %
BERFRER > MRAER SRR
RE e BEENEEHERETT

s RAKBEREDE  FPRER
BAFERRNEEELFTRIED

Fi3s

o AKENBHELEREN—IA
BE MBBERASERE
MR BB PR - 3K

s AKENBHOLRELHAE
EEEARAENEE  AAK
B 50 e BN KA
B A sE FIITHIRER] o

BR WASERFERARDHN
5 n S AR % B R A B A A — B A

7 o

#

B R B Wras I H At R E R
ROEZFFREIIAT

HEREE 7

ERGEERINTES RAME
HIRE B 2 B RERG -

ERFKE T IR

W g HERHKE N TRBEER
— B B ERR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.14

3.15

Revenue recognition — continued
Refund liabilities

The Group would estimate the sales return at the time
of sale at a portfolio level (expected value method)
based on its historical experience and recognise a
refund liability if the Group expects to refund some or
all of the consideration received from customers. When
customers exercise their right to recover the product,
the Group recognised “right of return assets” included
in “trade and other receivables” and a corresponding

adjustment to cost of goods sold.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive

payment is established.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion basis
using the effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost that are not credit-impaired,
the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying

amount of the asset.
Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that the grants

are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to income is presented
in gross under “Other income” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3.

continued

FTESTHER —

3.16 ¥ ERMEERE

3.16 Impairment on non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets), interest in an associate and the Company’s
investment in subsidiaries are subject to impairment

testing.

All assets are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be

recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less costs of disposal, and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of

time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generate cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit). As a result, some assets are tested
individually for impairment and some are tested at cash-
generating unit level. Corporate assets are allocated
to individual cash-generating units, when a reasonable
and consistent basis of allocation can be identified,
or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and

consistent allocation basis can be identified.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.16

3.17

3.18

Impairment on non-financial assets — continued

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating units
is charged pro rata to the assets in the cash-generating
units, except that the carrying value of an asset will not
be reduced below its individual fair value less cost of

disposal, or value in use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss

had been recognised.
Retirement benefit costs

Payments to government-managed retirement benefit
schemes and the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme,
which are defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
are recognised as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions.
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an
expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the

inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries) after deducting

any amount already paid.

3.

FTESTHER — &

3.16

3.17

3.18

FEMEERE — &

WEBBZLHIBRGELSE ML
BETMG HEEREEIEHA
AR E B B A B R S A
HEREE(ARERE) °

i PR LA 76 € & EE AT MR [ 2 R A fib AT
HIRA MBS - BB @R EE IR
VEERBWA - EEEMKREE
TSR B i I B RE SRR (B RS R T &
EHFREE (FIBR T E ) -

BABRARAR

BT & 3R AR AR AR AU AT 8 R sa 1 A
EEFE(EEREASTERHRTERNKE
FET &) B R B B BB AR FS T
BREZAEREGERARX

EHEEER

P2 HA R B 1R F 8 B 1R RIS B 1R
TBE T IR A M R BE IR & 58
R-MEEHEEBRMNERSH
X ER-RERMBREENE
KA FREEBRENBAEERAR
IR o

EHREEIHNEIMEER 8
BEERSHNEMNBPINTELRF)
ERAE -

2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT %3k




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued

3.19

3.20

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are
added to the cost of those assets until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or

sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss

in the period in which they are incurred.
Taxation
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the reporting date. They are calculated
according to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on the taxable
profit for the year. All changes to current tax assets or
liabilities are recognised as a component of tax expense

in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method on
temporary differences at the reporting date between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and their respective
tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit, including existing
taxable temporary differences, will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax

losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. XTESHEEX —2Z
continued
3.20 Taxation — continued 3.20 BiE — &

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither taxable nor

accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and an associate, except where the
Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the temporary

differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income

or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are

presented in net if, and only if,

(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set

off the recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise

the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —

continued
3.20 Taxation — continued

The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred

tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;

and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the

same taxation authority on either:
(i)  the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets
on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts
of deferred tax liabilities or assets are

expected to be settled or recovered.

3.21 Related parties

For the purposes of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the

Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — 3. XESRHEE —#&
continued
3.21 Related parties — continued 3.21 BAMES — &
(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following (b) WA THERIEE - BIZE
conditions applies: FEERREE B H B ¢

(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZERBEASEBR-—
same group. EERKERR] °

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture (i) —HERBRS —EBH
of the other entity (or an associate or joint /N eI N A (1
venture of a member of a group of which the S—ERBAKEATN
other entity is a member). EEETKE QR R

ERRAREERE) o

(iii)  the entity and the Group are joint ventures (i) ZERBEASEHAR—
of the same third party. F=IHEERE-

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity (iv), " HEBRE=7TEE
and the other entity is an associate of the Meaegtx ME—&
third entity. SR AZE=ZEBEY

Al I

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan (v) ZEBRBAAREEZHER
for the benefit of employees of either the SEEHBNERE
Group or an entity related to the Group and ERAE BB RZE
the sponsoring employers are also related to FMEtsl - mEBYEE IR
the Group. EAREBHREE -

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled (vi) ZEBX(a)BEFTHEBIA
by a person identified in (a). TRk R E ] o

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant (vii) (a)(i)IBATE BRI A ¥ %
influence over the entity or is a member of EREEATE B
the key management personnel of the entity ZEB(AZEBENEA
(or of a parent of the entity). ANEEEEENKE

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of (vii) ZEBSEMBEEE®
which it is a part, provides key management ERKE AR ABAER
personnel services to the Group or to the HAEEERRRMEE
parent of the Group. ZEBABR -

Close members of the family of a person are those —AATHERERFEZERER
family members who may be expected to influence, or SRBHAFZEZATIEZALT
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the TENRREKS °

entity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

4,

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
underlying assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual

results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current

and future periods.

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities,

are described below.
Valuation of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
values. Net realisable values of inventories are based on
estimated selling prices less any estimation costs to be
incurred for completion and disposal. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical

experience in selling goods of similar nature.

The Group’s management reviewed, on a regular basis,
the suitability of its inventory allowance policy and has
applied the policy consistently. The Group’s management
also reviewed, on a regular basis, the inventory age listing
to identify any slow-moving inventories and estimated the
amount of allowances primarily based on the pricing policy
and strategies and the historical experience in selling goods
of similar nature. The Group also engaged an independent
professional gemologist to perform valuation and assess the
conditions of certain items based on gemstone testing for
gem-set jewellery with reference to international diamond

prices, its expertise and the current market situation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued
Valuation of inventories — continued

At 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of inventories
is HK$61,568,000 (net of allowance for inventories of
HK$3,474,000) (2020: HK$61,526,000 (net of allowance for
inventories of HK$2,090,000)).

Estimation of impairment of trade and other receivables
within the scope of ECL under HKFRS 9

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL
including trade and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgment in making these assumptions and selecting the
inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s
past history, existing market conditions as well as forward
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as
set out in note 3.7. As at 31 March 2021, the aggregate
carrying amounts of trade and other receivables amounting
to HK$5,911,000 (net of ECL allowance of HK$49,000) (2020:
HK$7,707,000 (net of ECL allowance of HK$99,000)).

When the actual future cash flows are different from expected,
such difference will impact the carrying amount of trade
receivables and other receivables within the scope of ECL
under HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods in which such

estimate has been changed.

Estimation of fair value of financial asset at FVTPL

As at 31 March 2021, financial asset at FVTPL that are
not traded in an active market including unlisted equity
investments that was carried at fair value of HK$5,675,000
(2020: HK$5,195,000). The fair values are determined
based on valuations performed by an independent qualified
professional valuer, details of which are set out in note
35. This involves developing estimates and assumptions
consistent with how market participants would price the
instrument. The Group bases its assumptions on observable
data as far as possible but this is not always available. In that
case the Group uses the best information available. Estimated
fair values may vary from the actual prices that would be

achieved in an arm’s length transaction at the reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to ‘exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset value;
(2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be supported
by the recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the
net present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating the
recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and an
appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including the
discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the

impairment test.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets, are HK$492,000
(2020: HK$1,020,000) and HK$10,299,000 (2020:
HK$14,423,000) respectively (note 14). No impairment loss
have been recognised in respect of right-of-use assets and
property, plant and equipment (2020: HK$ nil) at the reporting
date.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

— continued
Income tax and deferred taxation

As detailed in note 12, the Group is subject to Hong Kong
Profits Tax. Significant judgement is required in determining
the amount of the provision for taxation and the timing of
payment of the related taxations. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the

period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
are recognised as management considers it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
expense in the periods in which such estimate is changed.

The outcome of their actual utilisation may be different.

As at 31 March 2021, the carrying amounts of deferred tax
assets were HK$3,665,000 (2020: HK$2,701,000) (note 17).

HFF FTREMNETERR — &

PSRBT R

AP EE 12 FrEfAl - AR BABREBEANIEG
B BEREBBSELEBRETH
BRRAELEZHE  RATEKBRE
o BREZHUEERERBENZ S M
BHE  WZEEENRRBRBERAR
MRENESETR  FREEASTEE
A BRTE BRI R P S B SR E B TR A -

HEIRER R BRAERBRTENBE
BEHEREZF ReRREEE TERE
BELCHBEE ° WMBHESIGE T
Rl AIEBEEREFEATELHHENE
RHRBEENMBHAER - BERESHH
ARG EMTRE -

20213 A31H BELEHBEBEEMNKREA
B /& 3,665,00078 7t(2020 F : 2,701,000
B) (MIFE17) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue represents amounts received and receivable for the

sales of jewellery products during the year.

The executive directors of the Company, being the chief
operating decision maker, regularly review revenue analysis
by nature of business (including jewellery business and
trading of recycled gold products), and by jewellery
products (including gem-set jewellery products (representing
diamond/karat gold/jade/pearl/platinum jewellery products
and provision of jewelcrafting services) and gold jewellery
products). The executive directors of the Company
considered the operating activities of sales of these products
as a single operating segment. The operating segment has
been identified on the basis of internal management reports
prepared in accordance with accounting policies conform to
HKFRSs, and is regularly reviewed by the executive directors
of the Company. The executive directors of the Company
review the overall results, assets and liabilities of the Group
as a whole to make decisions about resources allocation.
Accordingly, no analysis of this single operating segment is

presented.
Entity-wide information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:

Wk o BER
Wt FARBEMHE D WL B EEE

ARABRTER(BITELERRE)EH
EHREBHE (BRREXBLAKRES
EnBEZ)REREER(BRELERK
BEEMEER/Ke /BRBHR e
KREBEMMKENTRB) AR ESKREE
) B D RE DT - NRABHITESHZ
FEMHERERDRE—KENH - K
EOMERERETBVBREENNG
BERBENEEIERENEEZR -
ARBMITEFTEHNERN - ARRMITE
EEMASEERRBINEBRES BER
BEUMEHEBERDBHIRE - Bt -
BEEIZE QLD

H

ERBEER
AEBWRDFTOT :

2021 2020
2021 2020 4

HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Revenue from contract with EFEHKA :
customers:
Jewellery business: KRBT :
Retail operation of jewellery shops  HKBEZTE X% 68,838 78,221
Wholesales of jewellery products REEmALE
(note) (H17%) 11,202 22,230
80,040 100,451
Trading of recycled gold products BkECERES 21,662 19,418
Total A=t 101,702 119,869

Note: Wholesales of jewellery products represent revenue from
jewellery trading and provision of jewelcrafting services to the
wholesalers.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION — 5. WHEERDHER — &

continued

Entity-wide information — continued

mEMER — &

2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET T
Jewellery business by product: REmSIDIREFER :
— Gem-set jewellery products — BAERKEER 54,000 63,313
— Gold jewellery products — B HREEM 26,040 37,138
80,040 100,451
Trading of recycled gold products BRESERE 21,662 19,418
101,702 119,869
The Group is engaged in the retail of its own products REBEBEREENZEEREHBEA
through its retail stores in Hong Kong. Wholesales of jewellery ELTE GEEGHBEREARLE

products represent sales to jewellery retailers with stores and
provision of jewelcrafting services to the wholesalers. The
Group also purchase recycled gold products from the general
public for sale to gold product collectors and dealers for

trading purpose.

Revenue from sales of jewellery products is recognised at a
point in time when the jewellery products and recycled gold
products are delivered to the customers and the respective
controls has been passed. When the Group receives a deposit
for jewellery order or contribution to customer reward scheme,
this will give rise to contract liability at the start of a contract,

until the revenue is recognised.

ZERHERAMLEHEHKE N IR
%o ARETA-—RAZRBELDREDE
mARESERKERLRSEHEER
2R °

o

KEHERENKRENIAEERNREKE
TEMERNTEPRERENEEER
BHER -  RARBUMAREITEZSHIE
FREFEHRE  SONEBERRS KM
W T BEEREERERARL -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION —

continued
Entity-wide information — continued

Revenue from provision of jewelcrafting services is recognised
at a point in time when the jewelcrafting services are

rendered.

No individual customer contributing revenue which accounted
for more than 10% of the Group’s total revenue during both

years.

Under the Group’s standard contract terms, customers have
a right to exchange/refund within a year. The Group uses its
accumulated historical experience to estimate the exchange/
refund rate. A refund liability is recognised when the Group
expects to refund some or all of the consideration received
from customers. The Group’s right to recover the product
is recognised as a right of return goods assets included
in “Trade and other receivables” and a corresponding

adjustment to cost of goods sold.

All sales contracts have an original expected duration of one
year or less. As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction

price allocated to the unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

All of the Group’s revenue from external customers are
generated in Hong Kong. An analysis of the Group’s non-
current assets other than financial instruments and deferred

tax assets by their physical geographical location is as

hERSHER — &

mEMER — &

KA R HLIRE N T ARAS A U e & FE B (R BK
BT ARG AR — BB RERR o

REZMEFEAN  BEEANSEAELAER
W B A B8 10% ©

REASBENRESOER  TRPAER
—FRERBRR - AEHEREBER
BHERMETRE RREX - EAEEE
HRESDA2HELRER - BISER
RRAE o ANEE U B E M A R R
REEREEBRNIE S MEMEKK
B WHERARCDEBMAA

FBEHERNNRERMERAS —FRIA
A e BMARIEE BB R EERIFE 1558
e TERRBIRERERSHONRS
BE#§ o

AR B SN P s e
B o AEERERELEH S B
FHEE(SBRTAREEHBEEERI)
T -

follows:
2021 2020
2021 F 2020 4F
HK$°000 HK$’000
FHET FET
Non-current assets: FRBEE :
— Hong Kong — BB 19,775 15,440
— People’s Republic of China — EARAE
(“PRC”) (&) 1 3
19,776 15,443

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

6. OTHER INCOME 6. HfslgA

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Bank interest income SRITHBUA 171 559

Dividend income from financial asset ZAFEFABRNEREE
at FVTPL HY A% B A 785 338
Government grant (note) WIS B (K7aE) 4,169 184
Sundry income HETEUA 502 245
5,627 1,326

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised Kiat - AEEREZE2021F3 A31 HILFERR

government grants in relation to the funding support received
amounting to HK$3,529,000 and HK$640,000 from the
Employment Support Scheme and Retail Sector Subsidy Scheme
under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Government of the

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region respectively.

The purpose of the Employment Support Scheme is to provide
financial support to enterprises to retain their employees who
would otherwise be made redundant. Under the terms of the
grant, the Group is required not to make redundancies during
the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying

wages to the employees.

There were neither unfulfilled conditions nor other contingencies
attached to the receipt of those grants. In addition, there is no
assurance that the Group will continue to receive such grant in
the future.

BB - 540 B0 A B BB BT IR I
MRz TR R RS R EA B RTEE
EPETEMKBMMNESER  SRIHAE
3,529,000& 7T & 640,000 BT °

RELER W BN AEERHEMBED - U
BB ERAENES - REWFWBIENK
AEBRBRBRTSHELAKHEES
AR>fEETE -

MSER 5% 55 8 B 30 48 0 R S B R AR B AL fh K
REE - O MTREAEEAR RS EE
WERA BAfE B ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 B SRR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

7. OTHER NET GAIN 7. HftFksE
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Net foreign exchange gain ME 5 W s S 5E 104 60
Fair value (loss)/gain on financial BEAFEFABEHNESREEN
asset at FVTPL, net AFE(EBE) WS FE (244) 195
Gain on disposal of financial asset HERAFEFABZNS
at FVTPL BEMKE 1,423 —
1,283 253
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. HBAA
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET F&T
Interest on bank borrowings HRITIE KT 811 950
Finance charges on lease liabilities HEABNVKER 505 541
1,316 1,491

D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX 9. KRBIAIEE
Loss before tax has been arrived at after charging/(crediting): Br Tt Bl 518 THACHBR (BT A) T3 & IB %
EH
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$f009
FET FET
Lease charges: %ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁi
— Short term leases and leases — HEREERERES
with lease term shorter than 12 Hﬁﬁ&%ﬁﬁﬂ%’m%ﬁﬁ% 2
months as at initial application of HEHIN12EANEE
HKFRS 16 N 270 4,453
— COVID-19-related rent concessions — — B 2019 HA T K FEH
received (note a) BB R e (fiZa) (2,322) —
Depreciation of property, plant and BB REENITE
equipment (note 14) (/fffE 14)
— Owned assets — BEEE 648 541
— Right-of-use assets — FREEE 10,770 7,335
Total depreciation of property, plant M BEREENTERE
and equipment 11,418 7,876
Depreciation of property, plant and Wi - B RREHTE
equipment (note 14) (Biati14) \
— Recognised as selling and — HRABERDHKAE
distribution costs 10,120 7,690
— Recognised as general and — BRA—MRITHAX
administrative expense 1,298 186

Total depreciation of property, plant ¥ - BEMERENTERSE

and equipment 11,418 7,876
Directors’ remuneration (note 11) EEME (A1)
— fee — s - 3,557 3,241
— salaries and other benefits i&ﬁ‘rﬁﬂﬁﬂ — —
— retirement benefit scheme EWM‘ FTEIER
contributions 138 62
3,695 3,303

Other staff’s salaries and other benefits

— Recognised as cost of goods sold 755 1,368
— Recognised as selling and
distribution costs 8,416 11,295
— Recognised as general and
administrative expenses 3,305 4,759
Other staff’s retirement benefit scheme
contributions
— Recognised as cost of goods sold — BRREEE KR 114 20
— Recognised as selling and — ERAHE R HEKA
distribution costs 407 498
— Recognised as general and — BRA—MRITBAX
administrative expenses 241 407
Total staff costs B TR AR 16,933 21,650
(Reversal of provision for)/provision for 2 5 WA TEHREEEE
ECL allowance for trade receivables, (%é@)/%?‘{%/?%ﬁ
net (49) 85
Auditor’'s remuneration REEH 2 i 500 500
Cost of inventories recognised as an BERABRAINFEERAR
expense o 69,200 78,364
Write-down of inventories to net BEEMRE R FENEDb)
realisable value, net (note b) 1,384 641
Loss on written-off of property, plant HEEME - BER&E2ER
and equipment — 1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

9. LOSS BEFORE TAX — continued 9. MRBIAIEBE — =&
Notes: Hiat -
(a) As disclosed in note 2(i), the Group has early adopted (a) HWHE20)FTHE  AEEERERAE

Amendments to HKFRS 16 “Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions” and applies the practical expedients introduced

B EAERIZE 1658 ((EFTA)[ 2019 Bk
mERBMAESHS ] THASERER
WEREVFT A & B A SR EAZEER 5
ARAIITRET L - B1ZE 202163 A31H
IEFE - REBR AP L2019 B % F w
195 478 7 BRER B0 B AR 4 32 2B i e ik 2 PR 1 45 1
HAR S eV R S A B E A AT -

by the amendments to all eligible rent concessions received
by the Group during the year. During the year ended 31 March
2021, the rent concessions received by the Group are in the
form of a discount on fixed payments during the period of severe
social distancing and travel restriction measures introduced to
prevent the spread of COVID-19.

(b)  During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group recognised (b) HEZE2021F3A31HILEFE  HMBEFER
& T 8K G Y AT 2 3R )% {81,384,000 % T
(20204 : #fm 77 & 796,000 7 7T K 7 14l

JEE 155,000 70) B A AL B RER ©

write-down inventories to net realisable of certain finished goods
of HK$1,384,000 (2020: write-down inventories of HK$796,000
and reversal of write-down inventories of HK$155,000).

10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. BREE

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the SRR EAREIB TR T HBEAE ¢

following data:

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Loss BB

Loss for the year FREE (280) (5,484)
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 &
000 ‘000
FiE FAE

Number of shares R&HEAE
Weighted average number of shares &9 hnE F 58k 750,000 750,000

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as

B E 2021 F K 2020563 A31 B IEFE -
MAYESHTEEHE L ER - W
B EEESRENEERR -

there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 1. EE - BETHRAEBRESHMH

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ and the chief’s executive’s emoluments (a) ESERESTHRAEHH
Details of the emoluments paid or payable to the BELEMHA - BEERRIKEE
executive directors and chief executive of the Company 3BIMNIERLARI(HEEEFTE
and independent non-executive directors of the B R BI)EE 2 2B FE M B A S AR
Company, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, REAMITEFERESITERA B RAK
section 383(1) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance RAEBMYIERITESHE B
and Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information T

about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, are as follows:

Retirement

Salaries benefit

and other scheme

benefits contributions

FMR BIREF
H3gF HE-GE
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 March  EZ2021$3A31H
2021: LFE:
Executive directors: HITES
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) Ba A (fTHAER) 2,777 — 111 2,888
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLL 258 — 13 271
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk* KEEZT* 234 — 14 248
Sub-total INeF 3,269 — 138 3,407

D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 1. EE BESTBRABRESFH —
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued F=
(a) Directors’ and the chief’s executive’s emoluments — (a) EERBETHRASHH — &
continued
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
benefits contributions
H MR EREF
Hit3gFl HE G
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 March  EZ2021$3831H
2021: LEEE:
Independent non-executive BUFRHTES -
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REELE 96 — - 9
Mr. Wong Wing Keung ek 4
Meyrick 96 — — 96
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony RTBLE 96 — - 9
Sub-total NaF 288 - - 288
Total #Et 3,557 — 138 3,695
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
) RRET
£H HiiaF IR FeE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 March BZE 202043 A31H
2020: IEFE
Executive directors: WITES:
Mr. Fu (Chief Executive) BEE(TTEHER) 2,049 — 26 2,075
Ms. Fu Wan Ling BERLL 417 — 18 435
Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk* REELLT* 415 — 18 433
Sub-total /NaE 2,881 — 62 2,943

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

11.

DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND

(a)

1. B BETRAERESHM —

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued F=
Directors’ and the chief’s executive’s emoluments (a) EZERBETHRASHH — &
— continued
Retirement
Salaries benefit
and other scheme
Fees benefits  contributions Total
& RNER
ZH H b7l ST EIft R a5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
For the year ended 31 March HZE 202093 A31H
2020: IEFE
Independent non-executive BUFWTES
directors:
Mr. Chan Cheong Tat REZERE 120 — — 120
Mr. Wong Wing Keung Meyrick — E k&5t 4 120 — — 120
Mr. Chan Chi Ming Tony BRTHTE 120 — — 120
Sub-total T 360 — — 360
Total @5t 3,241 — 62 3,303

* Ms. Cheung Lai Yuk is the spouse of Mr. Fu.

The executive directors’” emoluments shown above were
for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The
independent non-executive directors’ emoluments
shown above were for their services as directors of the
Company. No remuneration was paid by the Group to
the directors of the Company as an inducement to join
or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss
of office for both years. There is no arrangement under
which a director has waived or agreed to waive any

remuneration.

* REERLAEEENLE -

EXRRAITEENFMEE LA
AR RAEENEEEHREHENR
BEME  LXATRBIFATES
KM EE AR ERENIRE S
e XNMEFE  AKRELERX
RAIEEXNFHFMERBSIMAR
SEXMAAEBRSORZBRIER
B  MEAMESREXR
EREREAFM 2L -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

11. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVES AND 11. EEX - BETHRAEBREEHH —
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS — continued Pl
(b) Five highest paid employees (b) HEBEHHMES

The five highest paid employees of the Group include REZE2021F3 /31 HIEFEMNR
ZERETHEERFEARAARINIZE
F(20204F : 1) + HEF BB
RES - Her4 2 (20204 : 44)&%
SEES (BIFERRAEENIER

SITBRAB)REFMMNT :

one (2020: one) director of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2021, details of emoluments are
included above. The emoluments of the remaining four
(2020: four) highest paid employees who are neither
a director nor chief executive of the Company are as

follows:
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 £
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETL
Employees (=]
— salaries and allowances — & KLk 1,555 1,310
— discretionary bonus — MIBIE4L 358 867
— retirement benefit scheme — RIREFIGT B
contributions 71 71
1,984 2,248

The emoluments of these remaining four highest paid
individuals in the Group for the year were within the

following band:

RAFE  AEEZFEBILERR
FEME AR FEN G E T

2021 2020

No. of No. of

employees employees

EEHE EEBHE

Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z 2 1,000,000 7T 4 4

Certain employees of the Group are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined based on a percentage
of the profit before tax of the relevant subsidiaries
during both years.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

12.

INCOME TAX CREDIT 12. FifEHESR
2021 2020
2021 2020 4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FETL
The tax charge/(credit) comprises: BRIE(ER) X EE
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBBENEH
— Current year — BRIFE — =
— Overprovision in prior years — BEFEBRREEE — (206)
— (206)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT") PR EMSHE([BEMSH])
— Current year — BRIFE — —
— Underprovision in prior years — BEFERETR — 46
— 46
Deferred tax credit (note 17) EER B (HaE 17) (964) (1,210)
Total income tax credit s B 5 (964) (1,370)

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group did
not derive any assessable profit arising in Hong Kong during
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

Under the EIT Law of the PRC and Implementation Regulation
of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the subsidiary in the PRC is
25% for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

HE2021F N 202063 31 HIEFEE -
AN B R FBE A TR ERR S
F o B EAHR B S FEFEE -

RIFERBECEMEFEUARCEMSHE
B e 56 - B = 2021 4F & 2020 F 3 A 31
Bt FE R BB AR R A 25% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

12.

13.

INCOME TAX CREDIT — continued 12.

The tax for the year can be reconciled to the loss before tax

per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

FreBiiER — &
FARIREEE

N H 2 MR 3R BB
BB RERNHBEDT

2021 2020
2021 4 2020 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Loss before tax KR 7 Al & 1B (1,244) (6,854)
Tax charge at the applicable income  %i& f TSR A K 16.5% Uk
tax rate at 16.5% RS (205) (1,131)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible N A] % B sz BT 1& 57 &
for tax purpose 267 139
Tax effect of income not taxable for BARBMANT B E
tax purpose (956) (214)
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised R EREZ %RIEJESTEEI’J%R%%’E 2 41
Effect of different tax rate applicable REMAVEERLLHBA
to a subsidiary operating in the HANTRBERZE
other jurisdiction (59) (5)
Overprovision in prior years BB E — (160)
Others HAth (13) (40)
Tax credit for the year FRFHBEER R (964) (1,370)

DIVIDENDS

13.

No dividend has been paid or declared by the Group during
the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, nor has any
dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BWERRE

Furniture,

Right-of-use Leasehold fixtures and Motor
assets  improvements equipment vehicles Machinery Total
HENE KEEE
ERAEEE ¥RIE EERRE RE B o
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET T TET FAT TET
Cost BA
At 1 April 2019 R2019F 4818 16,662 3,568 3,663 887 313 25,093
Additions WE 5,506 838 174 1 — 6,529
Written off sy - (863) (329) - - (1,192)
Modification of lease ~ {ETHE
term (note) (Hiit) (410) - — — - (410)
Exchange adjustment ~ [E 33 :8% — - = = (19) (19)
At 31 March 2020 R2020F3A318 21,758 3,543 3,508 898 294 30,001
Additions WNE 6,646 — 120 - — 6,766
Written off 3 = - ) - - (4)
Exchange adjustment  [E %% — - — — 28 28
At 31 March 2021 H202153A31H 28,404 3,543 3,624 898 322 36,791
Depreciation E
At 1 April 2019 R2019%F4A1H = 3,477 3,415 692 307 7,891
Provided for the year — FRE & 7,335 306 110 123 2 7,876
Eliminated on written S4B HBR
off - (863) (328) - - (1,191)
Exchange adjustment ~ [E 34 :8% — - = = (18) (18)
At 31 March 2020 and R 2020F3 A31 B R
1 April 2020 20204 A 18 7,335 2,920 3,197 815 291 14,558
Provided for the year £ RS 10,770 509 112 25 2 11,418
Eliminated on written S4B HBR
off - - (4) - - 4
Exchange adjustment [} 5% — — — — 28 28
At 31 March 2021 R2021 38310 18,105 3,429 3,305 840 321 26,000
Net book value BRE R E
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3831H 10,299 114 319 58 1 10,791
At 31 March 2020 R202063A31H 14,423 623 311 83 3 15,443
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT —

continued

14. % BERRE — &

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group received Kt - B2 2020F3A31HIEFER » NEBR G
TEERRESER - BREERERME
A—EAkZERBEENER - RAAEHIE
REBHHEEAR - At - XEEEREE
HRWTRE=EMAEREGHEAGE(ERE

rent concessions for the retail shops. As the modification
does not add the right to use one or more underlying assets,
it is not accounted for as a separate lease. Accordingly, the
Group remeasures the existing lease liabilities including the

revised monthly rental using the discount rate at date of the LT Afe) KEFNHEHEARHEE
modification. The difference between the carrying amount of the EEENEEAEZHANEE410,00048
modified lease liability and the lease liability immediately before TIEREREEERNARE -

the modification of HK$410,000 as an adjustment to the right-of-
use assets.

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, included in the net carrying

amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use

R 2021 F K 2020F3 A31H * W% - &
ERBZESFEATEREEE :

assets as follows:

Depreciation for

Carrying amount as at
RZ B2 REE BEZHHLFEZHE

31 March 31 March 31 March 31 March

2021 2020 2021 2020

2021 § 2020 F 2021 % 2020 &

the year ended

3A31H 3A31H 3A31H 3A31H

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FExT FETT FET FETT

Retail shops TEE 8,178 14,423 9,558 7,335
Office WAE 2,121 — 1,212 —
10,299 14,423 10,770 7,335

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

15.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE 15. R—EHEQRzER
2021
2021 F
HK$’000
FHET
Cost of investment in an associate R — &R R 2 B KA 8,900
Share of post-acquisition profits and other 1 W S 1 v ) e Lt 2 T M e
comprehensive income, net of dividends (HBRE WA E)
received 85
8,985

Set out below are details of associate of the Group as at 31

March 2021 which, in the opinion of the director, is material to

the Group.
Place of
Name of Form of business incorporation
associate structure and business
=8B 3L R
BENRAE EBEBERX =E S5
Grand Rise Creation Limited liability Hong Kong
Limited (“Grand Rise”)
(note)
EERIRBRA AR AA B

(MEEE JLJ)(WE)

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Group has acquired
13% equity interests in Grand Rise from Mr. Fu, the ultimate
controlling party of the Company, at a cash consideration of
HK$8,900,000. Pursuant to the sale and purchase agreement
and memorandum and article of association of Grand Rise, the
board of directors of Grand Rise consists of four directors, for
whom one is nominated by the Group and the Group is able
to exert significant influence over the financial and operating
activities of Grand Rise. Accordingly, Grand Rise is an associate
of the Group and its financial result were accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements of the Group using the equity
method.

The associate has a reporting date of 31 March.

LATR B 7R & B B & 2 | 7R 2021 £ 3 A 31

Azl EERREHEREEMEEE
X o
Particulars Proportion
of issued of effective
and paid interest Principal
up capital held activity
BERTR s8R
BERAEFE 3 Lt Al FEXK
100 shares 13% Property letting
(2020: nil)
100 A% 13%  WFHEE
(20204 : &)
Hiat - BE202143A31ALFE  AEENUR

L E

& X 58,900,000 LM A A Bl &AL =R 7
B B S S A2 13% g - REBEEEW
FBUREZAENABERCMRMA - &
ZRREEeHMNEESMEK  HP—EH
AEERE - MASEREALEDESRIZNY
BRICETEBENEATLE - Bl - HZE
BRAREEMBENR  HEBEEERRE
TENAEB MRS B REALR

BNRIZHRERBA3ABIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

15.

INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE — continued

Set out below are the summarised financial information of the

associate which is accounted for using the equity method:

15. R—EHEQRzBE — &
AT RIRAHEREARNB S AR 25

BRBE :
2021
2021 &

HK$’000

FETT

Current assets MENEE 11,407
Non-current assets EmBEE 75,000
Current liabilities BN A E (17,295)
Non-current liabilities EMEEE —
Net assets 69,112
From 3 July

2020 (date of

acquisition) to

31 March 2021

202067 HA3H

(kga)ZE

2021 %3 HA31H

HK$’000

FET

Revenue &= 1,278
Total expenses R (550)
Profit before tax TR E 728
Income tax expenses e i (77)

Profit and total comprehensive income for the BRFERE2ERa RS

period 651
Dividends received BUAR B —

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

15. INTEREST IN AN ASSOCIATE — continued 15. R—EHE ARZER — &
A reconciliation of the above summarised financial information UTEREENESRIZMNREELSR it
to the carrying amount of the investment in Grand Rise is set B E R R ER ¢
out below:

2021
2021 %

HK$°000
FET
Total net assets of associates HENAFEERTE 69,112
Proportion of ownership interests held by Group 7<% [ & 1 2 th I 13%
Carrying amount of the investment in an RE I BHRRILER
associate in the consolidated financial —fHB & A AW REE
statements 8,985
The Group has not incurred any contingent liabilities or other AEBEHEELER —HEE AR EEMN
commitments relating to its investment in an associate. SN BB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 16. BAFEFTAEBENESHEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TET TET
Non-current FERE
Unlisted equity securities outside REBRINNIE LT
Hong Kong (note) Wi (KT at) 5,675 5,195
Current i)

Listed securities in Hong Kong RBEBH LTS 5,839 —
The fair value of the Group’s listed and unlisted equity ANEFWN T RIEFmERESD EET
securities has been measured as described in note 35. 2 - MANPMEE 35 ATt
Note: Kt
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the amount represents the unlisted MR2021E B 2020%E 3 A31H » A4 FEIERFai
equity investment in Fai Po Global SPC — Binjiang Flower City Property Po Global SPC — Binjiang Flower City Property
Development Fund SP (“the Fund”) of which the Group holds 2.62% Development Fund SPHJ3F F i % & &([&
equity interest (2020: 2.62%). The Fund is a sole proprietorship 2 ]) e REBEFEE DA R 2.62% (2020
registered in the Cayman lIslands on 16 May 2019 and is established F:0262%) c BEBN2019E5 516 ARS8
primarily to focus on alternative real-estate related investment ENMHBEELYE  HRTTETETRDEHER
opportunities in the PRC. The Group is subjected to a lock up period of EHEABISERE  KEBBEYTAEIEMNE
3 years for holding the equity interest of the Fund. EH ) P A B SRR AN -

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 17.

The movements in deferred tax assets during each of the

reporting period are as follows:

EREBIEEE
EREMANECHABEELSHNT

Impairment Temporary
loss for difference
Provision for trade on
inventories  receivables depreciation Tax losses Total
EZ RN mEN
FERE FEREESS TRER BIEEE #Ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET FET FHET
At 1 April 2019 M201964A1R 239 — 437 815 1,491
Credit to profit or loss Rz A
(note 12) (Htzt12) 106 16 (106) 1,194 1,210
At 31 March 2020 2020563 A31H 345 16 331 2,009 2,701
Credit to profit or loss ~ Bzt A
(note 12) (Htat12) 228 (8) (46) 790 964
At 31 March 2021 M202153A31H 573 8 285 2,799 3,665

At 31 March 2021, the Group has unused tax losses of
HK$17,647,000 (2020: HK$12,840,000) available for offset
against future profits. A deferred tax asset of HK$2,799,000
(2020: HK$2,009,000) has been recognised in respect of
losses of HK$16,970,000 (2020: HK$12,176,000) as at 31
March 2021. No deferred tax asset has been recognised
in relation to remaining tax losses of HK$677,000 (2020:
HK$664,000) as at 31 March 2021 due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams. The losses may be carried forward

indefinitely.

MR2021%F3A318 A& B A KX H
i B 5 1817,647,000/% 7T(2020 % :
12,840,000 7t ) - A A X & 5 K XK
wm A o M2021F3HA31H - B ¥ & &
16,970,000 Jt(20204 : 12,176,000
Y& 7T ) W SRR IE B 18 & & 2,799,000 8 T
(2020 4 : 2,009,00078 L) ° 722021 F 3
F 31 B 3L 68 T B8 E518 677,000 74 7T
(2020 4F : 664,000 70 RELEFIEE
B RE AR A E TR o BEA
R E A o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

18. INVENTORIES 18. FE
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FREIT FAET
Raw materials 9,094 6,210
Work in progress 787 861
Finished goods 51,687 54,455
61,568 61,526
At 31 March 2021, the carrying amount of inventories included MR2021F3A31H FENEEERRE
provision of HK$3,474,000 (2020: HK$2,090,000), which B 1% 3,474,000 7. (2020 4F : 2,090,000
was determined with reference to the net realisable value of BL) Hh2ERFEHEE M) #31F
the inventory items. Additional provision of HK$1,384,000 BEmET & £2021F3 318 It F
(2020: additional provision of HK$796,000 and reversal of EA RIEESHEEEBHELEIINER
HK$155,000 upon realisation) of sales was made during the 1,384,000/ 7T(20204 : % 4b # &
year ended 31 March 2021. 796,000 78 7T} # 6] 155,000 47T ) ©
19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. ESZRHEHMEWKIE
2021 2020
2021 & 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Trade receivables 58 2,093 4,070
Less: ECL allowance B BEEEEERE (50) (99)
Trade receivables, net B W RIECFFE) 2,043 3,971
Rental deposits HEZe
— to related parties (note 33(a)) — REER (#1:#33(a)) 494 494
— to third parties — REE=H 3,007 2,886
Prepayments, other deposits and TERNRIE - Hibike Rk
other receivables E th fE U R IE 1,386 1,213
Right of return assets REEEMNETR 458 240
7,388 8,804
Less: Non-current portion of rental i HERSHNERBBS K
deposits and prepayments for Y% - BREREEN
property, plant and equipment AR RIE (890) (2,886)
6,498 5,918

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

19.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued

The directors of the Group consider that the fair values
of trade and other receivables which are expected to be
recovered within one year are not materially different from
their carrying amounts because these balances have short

maturity periods on their inception.

The following is an aging analysis of the Group’s trade
receivables after impairment by age, presented based on
the invoice date which approximates the respective revenue

recognition date.

19. ESREMBEKRIE — &

AEEEERR  BHAR -FAKEH
B REMERFIEN R FERLREE
TE|EBARER  WIARZEEHERS
R EEHAARE -

TXR/REZHZAH (AR KEHER BB
BE) Z2IERRE D WRERASEE S
FEYRIBAHT ©

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FAET

0 to 30 days 0E30X 855 718
31 to 60 days 31E60K 495 1,474
61 to 90 days 61ZE 90K 242 553
Over 90 days BB 90 K 451 1,226
2,043 3,971

The Group’s retail sales to customers are mainly made in
cash or through credit card payments. The trade receivables
arise from credit card sales are normally settled in one to two
business day in arrears. For the remaining customers, the
Group allows a credit period up to 90 days. A longer credit
period may be granted to large or long-established customers

with good payment history.

Before accepting any new customers, the Group will internally
assess the potential customer’'s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customers. Management closely monitors the
credit quality and follow up actions will be taken if overdue
debts are noted. Credit limits attributed to customers and
credit term granted to customers are reviewed on a regular
basis. Approximately 78% of the trade receivables as at 31
March 2021 (2020: 69%) are neither past due nor impaired
and they were assessed to be of good credit rating by the

Group.

AEEUEFNTEHETENRENE
BERRNFET  ERRHEEENE
FRMKEBTEREC 1 E2EE XA
BB TEPME - AEBEAFEAN
REZEIORK © K& M EM R KL EA
REFRHMETNETLFRERKERS -

REZEMIELA - NEB KL TH
BEEFPHNERERIWIREFPRAEERAR
B EEERYEBSERAERTBERR
FmEESRERERNRETS  BEEZEH
ERARBEURATFEENEREREE
HAME/T B 4% - 202143 531 B 478%
(2020 4F : 69%) K& 5 E UL X T8 BT £ 80 HA
NERE  BUHEREEFGEARIREE
HAl e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 B SRR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued 19. EZRHMERRE — &
The movement in ECL allowance for trade receivables were as B RIRRIBENBHEEBERENES
follows: R
2021 2020
2021 £ 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHET
At beginning of the year F1 99 64
ECL allowance recognised FARRHEREE
during the year E R — 46
ECL allowance reversed FRBEMESREE
during the year EEEE (49) (11)
At end of the year FR 50 99

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the Group
applies internal credit rating for its customers with reference
to the historical repayment. The Group collectively assesses
the impairment using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on share credit risk characteristics of
customers. The following table provides information about
the exposure to credit risk for trade receivables which are
assessed based on provision matrix as at 31 March 2021 and
2020 within lifetime ECL (not credit-impaired).

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

ERASEEERRBREEN - K&
E2EER LA AERFEARNSEE
ke AEEFEREREPHNAREFEER
b R R E o 48 RO R B PR B (R B
e TRRBEEAHEBIERUFERGE
B K E R - ZEER TR 2021 F &
2020 F3 A1 HMEEHMEHEEBRE
(WS ERME) B E BT o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES — continued 19. EZRHMEKWRIE — &

31 March 2021

202163 H31H

Gross Net
carrying Average Loss carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
REAE FYEEXR ik 4 REFE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Low risk (NS 493 1.3% 6 487
Medium risk hE R 1,600 2.7% 44 1,556
2,093 50 2,043
31 March 2020 20203 H31H
Gross Net
carrying Average Loss carrying
amount loss rate allowance amount
BREAE FHEEX BEEE BREFE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Low risk KRR 805 1.3% 11 794
Medium risk o R 3,265 2.7% 88 3,177
4,070 99 3,971

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on historical

observed default rates over the expected life of the debtors

and are adjusted for forward-looking information that is

available without undue cost or effort. The grouping is

regularly reviewed by management to ensure relevant

information about specific debtors is updated.

In addition, the directors of the Company considered that the

presumption of default has occurred when the instrument is

more than 90 days past due would be rebutted by considering

the expected subsequent and historical repayment from the

trade debtors.

BT EERDREBEFABHFHNBE
ABRENXMGE  URBANEBZK
AHB NSRS ERHEL B
ERETHESHME  AERENEBE
EEBANEREER -

N RRAREERR  KEBKREES
BEBEANRRERRELER  TABH
838 90 R RI B A 32 40 O RER A 1 HERD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

20. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 20. BIEWBTER BRITEKRERES
Bank balances and cash include the following components: IRITHERR RIRBIE N OIS
2021 2020
2021 §F 2020 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Cash at bank and in hand RITEREBES 32,021 23,251
Short-term bank deposits HHRITER — 20,178
Bank balances and cash RITEHR KBRS 32,021 43,429
Included in bank balances are the following amounts RITERBETIAEBEEERES
denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies AN B ST E R IR

of the respective group entities:

2021 2020
2021 2020 4F

HK$’000 HK$'000
FETT FHET
Renminbi (“RMB”) ARB(TARE]D 6 37
United States dollar (“US$”) Erx([ZEx]) 127 36
133 73
Bank balances carry interest at prevailing market rates of RITA R 2021 F & 2020F 3 A 31 HH
0.01% per annum as at 31 March 2021 and 2020. The short- WITMEFNEFF0.01% 18 o MHERTT
term bank deposit carries fixed interest rate of ranging from FERIE2020F3 A1 HMEEMREF
1.90% to 2.30% per annum as at 31 March 2020. NF1.90% E2.30% T8 °
The directors of the Group considered that the fair value of AEEEERR  BHRTEFNATFE
the short-term bank deposits is not materially different from HFENEAETESE AR - ER
their carrying amount because of the short maturity period on BRIERREZERAARE -

their inception.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 21. EFRHEMENRIEA
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FETT
Trade payables B S 5RIE 3,481 4,104
Accrued staff costs FEEH B TR 2,717 2,262
Other payables and accrued charges HibENZKIBRETER 1,671 2,028
7,869 8,394
The credit periods of trade payables is within 90 days except ESRNFIENEENRRB @ EMEE
for two of the major suppliers are within 1 year. The following ZHEFNEERR1FTAN - L TARE
is an aged analysis of the Group’s trade payables based on WMEPRBEREAHREINAEEE S E
the invoice date at the end of each reporting period: BRI BRER DT -
2021 2020
2021 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FiETT
0 to 30 days 0£ 30K 621 410
31 to 60 days 31E£60K 566 105
61 to 90 days 61£290K 705 357
Over 90 days B3890 K 1,589 3,232
3,481 4,104
All amounts are short term and hence the carrying values of FrEcEAEE Bt A£EENE S
the Group’s trade and other payables are considered to be a REMENZFENROERRRSESEDN
reasonable approximation of fair values. NFELE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 B SRR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES — continued 21. EFRHEMESRE — &
Included in the Group's trade payables are the following AEENESENFEBETNINEES
amounts denominated in currency other than the functional BEREIGEEE I EE A ENTE -
currencies of the respective group entities.

2021 2020
2021 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
RMB AR 22 =
US$ ETT 2,838 3,125
2,860 3,125

22. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 22. EHERE
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Customer reward scheme (note) B SRENET S (A aE) 4,652 5,849
Customer deposits BEFER 88 225
4,740 6,074

Note: The Group launches a customer reward scheme in its retail
stores in Hong Kong which requires the customers to make
regular payments to the Group in return for redemption of the
Group’s products in the future.

At 31 March 2021 and 2020, the entire amount of contract
liabilities are expected to be realised within one year at the

end of the reporting period.

The decrease in contract liabilities as at 31 March 2021
was mainly due to the decrease in payments made by the
customers under the customer reward scheme during the

reporting period.

Contract liabilities outstanding at the beginning of the year
amounting to HK$3,801,000 (2020: HK$4,364,000) have been
recognised as revenue during the year ended 31 March 2021.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

23. REFUND LIABILITIES 23. BEREE
2021 2020
2021 & 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#T FHET

Refund liabilities arising from right of REERELZEREE

return 555 477
24. LEASE LIABILITIES 24, HEESE
The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities TRINTAEEHEBEOEELE D EIH
of the Group’s lease liabilities: B :
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Total minimum lease payments: SEREREETE
Due within one year M—ERE|Hf 9,885 8,546
Due in the second to fifth years RE—_FEERFEE 1,112 7,088
10,997 15,634
Future finance charges on leases HEABNRKREER
liabilities (192) (470)
Present value of leases liabilities HEBENEE 10,805 15,164
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES — continued 24, HERE —~&
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET
Present value of minimum lease HEHEERENHRE
payments:
Due within one year R—F A EH 9,704 8,189
Due in the second to fifth years RE-_FE=FEAFEH 1,101 6,975
10,805 15,164
Less: Portion due within one year 7 IMERBBER —FAEIH
included under current ZEBD
liabilities (9,704) (8,189)
Portion due after one year included FIVEIERBIBEN —FERIEZ
under non-current liabilities 2B 1,101 6,975
Note: et -
For the year ended 31 March 2021, leases are negotiated for terms of B L2021 F3ABIBIEFE  HAR-ZE=F
two to three years (2020: one to three years). Certain operating leases (2020%F : —E=F )WHRETE - HETHEHEE
require the Group to pay either minimum guaranteed amounts or KK B HERE S EIIRBEHEEEEL X
turnover rent that is based on prescribed rates of corresponding sales, AENEEERS (URRERE) -

whichever is the higher.

As at 31 March 2021, lease liabilities amounting to HK$10,805,000 #2021 %3 A31H ' 10,805,000/% Jt(2020%F :
(2020: HK$15,164,000) are effectively secured by the related 15,164,000 0 ) M E A EH B BB EEEE
underlying assets as the rights to the leased asset would be reverted AR BT BRRNMME RN EERENEER  HE
to the lessor in the event of default by repayment by the Group. During BEEMEANESESE THHEA - 81E£2021F3 4
the year ended 31 March 2021, the total cash outflows for the leases 318 ' HEMRIE R /& 9,458,000 7t (2020
are HK$9,458,000 (2020: HK$11,588,000). £ : 11,588,000 7T) ©

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

24. LEASE LIABILITIES — continued 24, HEGBE —#

Details of the lease activities HEFHNFE

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group has entered into R 2021F & 20203 A31H + X&EEE

leases for retails shops and an office. REEER—EARAEFTLHEE -
Financial statements Range of

Types of items of right-of-use Number remaining

right-of-use assets assets included in of leases lease term Particulars
M B R BRTHEEHZ

ERAREENER EREEENIAE HENHE EE B3

Retails shops Property, plant and 7 (2020: 6) 2 to 3 years Some of the

equipment (2020: 1 to 3 contracts contain
years) additional variable

lease payments
depends on
the turnover
rent during the

contract period.

ZE5 M - BB REE 7 2E3F HrEHNEBENEH
(2020 4F : (2020 F : HAEER S RIK
6) 1E3%F) BN HEE
K -
Office Property, plant and 1 (2020: nil) 2 years Only subject to
equipment (2020: nil) monthly fixed
rental payment
PWAE M - BEREE 1 24 EEXNEHA
(2020 % : (2020 F : EEHE
) )
There is no extention option or termination option on the FTAE W B IEHA AR | F AR ISHE o
leases.
25. BANK BORROWINGS 25. RITEXN
2020
2020 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Unsecured bank borrowings HEIIFIRITE R 31,324 25,621
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS — continued 25. RITER — &
The Group’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: AEBRTERNETFEEBRAOT :
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Bank borrowings are repayable RITERIEE T I HAR AEE
(note) (Hi7z)
Within 1 year 1F R 7,055 3,804
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2FR 7,256 3,915
After 2 years but within 5 years 2F%B5ER 15,795 12,440
After 5 years 5F 1% 1,218 5,462
Total bank borrowings RITIE KRR 31,324 25,621
Comprising: B
Amounts due within one year IARBEBEESR
shown under current liabilities RERKERGR
and containing a repayment on B9 — 4F A EI B FE A
demand clause B 7,055 3,804
Amounts that are not repayable BIBEERE HEERAE
within one year from the end —FREBESE
of the reporting period but R ESRE B IR R
containing a repayment on FIARBERE)
demand clause (shown under
current liabilities) 24,269 21,817
Total bank borrowings RITE A% 31,324 25,621
Note: These amounts are based on the scheduled repayment dates Hiet - ZEREARTERBZNOTEXRBHR
set out in the bank borrowings agreements. *E o
The Group’s banking facility letter contains a clause which REEMRITRE KGFEE —EKK £
give the lender the right at its sole discretion to demand BERABEREEEHERZRZAER -
immediate repayment at any time irrespective of whether THRAEERGETREREBITHTEER
the Group has complied with the covenants and met the HIE o

scheduled repayment obligations.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

25. BANK BORROWINGS — continued 25. RITER — &
All bank borrowings bear variable-rate ranging from Hong MR2021E3A31 8 » LUFEFI R B H
Kong Dollar Prime Rate minus 2.5% to Hong Kong Dollar 2HRITER  MXERAAEEEBTRE
Prime Rate minus 2% as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Hong Kong BAEF25%EB THREBBRFEFK2%
Dollar Prime Rate minus 2.5% to Hong Kong Dollar Prime Rate (2020 F : FFEBTLHEEBFER2.5% %
minus 2%). BILREBRFER2%) °
The range of effective interest rates (which are also equal R 2021F %2020 3 A31H * AN&EBER
to contracted interest rates) per annum on the Group's bank TEFNEFERFREB (INERETOF
borrowings as at 31 March 2021 and 2020, is as following: )T ¢
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Effective interest rates: BBRAIE
Variable-rate borrowings TFENF R R 2.5% to 3% 2.5% t0 3.125%
All bank borrowings are denominated in HKS$. FrARITERTE S ITATE -
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. R
Details of movements of authorised and issued capital of the ARAREERBEITRAEHFEET ¢

Company are as follow:

Number
of shares Share capital
BRBEE
HK$ HK$°000
BT FET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each ~ SAXEE0.01 B LB
Authorised: ETE ¢
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 R2019F 4 A1H » 20204
and 2021 N 2021%€3A31H 1,500,000,000 15,000,000 15,000
Issued and fully paid: BERITRER :
At 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 R2019%F 4 A 18 » 2020F
and 2021 & 202143 A31H 750,000,000 7,500,000 7,500
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

27.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
6 March 2019. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme
is to attract and retain or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with, and to provide incentive to
eligible participant(s) including employees (full-time and part-
time), executives or officers, directors, advisers, consultants,
suppliers, customers, agent, and other persons approved
by the board of directors, to optimise their performance and

efficiency for the benefit of the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer to
grant an option to eligible participant(s) to subscribe for the
shares of the Company at an exercise price and subject to
the other terms of the Share Option Scheme. The maximum
number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of the
Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total number
of shares in issue at the time dealings in the shares of the

Company first commence on the Stock Exchange.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of

ten years from its adoption date.

No options were granted or exercised during the years
ended 31 March 2021 and 2020 and no share options were
outstanding as at 31 March 2021 and 2020.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

28.

SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company’s share award scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a resolution passed on
19 March 2020. The purposes of the Share Award Scheme as
follows: (a) recognize and reward the contributions or potential
contributions made or to be made by (i) any individual or
businesses that purchases the goods and services from the
retail stores or online sales services or its subsidiaries or its
consignment sales agent operated by the Company whom
the Board or its delegate(s) consider, in their sole discretion,
to have contributed or will contribute to the Group; (ii) any
individual, being a full-time employee, Director (including
executive, non-exclusive and independent non-executive
Directors) whom the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in
their sole discretion, to have contributed or will contribute
to the Group; and (iii) any individual or business whom the
Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole discretion, to
have contributed or will contribute to the Group (the “Eligible
Persons”) to the Group, (b) align the interests of the Eligible
Persons with those of the Company, and strive for the future
development and expansion of the Group; and (c) attract
high-calibre personnel to join the Group and provide them
with incentives to participate in the continual operation and

development of the Group.

The board of directors may, at its absolute discretion, offer to
grant awarded Shares to Eligible Persons subject to terms of
the Share Award Scheme. The maximum number of Shares
which may be awarded under the Share Award Scheme shall
be 75 million Shares, representing approximately 10% of
the total number of issued Shares of the Company as at the
Adoption Date. The Board shall not instruct the Trustee to
subscribe for and/or purchase any Shares for the purpose
of the Scheme when such subscription and/or purchase will

result in such threshold being exceeded.

The maximum number of Shares which may be awarded to
a selected participant shall not exceed 1 per cent (1%) of
the total number of issued Shares of the Company as at the
Adoption Date.

The board of directors may, at its sole and absolute discretion,
accelerate the vesting of awarded shares and/or waive and/or
alter any or all of the vesting conditions attached to the Share

Awarded Scheme.

28.

W40 SR BT &

RNQE 8RR 22 EhE &I (AR {n 22 EhET 21 1)
TIRIE R 2020F 3 A 19 B BB RRER
R - AT R ZEEEZER : (a)
RARHEE () AR EENTEERE
FHERBEEERRRE  MESFX
HERRRE2ENBERAAEEHREEHA
£ B VB I B BA A (E faT MR A 3k 1 S sk H F B
ARIKETERE: (| FA2BES -
EX(EENT FERTREBIFERITE
F) MEFTREBRERRZEBER
AREBH S GUAREEED B RAEAE
AN R(NEFSXERERRDERE
RAEEBHREHASEEL TR A EM
BARBE(EEBALT DEAEEED
S FELRMBERSEEER  (b)EEE
B AT 8 F & AR R R e R — 5
WEHARNEBARRERREREM
R (c)RIIMEFAA MARER - Wi EE
ERAEENRELERERR °

Exg 2 ERNBERD ER)E & R
BRRTRAERALTRLEZRRD - R
B tn B2 T &1 4% T 6 SR A 0 B SR 2R
ERTSABMK - (HNRABHARRE 3
TP BRI 10% © B BARRE &Sk
BERERBR%ZRE  VEESIEER
RN EIRE R, HEBEEARR

SROEE - B
EBITRM B

W

AR TRREREE &
BEBBRRM B AR A
Z1% °

ESen2ERNBEMRERBRNNRE &
S HE R R RE B R AT B A Y
LRIk A B B R A ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

28. SHARE AWARD SCHEME — continued 28. WRiTEBETE — &2
This Scheme shall terminate on the earlier of: (i) the eighth R A TR BHIRIE « () R4 B
anniversary date of the Adoption Date; and (ii) such date of MEN\ERBEEE  &(i)EESETHIRR
early termination as determined by the Board provided that LIFEE - ERBRIETSEEEMLRE
such termination shall not affect any subsisting rights of any TELEEMERIRERER -
selected participant.
As at 31 March 2021, no awarded Shares had been granted, HZE=2021F3A31H ' REEMREHE
vested and lapsed pursuant to the Share Award Scheme. - BB .
29. LEASE COMMITMENTS 29. HAE&IE
As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the lease commitments for R2021F K 20203 A31H * MEAfHE
short-term leases are as follows: RAEREZNT ¢
2020
20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Within one year —FR 57 314
30. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 30. BEAEIE
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Contracted but not provided for EEFER S
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BB REE

2,790 =

)
4@; CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
/
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 31. MEFTDELANEEHR
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group liabilities arising TRAFLMAESERETHMEENEEE
from financing activities. Liabilities arising from financing o A EEELANEERERERE
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash B ERAEEBGERERERAND
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated statement HABEBLZDRERENAME -

of cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.

Interest Accrued Bank Lease
payables issue costs borrowings liabilities Total
EfRIS LEE G BEER HEAE ast
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T AT FEx FET TET
At 1 April 2020 1 2020%4 A1H = = 25,621 15,164 40,785
Cash-flows: Bem:
Interest expense paid BRI EEY (811) = = (505) (1,316)
Proceeds of bank borrowings — SRfTEFHATE A — - 11,140 — 11,140
Repayments of bank ERBIER
borrowings — — (5,437) — (5,437)
Capital element of lease BEREERENAEHA
rentals paid — — — (8,683) (8,683)
Non-cash: FRE:
Entering into new leases EIVE it — - - 6,646 6,646
COVID-19-related rent BIR2019 5 BRE S A
concession received BERLHE
(note 9) (#39) - — - (2322) (2.32)
Interest expenses recognised  EEANFI SR
(note 8) (Hii£8) 811 = = 505 1,316
At 31 March 2021 R2021%3831A = = 31,324 10,805 42,129

3
J

72
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

31. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING 31.
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES — continued

METHELENEBEHR — 2

Interest Accrued Bank Lease
payables issue costs borrowings liabilities Total
EfF S B BARIS RITER HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET FEL FET FET
At 1 April 2019 201954410 — 2,045 41,377 16,662 60,084
Cash-flows: Bewm
Interest expense paid BRMERR (950) — - (541) (1,491)
Issue costs paid BRBIRA — (2,045) — — (2,045)
Repayments of bank ERETER
borrowings — — (15,756) — (15,756)
Capital element of lease BERAERSNASEH S
rentals paid — — — (6,594) (6,594)
Non-cash: FRE:
Entering into new leases EIVE fil] — — - 5,506 5,506
Modification of lease term BRMES — — - (410) (410)
Interest expenses recognised  ZEANFI SR
(note 8) (H3t6) 950 - - 541 1,491
At 31 March 2020 1202053 431 - — 25,621 15,164 40,785
32. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES 32. RIKBERIFE

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
for all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes 5% of
relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which contribution is
matched by employees but subject to a maximum amount of

HK$1,500 per month for each employee to the scheme.

The employees employed by the PRC subsidiary are members
of the state-managed retirement benefits schemes operated
by the PRC government. The PRC subsidiary is required
to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll to the
retirement benefits schemes to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefits
schemes is to make the required contributions under the

schemes.

Details of the retirement benefit schemes contributions for

both years are set out in note 9.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

33. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

()

Other than the transactions and balances disclosed

elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements,

the Group had the following transaction with related

companies during both years:

Rental expenses paid to related
companies controlled by
the executive director of the
Company

Interest paid on lease liabilities
to related companies controlled
by the executive director of the
Company

Principal paid on lease liabilities
to related companies controlled
by the executive director of the
Company

Interest paid on lease liabilities to
an associate

Principal paid on lease liabilities to

an associate

RIAR B HAITE FE GRS
BARXNWESER

FAR B HITE F GRS
BARXMNMEEREL
A2

N
0

AR B ITE FE G AORE
BARIXMNMHERES
PN

AEARXNHEERE
ZHE

AEERRXNNEERE
ZAE

33. BBARS

BREEMBHRRPEMEBO ST
BENX S RERIN NREERM

EEEANRERTEFTIRS

2021 2020
2021 % 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
— 2,964

99 —
1,587 —
49 —
1,229 —

Included in trade and other receivables at 31 March

2021 were rental deposits paid to related companies

controlled by the executive director of the Company of
HK$210,000 (2020: HK$494,000) and an associate of

HK$284,000 (2020: HK$nil).

Included in lease liabilities at 31 March 2021 were

due to related companies controlled by the executive
director of the Company of HK$2,150,000 (2020: HK$nil)
and an associate of HK$1,679,000 (2020: HK$nil).

R2021F 3531 BNE S K EME
WHRIE AN FARRBITES
2 eY BB R B 2 £ € 210,000
75 7 (2020 4F : 494,000 T ) & —
fEI B & A 7] 284,000 78 71 (2020 4 :
m) o

MN2021E3A31BHEAEARE
NARRRMITE ST IR A
7]2,150,000 7 JT(20204F : &) &
— BB 2 R 7] 1,679,000 7 7T.(2020
Fom) o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

33.

34.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — continued 33. BHAERSE — &
(b) Compensation of key management personnel (b) EBEEE AEBFH N
The remuneration of key management personnel during FTEEBEABRZMESTE
both years was as follows: Ba0 R :
2021 2020
2021 F 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Short-term employee benefits EHEERT 4,615 4477
Retirement benefit scheme RIRAEFET B LK
contributions 174 98
4,789 4,575
Key management personnel include directors of the FTEBFERBAEBREARTINES
Company and other senior management of the Group. AEBNEMRRERE £2
The remuneration of key management personnel is EHEEBAETMAEAARIEEER
determined by the management of the Company having ZEARB LTS BRAEE -
regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 34. EXERERE
The Group manages its capital to ensure that the Group will TREE BB 1B H B AN DA RE (R AN £ [ 15 Bk 4

be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the
return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt
and equity balance. The Group’s overall strategy remains

unchanged throughout the year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of debts, which
includes lease liabilities and bank borrowings as set out
in notes 24 and 25, respectively and equity attributable to
owners of the Group, comprising share capital and reserves

as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital, and will balance
its overall capital structure through new share issues and

raising or repayment of bank borrowings.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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are excluded

> Accruals are excluded
Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and
other receivables, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, lease liabilities, and bank borrowings. Details
of these financial instruments are disclosed in respective
notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
include market risks (foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk, and the policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The directors of the
Company manage and monitor these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 35. €T H
Categories of financial instruments SWMIAESE
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at amortised cost RESHR AT ENEREE
— Bank balances and cash — RITEBRRIRS 32,021 43,429
— Trade and other receivables* — B 5 REM BRI 5,911 7,707
Financial asset at FVTPL BERAFEFABENEREE
— Unlisted equity investment — EETIRAERE 5,675 5,195
— Listed equity investment — ERAREE 5,839 —
49,446 56,331
Financial liabilities SRAaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost IR KA ENSRHEE
— Trade and other payables** — B 5 & E fth & WK IE * 3,874 5,009
— Bank borrowings — RITERK 31,324 25 621
— Lease liabilities — HEaE 10,805 15,164
46,003 45,794
* Prepayments, right of return assets and non-refundable deposits * TEIEFRMNFRIAE R OE ENERRTAR

BIES

i

= TRERHER
BIEREEBERRE

AEENTECHIABRREES AR
WikIE - RITEHRRIRE BHREME
NHIE HEEBERRITER - Z5FTH
TAMFHBHRERBEMNE - BZE2R
TRAENREREETSE R (SMERR &
MERRE) FERAREASDESESR - M
BRI AR E ZF AR BN TX
AAREEEENEEZER R IATERR
B A E S ENEE -
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk
Foreign currency risk

The Group has limited currency exposure as majority of the
revenue were denominated in functional currency of the

respective group entities. The carrying amounts of the Group’s

EETH — &
HERREEEEREER — &

mEEE
SMNEE R

HRABOMEA RSB ERNER
BitE AAKEMEENESERE
R RMERR - AEBEAIMNEFENE

foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities BEERARENEREERT :
at the end of the reporting dates are as follows:
2021 2020
2021 § 2020 &
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET TFET
Assets BE
Us$ ET 127 36
RMB AR 6 37
Liabilities =L
uss$ ETT 2,838 3,125
RMB AR 22 —

The Group is mainly exposed to the foreign currency risk of
US$ and RMB. Under the pegged exchange rate system, the
financial impact on exchange difference between HK$ and
US$ will be immaterial as most US$ denominated monetary
assets and liabilities are held by group entities having HK$ as
their functional currency, and therefore no sensitivity analysis
has been prepared. No sensitivity analysis has been prepared

for HK$ against RMB as the amount involved is insignificant.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Market risk — continued
Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances and variable-rate bank
borrowings (note 25). The Group’s cash flow interest rate
risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation on Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate arising from the Group’s Hong Kong dollar
denominated bank borrowings. The Group currently does
not have a policy on cash flow hedges of interest rate risk.
However, the management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest rate risk should

the need arise.
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based
on the exposure to interest rates for non-derivative financial
instruments at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is
prepared assuming the financial instruments outstanding at
the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole
year. A 100 basis points and 10 basis points increase or
decrease in bank borrowings and bank balances respectively
are used which represents management's assessment of the

reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates on interest bearing borrowings and bank
balances had been 100 basis points and 10 basis points
respectively higher/lower and all of other variables were held
constant, the loss for the year ended 31 March 2021 would
be increased/decreased by HK$230,000 (the loss for the year
ended 31 March 2020 would be increased/decreased by
HK$171,000).

THMITHE — &

BHREREEEEREE — &

FEEE — &

AEEmERS RFBNRIRITERRFE
M RRITHE FRAOIR & A = [ B (BT E 25)
AEENRERNEXAREIEEFRAE
BB EMNRITERMELENETRE
BN R IR B o 7N 5 (B3R B 3 R B R K
B\l IR SREIHER - A - BEEEE
ENERR  YHELEREREHFEX
M= @ o

BUEAIT

TXHGREE DT TIRBERARIETES
MITEMNFERBRETE - 2T HERZRER
HFHREREENERITENEEAFE R
NBEMRE o 5 BT ARITERRRT
45 £ 100 fE £ 2h K& 10 18 & 2h A9 F1 18 sk 8K
8 WL EIE BN RSB st B AT
iy

it B & TR RARTT AR F R 5 BllE hn~
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event
of the counterparties failure to perform their obligations
at the end of each reporting period in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the carrying amount
of those assets stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management of the Group has delegated a team responsible
for determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Given the Group’s wholesale
customers are widely spread over, management considers
that the credit risk associated is low. In addition, the Group
makes reference to the historical repayment to assess the
impairment for individual debtors with significant balances
while the Group collectively assesses the impairment for its
remaining customers using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings based on share credit risk characteristics of
customers. In this regard, the directors of the Company

consider that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B B SRR MY R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued

Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group’s internal credit risk grading assessment comprises

the following categories:

Internal

35.

THMITHE — &

BHREREEEEREE — &

EERBRBEFG — &
AEENABEERRIAF G RE T

Rl

Financial assets

other than trade

credit rating Description Trade receivables receivables
BRE 5 e Wk IE sh
W= E R =t B3 g 5 RWOR WEmMEE
Low risk The counterparty has a low risk of default and Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
does not have any past-due amounts credit-impaired
iYL RIS FHARRENRR - B EE(EE 2R HEEEE +=EA
A — EEERE BEHEEERE
Medium risk Debtor frequently repays after due dates but Lifetime ECL — not 12m ECL
usually settles after due date credit-impaired
e EHAKLERIBERENR  HBERIAEREE 2HEHEEESR +T=fAR
— BEERE EHEEERE
High risk There have been significant increases in credit Lifetime ECL — not Lifetime ECL — not
risk since initial recognition through information credit-impaired credit-impaired
developed internally or external resources
= AR REDHIE B SN E R R E B AR B 158 TR 2 HREAEEERE 2 HRBAEEEE
FE K8 45 41 — BEERE — EEERE
Loss There is evidence indicating the asset is credit- Lifetime ECL — Lifetime ECL —
impaired credit-impaired credit-impaired
BB ERBBRNEERESRE > HEHEEEE 2HRHEEERE
— EERE — EERE
Write-off There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in ~ Amount is written Amount is written off
severe financial difficulty and the Group has no off
realistic prospect of recovery
s ERBBRRNEBARNBEEN KR  mASE ivE e E e i sH R

WARA R EKIA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. €@iTH — &
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERREEEERBER — &
continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued EEEERBEFGE — &
The table below details the credit risk exposures of TRFAVASESHEENEERR (HE
the Group's financial assets, which are subject to ECL TEHEEEERTME)
assessment:
External Internal 12m or Gross
credit credit lifetime carrying
2021 2021 F Notes rating rating ECL amount
+t=@A
SMER A HEMEH
Hiet EEFR EEFR FEEER FREAE
HK$’000
FHET
Financial assets at Z# R AHEK
amortised cost EREE
Trade receivables &5 EIKFKIE 19 N/A Low risk  Lifetime ECL 493
(simplified
approach)
T iE A iVENE 2 HiTE A
EEBE
(f{%)
Medium risk Lifetime ECL 1,600
(simplified
approach)
A [EL 2 B T8 A
EEEBE
(%)
Other receivables — Hfth fEUFIA 19 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 3,868
i A iVENE 12 18 A T8 8
EEEE
Bank balances SRITHE A 20 A- to AA+ N/A 12m ECL 30,979
A-E AA+ T3 A +={&A
TREEE k18

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. €@iTH — &
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HERREEEERBER — &
continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued EERBRRBEF G — &
External Internal 12m or Gross
credit credit lifetime carrying
2020 2020 & Notes rating rating ECL amount
+=1@A"
SN EB AEB ok 2 B TE Af
Hst EER &R EEEBE BRTEAME
HK$’000
TFET
Financial assets at Z# &R AEHEK
amortised cost SREE
Trade receivables B S EUFIA 19 N/A Low risk  Lifetime ECL 805
(simplified
approach)
TEA [iwEy 2 B T8 A
EEBE
(fS1%)
Medium risk Lifetime ECL 3,265
(simplified
approach)
A& 2 A TE A
EEEE
(fS1E%)
Other receivables  EfhfE U zkIE 19 N/A Low risk 12m ECL 3,736
TEA {ivEN 12 f& A 18 A
EEEBE
Bank balances RITHE 20 A- to AA+ N/A 12m ECL 42,362
A-Z AA+ TEA +=1@A
TREEEEE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk on
trade and other receivables, with exposure spread over a

number of counterparties.

The credit risk on other receivables is minimal as the risk of
default is low after considering the factors as set out in note
3.7. No ECL have been recognised as a result of the total ECL

of other receivables is considered as immaterial.

The Group assesses the expected losses on financial assets
and considers the probability of default upon initial recognition
of the respective asset and whether there has been a

significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis.

To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
assets as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at
the date of initial recognition and considers available forward-

looking information, including below indicators:
. internal credit rating based on historical information;

. actual or expected significant changes in the operating

results of the debtors;

. significant changes in the expected performance and
behavior of the debtors, including changes in the

payment status of debtors; and

o the possible impacts associated with the overall change

in the economic environment arising from COVID-19

The Group applies the simplified approach and assesses the
lifetime ECL for trade receivables at the end of each reporting
period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made
for significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.

Relevant information with regard to the exposure of credit risk
and ECL for trade receivables as at 31 March 2021 and 2020

are set out in note 19.

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies —

continued
Credit risk and impairment assessment — continued

For the purposes of internal credit risk management, the
Group uses past due information to assess whether credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition. Based on
the historical default rate and repayment history, the directors
of the Company considered the ECL for bank balances is

insignificant.
Liquidity risk

The management of the Group has built a liquidity risk
management framework for managing the Group’s short and
medium-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining banking
facilities and by continuously monitoring forecasted and actual
cash flows and the maturity profiles of its financial liabilities.
At 31 March 2021, the Group has no available unutilised bank
borrowing facilities (2020: Nil).

35.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. €&@TH — &
Financial risk management objectives and policies — HHRRAREEEERBR — &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued FEBELER — &
The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual TRAJNRNEERE A BN RERS L
maturity for its financial liabilities. The table has been HARR o TRIBBEASE M #H ERER &
drawn up to reflect the undiscounted cash flows of financial FHEEE  ARMBEBEEENRMIER
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group ERE - BBME » THMmiRITITEEER
can be required to pay. Specifically, bank borrowing with MR SHAIREREEKEINRITER
a repayment on demand clause are included in the earliest BHwE S AREHHNSHERE - TXA
time band regardless of the probability of the banks choosing REFEMNERARESRE °

to exercise their rights. The table includes both interest and
principal cash flows.

Weighted On demand Over 1 year Total
average or less than but within  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flow amount
i AREXR HBA1F AERRE
FHNE  F-FAERE BR5FR RERE REE
% HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FET FET FET FET
Financial liabilities tREE
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3A31H
Trade and other payables &5 Kkt ENFUIR - 3,874 - 3,874 3,874
Bank borrowings (note) B3R (HiE) 2.82 31,324 - 31,324 31,324
Lease liabilities HEAR 2.99 9,885 1,112 10,997 10,805
45,083 1,112 46,195 46,003

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. tRTH — &
Financial risk management objectives and policies — MRERESEEERHE — &
continued
Liquidity risk — continued mEEsEEE — &
Weighted On demand Over 1 year Total
average or less than but within  undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flow amount
ot RIBEKR B 1F REREE
THFE H—FNEE BR5ER mEBHE HEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET

Financial liabilities SREE

At 31 March 2020 R 202043 A31H
Trade and other g5 REMER
payables B = 5,009 — 5,009 5,009
Bank borrowings (note)  $RATER(H1:L) 2.85 25,621 = 25,621 25,621
Lease liabilities HERE 3.13 8,546 7,088 15,634 15,164
39,176 7,088 46,264 45,794
Note: Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand clause are Hiat - A EBIEABE ST - RETABIRERKER
included in the “on demand or less than 1 year” time band in AR RITEREG A BIRERE—FA

the above maturity analysis. At 31 March 2021, the aggregate
carrying amount of these bank borrowings amounting to
HK$31,324,000 (2020: HK$25,621,000). Taking into account
the Group’s financial position, the directors of the Company
do not believe that it is probable that the banks will exercise
their discretionary rights to demand immediate repayment. The
directors of the Company believe that such bank borrowings will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates
set out in the borrowings agreements with the principal and
interest cash outflows as follows:

Aggregate principal and interest cash outflows repayable:

B2 MR EEE AN - R2021F3A 318 -
2 L R1T7 8 XK H 42 © %8 /4 31,324,000 74
J0(2020 4 : 25,621,000 7T ) © &% &t & AN
SENTBRR ARRESRARITTIKR
ARE TR BB REE KRR ER - A7
EREE  ZERTEFEIRBERBERT
HMBEEERAHEE A RFBRER
HIT

FEEEAS RASIRNE AR

2021 2020
2021 F 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Within 1 year —FA 7,848 4,486
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFR 7,848 4,485
After 2 years but within 5 years MEZKBRFEA 16,609 13,458
After 5 years hF% 2,545 6,238
34,850 28,667
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

a5 B SRR B R

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued

35. €T H — &

Financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated REAETBRARPERATEITENS F

statement of financial position are grouped into three levels of

a fair value hierarchy. The three levels are defined based on

BEADR=BEXTFERER =fEARBHRE
RABRZERBAE  EEMOT :

the observability of significant inputs to the measurements, as

follows:

—  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets — F—E HREERBERERT

for identical assets and liabilities

— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within —
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly or indirectly, and not using significant

unobservable inputs

—  Level 3: significant inputs for the asset or liability

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the financial
asset is categorised in its entirety is based on the lowest level

of input that is significant to the fair value measurement.

The financial assets measured at fair value in the consolidated

statement of financial position on a recurring basis are

152 BB CREHE)

F_E: REEXABMERKHE
BEUBRRTEFERASERTAHE
BAZE 2B ABEB(F-—RABRE
HEREERIN)

— FZE BABBREEXBEDN
ERERBRBARE -
BHSBMEEERRBMERE ANRFERE
NHER BERHAFEAEAFGEX
EENREBEXERBAE -
RELEEEERGEVBRRRARA
FEHAENERMEENRATFEERN

grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: T
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—® E& E=R& st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FETT FET FETT
At 31 March 2021 #2021 53 H831H
Financial asset at BATEFTABREN
FVTPL: ERMEE
Listed equity investment EmRAERE 5,839 — — 5,839
Unlisted equity investment 3JE E AR E — — 5,675 5,675
5,839 — 5,675 11,514

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. @@THR —#

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE—R FEH E=MR #Et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET T TFET

M 202043 A31H

Financial asset at BATEFAERS
FVTPL: SREE :

Unlisted equity investment JE F fRR AR E

At 31 March 2020

= 5,1€1 5,195

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 during the year
ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Level 3 instrument
represents investment in the Fund which are stated at
fair values determined using the price to book ratios of
comparable listed companies adjusted for lack of marketability
discount at 25% with reference to the valuation reports of
this equity investments prepared by an external valuation
experts with recognised professional qualifications and
recent experience to perform the valuations. An increase in
the discount for lack of marketability would decrease the fair
value. As at 31 March 2021, it is estimated that with all other
variables held constant, an increase (a decrease) in discount
of lack of marketability by 5% would increase (decrease) the
Group’s loss by HK$378,000 (2020: HK$349,000).

HZE2021F3A31HIEFER WiEE
A HE=E(2020F : £&) ©

2021 F & 20203 A31H " E=ET
BERATFEZINRNESFHERE -
ZERNFED2EANHETHENERR
MEXEE KA BEBOINBEEERA
RERAFEGBERSERAHERZ TS
TR E 25% (E A A E L& £
ARTREMETE ° MG RB D E
RO 382 00 5 A F{E o 720214 3 A 31
H-  WEABEHMESHEFTTE  EETERZ
TSR BUEITEEMCORD ) 5% 152 ARE
& 1 &5 8 35 A0 ORk 2> ) 378,000 7% 7T (2020
% : 349,000/7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. €@iTH — &
The fair value of equity investment has been estimated using BRRENAFEE T BRMSER
a guideline public company method based on assumptions IR B RFZ A5 Al & LR A Bl A
that are not supported by observable market price or rates. HE - FHEcHITAEGFENEART R
Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the ABEMBE T

valuation of financial instrument:

Unobservable

At 31 March 2021 Valuation technique input

R2021 53 A31H fRERTD T R ARE

Unlisted equity Guideline public company  Price-to-book ratio:
investment method 1:1.43

AN ETRARE M35 A B LA A MAREK : 1:1.43

Discount of lack
of marketability:
25%

TSR M E
25%

Unobservable

At 31 March 2020 Valuation technique input

2020463 A31H BERIS LB RPN ¢

Unlisted equity Guideline public company  Price-to-book ratio:
investment method 1:1.51

AN ETIRAIRE M5 A & LB A A MARE : 1:1.51

Discount of lack
of marketability:
25%

TS M
25%

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value
T A R ABBE A FENBR

An increase in the ratio will result in
an increase in the fair value of the
unlisted equity investment

LEEIR ISR ETHRAREN R TE
20

An increase in the discount will result
in an decrease in the fair value of
the unlisted equity investment

REE NS R EMRAREN R TE
A

Relationship of unobservable
inputs to fair value

AT R A BB BN TR R B R

An increase in the ratio will result in
an increase in the fair value of the
unlisted equity investment

tEEE ISR ERAREN R TE
0

An increase in the discount will result
in an decrease in the fair value of
the unlisted equity investment

rREENE SR EMRAREN R TE
A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

35. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS — continued 35. €@iTH — &
The movement during the year in the balance of Level 3 FZEITALBFRNEHOT ¢
instruments is as follows:
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 &
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Opening balance BARAE 4 5,195 —
Incremental investment HERE — 5,000
Fair value change recognised in REZHERNATELZS
profits or loss 480 195
Closing balance HiR &4 5,675 5,195
Fair value changes on unlisted equity investment are ELETRAKEN DA FERS N IB S B
recognised in profit or loss and included under “other net R WET Al EMF ] -
gain”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. TEMBARANFR
At the end of each reporting period, the Company has indirect RERERK  ARARUATEEHRNBA
equity interests in the following principal subsidiaries: AR R AR

Equity interest attributable

Issued and to the Group
Place fully paid share AEEEGRE
and date of capital/ At 31 March
incorporation/ Place of registered R3A31H
Name of subsidiary establishment operations capital 2020 Principal activities
SR B BERTRAZRE
WEARER kBH S /EMER 2020F EEEE
2ERECRINERAR  PRC PRC HK$8,000,000 100% 100% Manufacture of
Zhouhui Jewellery 18 November 2011 jewellery
FERE(RIDERRAR  HE e 8,000,0008 7T EERE
72011 F 11188
Chuk Fung Jewellery Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Investment holding
Manufactory Limited 7 November 2003
FEGREEHMARAR A B 10,0007 REER
200311 A7H
W-Rich Company Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Procurement,

29 November 2011 marketing and
promotion,
distribution and
wholesale of
jewellery

BETERRA BE BE 18T KERE  THkER

#2011 11 A29H B D#HIE

Chong Fai Group Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 100% 100% Procurement,
Holdings Company 7 January 2000 marketing and
Limited promotion,
distribution of
jewellery and
trading of recycled
gold products
EIEEEERER AT BB B 10,000/ 7T KERE THRER
720001 A7H Ef - 2HEREK

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

36. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 36. FEMBELARINFEE — &

— continued

Equity interest attributable

Issued and to the Group
Place fully paid share REBEGRE
and date of capital/ At 31 March
incorporation/ Place of registered R3A31H
Name of subsidiary establishment operations capital 2020 Principal activities
AL B BRTRABZRA
WEAREHR kBH ‘e /EMER 2020F EEEH
Chong Fai Jewellery &  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$20,010,000 99.99% 99.99%  Procurement,
Gold Company Limited 14 March 1997 (note) (note) marketing and
(H1at) (Hiat) promotion,
distribution, retail
of jewellery
EIERE 2 TARAR 3 0 20,010,000 T RERE  maHER
1997638146 Eff 2 TE
King Jewellery & Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1 100% 100%  Procurement,

J Company Limited 28 May 2012 marketing and
promotion,
distribution and
wholesale of
jewellery

EEGRERRBRAA BA BE 1B KERE  THkER
M201265H28H BE HEHEE
Note: As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the amount of the KiaE - 2021 F k2020463 A 31 H « 3EERER
non-controlling interests were less than HK$1,000. 2 &FPRAEIT 1,000 TTIE °
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the 1B B B /A ) A AR 4R Bl A 7K 4R JE A ] B
end of the year or anytime during the year. BATEMERES °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B R R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. XATMBRRE
COMPANY
2021 2020
2021 £ 2020 £
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FEL
Non-current asset FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries (note) RHT B AR MIEE (Kat) — —
Current assets REBEE
Bank balances and cash RITEHREE S 259 1,202
Amount due from a subsidiary JE — R M B A R IE 38,289 37,349
38,548 38,551
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables H e 5108 10 10
Amount due to a subsidiary FES — R M B A Rk E 13,888 13,878
13,898 13,888
Net current assets RBEEZRE 24,650 24,663
Net assets EEFE 24,650 24,663
Capital and reserves B R #E
Share capital &N 7,500 7,500
Reserves fE & 17,150 17,163
Total equity R 24,650 24,663
o)
‘ ’ CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
N4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bk MR

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

37. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 37. RXDAIMBMRRET — &
COMPANY — continued
Movement of the Company’s reserves: RAEEENEE
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
AR E RitER @gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET FAT
At 1 April 2019 R2019%F 418 35,242 (18,001) 17,241
Loss and total comprehensive ERRFRAZERAY B
expense for the year - (78) (78)

At 31 March 2020 and 1 April 2020 R 202063 A31H K

20204 A1 8 35,242 (18,079) 17,163

Loss and total comprehensive BEREANZEMAXEHE

expense for the year = (13) (13)
At 31 March 2021 R2021E3H31H 35,242 (18,092) 17,150
Note: The amount of the investments in subsidiaries are less than Hiat - RITBRRIRE NS DM 1,0008 7T °

HK$1,000.

As at 31 March 2021, the Company had distributable reserve MR202163A31H  "RQARHEAE A H
of approximately of HK$17,150,000 (2020: HK$17,163,000), B2 % B 417,150,000/ JT(20204F :
calculated under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 17,163,000 L) * NiIREFREHE R A
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman EE 22 FE (1961 F0A03 K4z d RIEET)
Islands. Such amount includes share premium which may MetESBE - HRBEEES KIKEAH
be distributable provided that immediately following the date Hifg - ARAIREHEEN —MEKBIEF
on which the dividend is proposed, the Company will be in FEZEE  EEESEB S TH IR
a position to pay off its debts or when they fall due in the DR(E -

ordinary course of business.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
B EHE

For the year ended 31 March 2021 &% 202143 A 31 HILFE

RESULTS e

For the year ended 31 March
BZ3A3MIBLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018
2021 £ 2020 4 2019 4 2018 F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FETT FETT
Revenue W 101,702 119,869 175,589 173,020
(Loss)/Profit before tax BREAT(EE), &5 (1,244) (6,854) 3,908 8,012
Income tax credit/(expense) Frigfiike,/ (Bisz) 964 1,370 (1,685) (8,177)
(Loss)/Profit for the year FR(EE), R (280) (5,484) 2,223 4,835
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAEE
At 31 March
M3A31H
2021 2020 2019 2018
2021 2020 F 2019 4F 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FETT
Total assets BEHAE 136,234 187,835 157,471 138,196
Total liabilities aERE (55,293) (55,730) (69,692) (84,813)
Total equity HEmiEER 80,941 81,605 87,779 53,383

CHONG FAI JEWELLERY GROUP HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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